
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JSCB “LVIV” 

Financial Statements with the Independent 

Auditor's Report and Management Report 

for the year ended on 31 December 2018 



JSCB “LVIV” 

Financial Statements with the Independent Auditor's Report and Management 

Report for the year ended 31 December 2018 
  

 

2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

MANAGEMENT REPORT .......................................................................................................................................................  4 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ...................................................................................................................................  26 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (BALANCE SHEET) .........................................................................................  38 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME .........................................................  39 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (STATEMENT OF EQUITY) .............................................................................  40 

STATAMENT OF CASH FLOWS ............................................................................................................................................  43 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

Note 1. Bank information .....................................................................................................................................................  45 

Note 2. Operating environment ............................................................................................................................................  48 

Note 3. Basis of preparation………………………..………………………………………………………………..……... 49 

Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies…………………………………………………………………..…… 49 

Note 5. Standards issued and restated but not yet effective ..................................................................................................  62 

Note 6. Cash and cash equivalents ........................................................................................................................................  67 

Note 7. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ..................................................................................................  67 

Note 8. Loans and advances to banks ...................................................................................................................................  67 

Note 9. Loans and advances to customers ............................................................................................................................  69 

Note 10. Investments in securities ........................................................................................................................................  75 

Note 11. Derivative financial assets......................................................................................................................................  76 

Note 12. Investments in associates/associates and subsidiaries ............................................................................................  76 

Note 13. Investment property ...............................................................................................................................................  77 

Note 14. Goodwill ................................................................................................................................................................  77 

Note 15. Fixed and intangible assets.....................................................................................................................................  78 

Note 16. Other assets ............................................................................................................................................................  80 

Note 17. Non-current assets held for sale and disposal group assets ....................................................................................  85 

Note 18. Due to banks ..........................................................................................................................................................  85 

Note 19. Due to customers ....................................................................................................................................................  86 

Note 20. Derivative financial liabilities ................................................................................................................................  87 

Note 21. Debt securities issued by the Bank .........................................................................................................................  87 

Note 22. Other borrowed funds ............................................................................................................................................  87 

Note 23. Provisions for liabilities .........................................................................................................................................  87 

Note 24. Other liabilities .......................................................................................................................................................  88 

Note 25. Subordinated debt ..................................................................................................................................................  89 

Note 26. Share capital and share premium ...........................................................................................................................  90 

Note 27. Revaluation reserves flow (components of other comprehensive income) ............................................................  90 

Note 28. Analysis of assets and liabilities by maturities .......................................................................................................  90 

Note 29. Interest income and expenses .................................................................................................................................  92 

Note 30. Fee and commission income and expenses ............................................................................................................  94 

Note 31. Other operating income ..........................................................................................................................................  94 

Note 32. Other administrative and other operating expenses ...............................................................................................  95 

Note 33. Income tax expenses ..............................................................................................................................................  96 

Note 34. Profit (loss) per one ordinary and preference share ...............................................................................................  98 

Note 35. Dividends ...............................................................................................................................................................  98 

Note 36. Operating segments ................................................................................................................................................  99 

Note 37. Financial risk management ....................................................................................................................................  104 

Note 38. Capital management ...............................................................................................................................................  117 

Note 39. Trust accounts ........................................................................................................................................................  118 

Note 40. Contingent liabilities of the Bank ..........................................................................................................................  119 

Note 41. Derivative financial instruments ............................................................................................................................  121 

Note 42. Fair value of financial instruments .........................................................................................................................  121 

Note 43. Transfer of financial assets.....................................................................................................................................  124 

Note 44. Mutual offset of financial assets and financial liabilities .......................................................................................  124 

Note 45. Presentation of financial instruments by valuation categories ...............................................................................  124 

Note 46. Related party transactions ......................................................................................................................................  126 

Note 47. Subsidiaries, associates and joint companies .........................................................................................................  133 

Note 48. Business combinations ...........................................................................................................................................  133 

Note 49. Subsequent events ..................................................................................................................................................  133 

 



 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Management Report 



JSCB “LVIV” 

Management Report for the year ended 31 December 2018 
 

 

4 

1. Description of Business 

Describing the external environment in which the bank operates 

The consumer inflation slowed down in Ukraine in 2018 to 9.8% (as compared to 13.7% in 2017), the lowest level 

following the results of the last five years. This was mostly due to the stringent policy followed by the NBU. Additional 

factors were expanding domestic demand, reducing global prices of food products and, at the end of the year, global oil 

prices. At the same time, the base inflation slowed down moderately based on the 2018 results (up to 8.7% per annum) 

due to, among other things, the pressure posed by increasing production costs. 

The NBU Management Board left more than once the discount rate at the level of 18.0% per annum. According to the 

NBU, current and forecast monetary conditions are stringent enough to cause the inflation to fall to the medium-term 

average of 5% in 2020. Moreover, a new operational design for the NBU monetary policy came into being since 11 

January 20191 for more flexible reaction to changes in the liquidity of the Ukrainian banking system. 

There were 77 operating banks as of the end of 2018. The sector is still moderately concentrated. As of the end of 2018, 

top 20 banks' share was 91.0% of the net assets in the sector. State-owned banks are dominating on the market: their 

aggregate share was 54.7% and 63.4% in terms of net assets and public deposits accordingly. 

In 2018, the banking sector made the record profit of UAH 21.7 billion (rate of return from capital was 14.3%).  

The capital adequacy remained higher than the minimum necessary level throughout the year. The regulatory capital of 

banks that were solvent as of 01/01/2019 grew initially by 12.7%, while the authorized capital increased by 2.4%.  

The net retail lending portfolio increased by 34.1% annually. The net corporate loans in UAH increased by 8.1% annually. 

In 2018 UAH funds due to the public and business entities increased by 14.8% and 6.8% accordingly.  

In 2018, the value of new UAH deposits from businesses increased by 5.3 percentage points up to 14.5% per annum. As 

a result, the rate of return from banks' transaction decreased. At the same time, the retail sector is still highly profitable. 

An average weighted rate for UAH deposits is 11.7% per annum, while the rate for UAH loans is 31.5%. 

Deductions to the reserves made in 2018 were by 51.9% lower than those made in the previous year and the lowest since 

2012. The cover for non-performing loans by general reserves is sufficient, i.e., they cover 95.5% of the loan portfolio in 

general. The loan portfolio quality has been improving throughout 2018. 

The funding base is expected to grow in 2019 at the level of the previous year. Banks will still be interested in retail 

lending. The corporate portfolio growth that started in 2018 will continue. This will be facilitated by the expected 

reduction in interest rates in view that the NBU may turn to a milder monetary policy in 2019. 

The banks' key priorities for 2019 are to resume in full the corporate lending and to continue clearing balances of non-

performing loans.2 

The business environment of JSC  Lviv (the "Bank") is mostly the Western Ukraine's market.  

The population in Western Ukraine is 12.3 million persons (2.7 million live in regional centers), being 29% of the total 

population of Ukraine. 

Migrants from eastern regions have started to arrive since recently, so that a number of new enterprises is growing and 

the construction sector is booming. 

The region is well-known for its active micro and small business, well-developed small brands, dynamics of the local 

commerce, production, agriculture, tourism and hotels. 

The small and medium enterprises (SME) market in the Western Ukraine comprises more than 120 thousand registered 

enterprises, of which 87.8% are private entrepreneurs and less than 12% are legal entities. 

21% of registered enterprises are concentrated in Lviv, where the clients' concentration is high and there are many 

competing banks. 

Western Ukraine's regions offer more favorable combination of business potentials and competition; specifically it is so 

for SME. 

 

Information relating to managers and officials 

At the beginning of the reporting period, the Management Board acted as a collegial executive body composed of 5 

persons. 

                                                           
1 https://bank.gov.ua/doccatalog/document?³d=87170159  
2 https://bank.gov.ua/doccatalog/document?³d=88238661  

https://bank.gov.ua/doccatalog/document?id=87170159
https://bank.gov.ua/doccatalog/document?id=88238661
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Mykhailo Mykolaiovych Seniuk, Deputy Chairperson and member of the Management Board was removed from office 

with effect from 03/09/2018. Accordingly, at the end of the reporting period, the Management Board acted as a collegial 

executive body composed of 4 persons: 

 Ashot Gamletovich Abraamian, Chairperson of the Management Board; 

 Nataliia Osadchii, Deputy Chairperson and member of the Management Board; 

 Tamar Tkhelidze, Deputy Chairperson and member of the Management Board; 

 Viktor Semenovych Khimiak, Deputy Chairperson and member of the Management Board. 

The Management Board held 65 meetings in aggregate throughout 2018 (including those held under the working 

procedure). 

The Bank's General Shareholders Meeting resolved on 31/10/2018:  

 to remove from office, with effect from 31/10/2018, Konstiantyn Petrovych Malovanyi, Chairperson of the 

Supervisory Board and members of the Supervisory Board Margeir Petursson, Iryna Ihorivna Zaichuk, Taras 

Mykhailovych Khoma, Andrii Bohdanovych Tiutko; 

 to elected, with effect from 10/31/2018, Andrew Pospielovsky as the Chairperson of the Supervisory Board and 

Margeir Petursson, Richard Robert Scott, Potte Philippe George, Nazar Ivanovych Kupybida, Otten Thomas 

Josef as members of the Supervisory Board; 

 in connection with the liquidation of the Audit Committee, to remove from office, with effect from 31/10/2018, 

Andrii Ivanovych Rivak, Chairperson of the Audit Commission and members of the Audit Committee Tadei 

Stanislavovych Purkha, and Ruslan Rostyslavovych Kyryliuk. 

The Supervisory Board held 63 meetings in 2018. 

 

Availability of structural units 

The organizational structure of the Bank comprises the following structural units of the Bank: 

 Head Office; 

 Branches. 

The Head Office serves as the strategic management center that formulates the Bank's policy, in particular, relating to: 

the Bank's strategy; financial planning; product and service offering tailored to meet customers' needs; introducing new 

technologies; conformity of organizational structures; limiting the risk and security of the Bank; ensuring the functioning 

and development of internal controls; personnel policy and drafting internal normative documents; and implements 

separate operational tasks. 

A branches is a structural unit of the Bank, which key task is to attract and serve customers to ensure that the goals set 

out in the Bank's Financial Plan and the scheduled tasks of the branch are implemented. 

The network of Bank's branches covers seven regions of Ukraine (22 branches, of which 9 are in Lviv and 7 are in Lviv 

Region).  
 

Information relating to the purchase of shares  

During the reporting period, the Bank did not purchase its own registered ordinary shares at its own expense. 

 

Brief description of the current business model 

The Bank positions itself as a specialized provider of banking services for SMEs and agricultural enterprises, focusing on 

individual financing and high quality of customer service. It develops as the first-choice bank for private households 

intending to keep their savings in a local bank with a Swiss shareholder, offering simple products and high quality 

services. 

The Bank will continue focusing on the Western Ukraine, increasing its market share in an increasingly dynamic 

economic development of the region. 

The Bank's business model provides an adequate level of income sufficient to maintain the Bank's capital and liquidity at 

the level enabling a profitable operating activity and the Bank complying with requirements set out in regulations of the 

National Bank of Ukraine. 

 

Key products and services 
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Business customers. 

The Bank offers a full range of banking products for business customers depending on their needs, cash and settlement 

services, credit and non-credit products: 

 cash and cash service products based on functional and convenient electronic banking. In order to attract new 

customers, the Bank operates the Easy Start package offered at no cost for the first three months and the customer 

may practically verify the quality of the service offered by the Bank; 

 The Savings Account product enabling customers to earn, keeping their excessive short-term liquidity on the 

account; 

 Trade finance, i.e., guarantees from international organizations / banks for the development of trade finance, 

offering for customers letters of credit and guarantees for their international partners; 

 long-term investment loans at competitive interest rates, at the expense of the resources attracted from 

international organizations; 

 financing borrowers to cover 50 percent of the loan by a first-class guarantee issued by an international 

organization. 

Private customers. 

 simple and understandable deposit products: 

- saving account; 

- Fixed-term deposits with replenishments; 

- pension deposit; 

 overdrafts for salary customers; 

 cash loans with quick and centralized decision making; 

 Energy Saving loans; 

 mortgage loans. 

 

Awards received in the reporting period 

Based on results of awarding the Prostobank Awards 2018, the Bank's services were recognized as one of the best in the 

Ukrainian banking system in 2018 in the nominations: 

 2nd place in the Best Cash Loans 2018 nomination; 

 3rd place in the Best Consumer Loans Secured by Pledge 2018 nomination. 

The Bank was ranked among top 20 most reliable lending institutions in Ukraine in 2018, which ranking was prepared 

by Dragon Capital Investment Company3. 

 

2. Management Goals and Strategies for Their Achieving 

The Bank's strategy was approved under the resolution of the Supervisory Board, dated 05/02/2019 for the period from 

2019 to 2023. 

The Bank intends to become one of the top 5 SME banks in the Western Ukraine by 2022. 

In 2019 to 2020, the Bank will continue increasing its positions as a leading bank for SMEs and agricultural customers in 

the region, organizing seminars and events for SME customers, improving existing products for customers. 

The development of experienced business personnel potentials will remain one of the priorities and a prerequisite for 

achieving the planned business goals. 

The role of the branches will be focused on high-quality customer consultations. During 2019 to 2022, a number of sales 

points will gradually increase; specifically, new regional offices are expected to be set up. 

New visualization of branches will be introduced, together with marketing campaigns aimed at supporting the attraction 

of customers' deposits and new customers. 

The Bank will attract external financing from international financial institutions to increase its loan portfolio.  

                                                           
3 https://b³z.nv.ua/ukr/f³nance/dvadtsjatka-dlja-dov³r³-rejt³nh-najnad³jn³sh³kh-bank³v-ukraj³n³-v³d-nv-2511841.html  

https://biz.nv.ua/ukr/finance/dvadtsjatka-dlja-doviri-rejtinh-najnadijnishikh-bankiv-ukrajini-vid-nv-2511841.html
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The Bank will achieve a stable structural profitability. 

 

3. Resources, Risks and Relationships 

Key financial and non-financial resources, their use for achieving the goals 

In order finance its activities, the Bank: 

 receives support from shareholders to augment its share capital, so that the Bank's authorized capital was 

increased in 2018 by UAH 133 thousand;  

 attracts money from the public, 

 attracts funds from legal entities, 

 receives funding from international lenders: 

- the Bank and Nordik Environment Finance Corporation signed on 20/11/2018 a EUR 3,000 thousand 

loan agreement for financing energy saving projects and lending and medium enterprises and 

agricultural business.  

- The Bank and Trіodos Custody B.V. (Netherlands) and Trіodos SICAV II – Trіodos Mіcrofіnance Fund 

(Luxemburg), inclusive financial funds of Trіodos Investment Management (Netherlands) signed on 

06/12/2018 a facility agreement for the total amount of EUR 5 000 thousand to increase the loan 

portfolio of the Bank's borrowers, such as small and/or medium enterprises. 

- the Bank and German-Ukrainian Fund (GUF) signed on 12/12/2018 a UAH 30,000 thousand loan 

agreement under the support program for financing small and medium enterprise investment projects 

and EUR 2,000 thousand under the micro-lending program; 

- the Bank and responsAbіlіty Partіcіpatіons AG (Switzerland) signed on 27/12/2018 a loan agreement 

for the amount equivalent to USD 700 thousand (as of the date of issue, UAH 19,087 thousand) to 

finance commercial and investment projects related to agriculture, energy conservation, modernization, 

industry, service provision, etc. 

At the end of the reporting year, the Bank had a sufficient level of liquidity, as confirmed by exceeding the maximum 

liquidity limits set for commercial banks by the NBU: 

 H4 (instant liquidity norm) was 163.0% (while the norm was no less than 20%),  

 H5 (norm of current liquidity) was 85.9% (while the norm was no less than 40%), 

 H6 (short-term liquidity standard) was 85.6% (while the norm was no less than 60%).  

The Bank's capital is sufficient to fulfill the mandatory standards set by the NBU and to cover possible risks and losses: 

the norm of capital adequacy N2 was 20.6% by the end of 2018, while the normative value was 10%. Thus, the Bank has 

a sufficient level of capitalization for further development. 

The human resources (staff of the Bank) and their intellectual capital are the Bank's key non-financial resource. 

The purpose of the Bank's personnel policy is to ensure an optimal balance between the processes of updating and 

maintaining the quantitative and qualitative composition of the staff, in line with the Bank's needs to achieve the target 

financial results and observe the requirements of the applicable laws, taking into account the state of the labor market. 

The Bank introduced its own school of young bankers training at the beginning of 2018, so that graduates / graduates 

without experience in the banking system have the opportunity to start a career in the Bank. They undergo in-depth 

training, both theory and practice, in the branches within 9 weeks. The best of them are offered employment. 

The Bank conducts market researches on the banking services market in order to identify promising directions for 

promoting its products and services. These research data are used to develop and improve the Bank's product range. 

 

Risk Management System, Strategy and Policy 

The Bank's risk management strategy consists in creating an effective integrated risk management system for the adequate 

and continuous management of all risks that are typical for the Bank's model of risk and ensuring that adequate safety is 

in place at the Bank by fully integrating risk management into business processes, strategic planning and consistent 

development of business with certain appetite for risks. 

The Bank identified the following significant risk that shall be managed: 

 credit risk; 
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 liquidity risk; 

 bank book interest rate risk; 

 market risks; 

 operational risk 

 compliance risk 

Main objectives for the risk management: 

 Ensuring the fulfillment of business goals allowing to increase the Bank's value by identifying a level of the 

Bank's tolerance to risk; 

 delimiting functions and responsibilities of the Supervisory Board, Management Board, dedicated committees 

and units of the Bank in the process of risk management; 

 establishing a unified methodology for identifying and assessing risks inherent to the Bank's active operations; 

 establishing an effective system to support the adoption of management decisions, taking into account the level 

of the risks faced by the Bank; 

 ensuring the conduct of banking operations in accordance with the established policies, procedures and 

regulations; 

 ensuring the Bank's viability in crisis situations (in terms of a systemic crisis or near a systemic crisis); 

 optimizing expected profits and expenses and reducing the level of unexpected losses; 

 optimizing the risk control process at all organizational units; 

 ensuring the timely optimization of risks and taking measures to optimize them; 

 resolving conflicts of interest arising in the process of managing risks and creating provisions for covering 

possible losses. 

 

The purpose of managing certain risks faced by the Bank is to: 

 in relation to the credit risk, limit losses from the loan portfolio and minimize the risk of debts involving the loss 

of value, while maintaining the expected level of return and size of the loan portfolio. The key methods of credit 

risk management by the Bank: 

o avoiding risk (rejecting lending to unreliable customers, rejecting lending unreliable projects); 

o restriction of risk (creating insurance reserves, guarantees, limitation as broken down by branches, 

individual customers or groups of customers, transaction amounts, limits of powers, limitation of 

transactions involving securities as broken down by issuers and owners, etc.; diversifying the credit risk 

by region, industries, transaction periods; accepting a liquid collateral); 

o risk insurance for non-repayment of loans; 

o accepting risks, creating a hierarchical system for making credit decisions at the Bank 

 in relating to the interest rate risk, limiting possible losses as a result of changes in interest rates on the market 

to an acceptable level by forming the appropriate structure of balance sheet and off-balance sheet items, 

 in relating to the foreign exchange risk, limiting possible losses as a result of changes in exchange rates to an 

acceptable level by forming the appropriate foreign exchange structure of balance sheet and off-balance sheet 

items, 

 in relation to the liquidity risk, timely fulfillment of current and future (in particular, potential) liabilities taking 

into account the nature of current activities and needs that may arise as a result of changes in the market 

environment by forming the structure of the balance sheet and off-balance sheet commitments in the manner that 

provides for necessary resources,  
 in relation to the market risk, limiting possible losses due to changes in the market value of financial instruments 

to an acceptable level by optimizing a set of instruments vulnerable to changes in these market parameters, 

 in relation to the operational risk, enhancing security of the Bank's operations by improving the effective 

mechanisms adapted to the profile and scale, which are used to identify, measure, limit, monitor and report the 

operational risk, 

 in relation to the compliance risk, ensuring that the Bank complies with laws, accepted standards of conduct and 

functioning of the Bank as a trustworthy, honest, diligent institution, by eliminating compliance risk, 

counteracting the likelihood of events that may result in the Bank losing its reputation or image as a credible 

institution, and counteracting the risk of financial loss or the imposition of sanctions, which may result from 

violations of established requirements and principles of conduct. 

 

The complete process of significant risk management consists of the following elements: 
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 risk detection; 

 risk measurement; 

 risk control (managerial actions, including limits, insurance, rejection, acceptance, etc.); 

 risk monitoring. 

 

The Bank reacts to identified banking risks as follows: 

 accepting the risk, determining an acceptable level of risk and drafting emergency plans in case the specified 

level is exceeded; 

 reducing the risk, mitigating the influence of risk factors or their impact on its materialization (for example, by 

diversifying exposures to risk, setting limits, use of collateral); 

 transferring the risk, transferring responsibility for covering possible losses (for example, by transferring risk to 

another entity, using legal instruments, such as insurance contracts, storage contracts or property protection 

contracts, acceptance of guarantees); 

 avoiding the risk, abandoning the activities giving rise to the risk or eliminating the likelihood that a risk factor 

will occur, in particular, by setting zero tolerance to risk. 

The Bank uses the following risk management baking tools: 

 limits of tolerance to risk, 

 other limits and thresholds, 

 financial, quality objectives, performance targets used in the motivational system, 

 security, insurance and guarantees, 

 emergency plans, 

 control mechanism system. 

 

Relations with shareholders and related parties 

As of 31 December 2012, the following entities hold direct significant shareholdings in the Bank:  

 responsAbіlіty Partіcіpatіons AG, Switzerland, 51% of the share capital (decision No. 169 of the 

Committee on Banking Supervision and Regulation, Payment System Oversight of the National Bank of 

Ukraine, dated 23/06/2018); 

 New Progress Holding Limited Liability Company (Ukraine), 38.940537% of the authorized capital.  

The ultimate key participant in New Progress Holding is Margeіr Petursson, Icelandic citizen, who holds indirectly 

48.930326% of the Bank's authorized capital. The Banking Supervision and Regulation and Payment Systems Supervision 

(Oversight) Committee of the National Bank of Ukraine approved, under its decision No. 633, Margeir Petursson to 

acquire an indirect significant share in the Bank on 30 December 2015. 

The shareholders participated in management of the Bank thought members of the Supervisory Board: 

 Margeіr Petursson, Member of the Supervisory Board (shareholder); 

 Richard Scott, Member of the Supervisory Board (representative of the shareholder responsAbіlіty Investments 

AG, Head of Capital Division of Financial Institutions, responsAbіlіty Investments AG, Switzerland); 

 Pott Phillip, Member of the Supervisory Board (representative of the shareholder responsAbіlіty Investments 

AG, Managing Partner, I.D. Inspіrіng Development GmbH, Germany). 

In addition, with the joining of the new shareholder, responsAbіlіty Investments AG, the Bank signed the Bank 

management agreement for 5 years with I.D. Inspіrіng Development GmbH, German consulting company (Frankfurt am 

Main, Germany), which, in particular, provided for: 

 delegating three members of the Bank's Management Board, with their gradual replacement by local staff after 

three years; 

 continuous operational support in all functional areas of the Bank to be provided by Central and Eastern 

European teams of I.D. Inspіrіng Development at the request of the Bank's management.  

The agreement also contains provisions for achieving the indicators of the business model set out in the Bank's Strategy 

for 2019 to 2023. 

During the reporting period, relations with the shareholders were kept in accordance with the applicable laws. The Bank 

did not enter into transactions with related parties on the terms and conditions not consistent with the current market 

conditions. 

As at 31/12/2018, the actual value of the normative for the maximum credit risk for transactions with related parties (N9) 

was 9.96% (while the regulatory requirement was no more than 25%). 
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4. Results of Activities and Prospects for Further Development  

The Bank's net assets for 2018 increased by UAH 631,673 thousand or by 35.4 % and as of the end of the day on 31/12/ 

2018 amounted to UAH 2,414,615 thousand. 

The Bank's equity capital, taking into account the financial result in 2018 as of the end of the day on 31/12/2018 was 

UAH 234,497 thousand or 9.7 % of the Bank's net assets. During the reporting year, it increased by UAH 32,437 thousand 

or by 16.1 %.  

Loans and dues from customers of the Bank for 2018 increased by UAH 402,893 or 40.7 % and amounted to UAH 

1,393,762 thousand.  

The Bank maintains a stable high level of the proportion of highly liquid assets to total assets and, by the end of 2018, it 

amounted to 30.2% (28.9%, at the end of 2017). 

The increase in funds from customers for 2018 totaled UAH 340,558 or 25.1%, including funds of legal entities and state 

and public organizations for 2018, which increased by UAH 98,303 thousand or 17.5 % and amounted to UAH 658,159 

thousand, individuals' funds for 2018 increased by UAH 242,255 thousand or by 30.3 % and amounted to UAH 1,041,446 

thousand. 

Based on the results of 2018, the amount of funds attracted by the Bank from international financial institutions increased 

by UAH 98,154 or 90.5%. 

The Bank's financial results (net) for 2018 was UAH (47,826) thousand, which in particular was due to the recognition 

of loss from depreciation of the property transferred to the Bank as a pledgee in the amount UAH (25,963) thousand the 

cost of obtaining advisory services from I.D. Inspіrіng Development GmbH in the amount of UAH (18,423) thousand.  

Based on the results of 2018: 

 net interest income of the Bank was UAH 75,934 thousand (+ 58.3 % until 31/12/2017); 

 net commission income was UAH 56,274 thousand (+ 21.8 %); 

 net profit / (loss) from operations with foreign currency was UAH 5,853 thousand (+170.0%). 

 expenses for payment to employees were UAH (68,521) thousand (+ 64.7 %). 

 other administrative and operating expenses, excluding losses from devaluation of the property transferred to the 

Bank as a mortgagee, and the cost of obtaining advisory services from I.D. Inspіrіng Development GmbH 

amounted to UAH (52,139) thousand (+32.5%). 

As at 31/12/2018, the Bank does not violate any of the economic norms established by the National Bank of Ukraine.  

In 2018, IVI Rating National Authorized Agency increased the Bank's credit rating from uaBBB + to uaA -.  

The Bank operated in 2018 in accordance with expectations of the shareholders, management targets and strategy to 

achieve these targets. The main reasons for changes in the indicators during the reporting period in n comparison with 

previous years are significant activation of the Bank's business activities, increasing volumes of active and passive 

transactions, including at the expense of funds attracted from the new shareholder and international financial institutions. 

At the same time, measures were taken to reduce the amount of non-performing assets and, in particular, the assets 

transferred to the Bank as a mortgagee.  

As a new strategic shareholder joined the Bank, further increase in capitalization and resource base (including in the form 

of subordinated debt and loans from several international financial institutions) create preconditions for further dynamic 

development of the Bank and facilitate its higher profitability.  

The Bank's management understands the risks existing both for the banking sector in general and for the Bank in 

particular, which are due to external factors. For the time being, it is not possible to predicted all of the trends that can 

affect the banking sector in Ukraine and its economy in general, nor to assess what impact they may have on the future 

financial conditions of the Bank. However, the management are confident that they are taking all necessary measures to 

ensure stable operations and to develop the Bank in accordance with the approved Strategy and intend to implement the 

same in the long-term perspective 
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5. Key Performance Indicators 

During 2018, the Bank has improved its performances, i.e., the effective level of net interest margin as at 31/12/2018 was 

4.0 % (3.2 % as of 31 December 2017). As at 31/12/2018, the actual SPREAD level was 5.1 % (and 4.3 % as of 31 

December 2017). 

Due to the higher business activities as compared to competitors and banking sector in general, the Bank has managed 

based on results of the reporting period to strengthen its market position. Compared to the end of 2017, the Bank has 

moved to the 8th position in terms assets and, by the end of 2018, is ranked 36 by this indicator among 77 banks operating 

in Ukraine. 

The Bank's key performance indicators for the management and shareholders are, in accordance with Strategy approved 

for 2019 to 2023, are the return on equity (ROE), return on assets(ROА), cost-to-income ratio, etc. 

The target level of these indicators the Bank is striving to reach by implementing the Strategy by the end of 2023 are: 

ROE > 25%, ROА > 2%, Cost-to-income ratio = 50%. 

 

6. Information Relating to the Concluded Derivatives or Transactions with Derivative Securities  
 

No derivatives or transactions with derivative securities were made in 2018. 

 

7. Corporate Governance Report 

The purpose of activities  

In accordance with the Charter, the purpose of the Bank's activities is profits making by providing banking and other 

financial services in national and foreign currencies and carrying out other activities that may be authorized for banks in 

accordance with the applicable laws of Ukraine. 

Corporate Governance Code 

In order to ensure the stable operation of the Bank in the long-term perspective, achieving the best operational results, 

acquiring the ability to inspire confidence of Bank's partners and customers in the economic potential of the Bank, 

avoidance of conflict of interests, promotion of protection of interests of the Bank's shareholders, supporting the trust of 

depositors, creditors and the public, the Bank prepared in 2018 and approved, under the resolution of the extraordinary 

shareholders meeting, dated 06/03/2019, the Bank's Corporate Governance Principles (Code). The document is available 

on the Bank's website at https://www.banklviv.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/PRYNTsYPY-KODEKS-

KORPORATYVNOHO-UPRAVLINNIa.pdf.  

The Bank has been observing and not deviated from the Corporate Governance Code and has not made any decisions not 

to apply certain provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. 

Information relating to the general shareholders (participants) meeting held and the general description of 

resolutions passed at the meeting 

One ordinary general shareholders meetings and three extraordinary general shareholders meetings were held in 2018: 

No. 
Date of 

the 

meeting 
General description of resolutions passed at the meeting 

1.  26.04.2018 1. Electing the counting commission. 

2. Electing the Secretary of the meeting. 

3. Making decisions based on result of considering the report of the Supervisory Board for 2017. 

4. Making decisions based on result of considering the report of the Management Board for 

2017. 

5. Making decisions based on result of considering the report of the Audit Committee for 2017. 

6. Making decisions based on result of considering the auditor's opinion on the completeness 

and reliability of annual statements for 2017. 

7. Approving the Company's annual report for 2017. 

8. Distributing profits and losses. 

9. Early removal from office the members of the Supervisory Board. 

10. Electing Members of the Supervisory Board, approving the terms of civil law contracts 

concluded with the Chairperson and Members of the Supervisory Board, determining the 

amount of their remuneration, electing persons authorized to sign the civil law contracts with the 

Chairperson and Members of the Supervisory Board. 

https://www.banklviv.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/PRYNTsYPY-KODEKS-KORPORATYVNOHO-UPRAVLINNIa.pdf
https://www.banklviv.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/PRYNTsYPY-KODEKS-KORPORATYVNOHO-UPRAVLINNIa.pdf
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No. 
Date of 

the 

meeting 
General description of resolutions passed at the meeting 

2.  07.06.2018 1. Electing the counting commission. 

2. Electing the Secretary of the meeting. 

3. Approving the new wording of the Charter. 

4. Approving the new wording of the Regulation on the Supervisory Board. 

5. Approving the new wording of the Regulations on the General Shareholders Meeting. 

6. Increasing the authorized capital of the Bank by private placement of additional shares at the 

existing nominal value at the expense of additional contributions. 

7. Private placement of shares. 

8. Approving the list of investors, whom are proposed for placing the shares for which the 

decision on private placement was made. 

9. Determining the Bank's authorized that will be authorized to decide on early termination of 

agreements with the first owners (in the event of early achievement of the planned level of 

concluding agreements with the first owners and full payment of shares). 

10. Determining the Bank's authorized body that will be authorized to approve results of private 

placement of shares. 

11. Determining the Bank's authorized body that will be authorized to make decisions to 

disapprove the private placement of shares. 

12. Determining the Bank's authorized that will be authorized to return contributions paid for 

shares, if results of the private placement of shares is not approved within the statutory period, 

or if the charter is not amended (approved) within the period prescribed by the laws in relation 

to the increase in the authorized capital of a joint stock company, taking into account results of 

the placement of shares, or if decision is made to refuse the placement of shares. 

13. Determining the Bank's authorized body that will be authored to give written notice to each 

shareholder who has a preferential right to purchase shares of the joint stock company of any 

possibility to implement such right and to publish notice thereof in the official press.  

14. Determining the authorized person who is empowered to receive written confirmations from 

the shareholders of waiver of their preemptive right to purchase shares regarding which the 

resolution on placing has been passed (if required under the terms and conditions of the share 

placing). 

15. Determining the authorized person who is given the authority to perform the actions as to 

ensuring the Shareholders’ realization of their preemptive right to purchase shares with regard to 

which there was taken the decision on offering. 

16. Determining the authorized body that will be authorized to take actions to ensure the private 

placement of shares. 

17. Determining the authorized person who is given the authority to perform the actions on the 

obligatory redemption of shares from shareholders who exercise the right to demand the Bank to 

repurchase the shares held by them. 

18. Determining the Bank's authorized body that will be authorized to identify (approve) price 

of the placement of shares during the first and second stages of entering into agreements with 

the first owners in the process of private placement of shares. 
3.  31.10.2018 1. Electing the counting commission. 

2. Electing the Secretary of the meeting. 

3. Approving the new wording of the Charter. 

4. Approving the new wording of the Regulation on the Supervisory Board. 

5. Early removal from office the members of the Supervisory Board. 

6. Electing the Supervisory Board Members. 

7. Approving the terms of civil law contracts concluded with the Chairperson and Members of 

the Supervisory Board, determining the amount of their remuneration, electing persons 

authorized to sign the civil law contracts with the Chairperson and Members of the Supervisory 

Board. 

8. Terminating early powers of the members of the Audit Commission. 
4.  21.12.2018 1. Electing the counting commission. 

2. Electing the Secretary of the meeting. 

3. Changing the type of the joint stock company. 

4. Changing the name of the Bank. 

5. Approving the new wording of the Bank's Charter. 

6. Approving the new wording of the Regulations on the Bank's Management Board. 
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The personal composition of the Supervisory Board and the collegial executive body, their committees, 

information relating to the meetings held and a general description of the decisions made on them 

Personal composition of the Supervisory Board as of 31/12/2018 is as follows: 

 Andrew Pospielovsky, Chairperson of the Supervisory Board; 

 Margeіr Petursson, Member of the Supervisory Board; 

 Richards Robert Scott, Member of the Supervisory Board; 

 Pott Philip George, Member of the Supervisory Board; 

 Otten Thomas Josef, Member of the Supervisory Board; 

 Nazar Ivanovych Kupybida, Member of the Supervisory Board. 

Changes in the personal composition of the Supervisory Board in 2018: 

 26/04/2018, the Chairperson of the Supervisory Board Konstiantyn Petrovych Malovanyi was removed from 

the position; 

 26/04/2018, the member of the Supervisory Board Margeіr Petursson was removed from the position; 

 26/04/2018, the member of the Supervisory Board Iryna Ihorivna Zaichuk was removed from the position; 

 26/04/2018, the member of the Supervisory Board Taras Mykhailovych Khoma was removed from the 

position; 

 26/04/2018, the member of the Supervisory Board Andrii Bohdanovych Tiutko was removed from the 

position; 

 26/04/2018, Konstiantyn Petrovych Malovanyi was appointed to the position of the Chairperson of the 

Supervisory Board; 

 26/04/2018, Margeіr Petursson was appointed to the position of the member of the Supervisory Board; 

 26/04/2018, Iryna Ihorivna Zaichuk was appointed to the position of the member of the Supervisory Board; 

 26/04/2018, Taras Mykhailovych Khoma was appointed to the position of the member of the Supervisory 

Board; 

 26/04/2018, Andrii Bohdanovych Tiutko was appointed to the position of the member of the Supervisory 

Board. 

 31/10/2018, Konstiantyn Petrovych Malovanyi was removed from the position of the Chairperson of the 

Supervisory Board; 

 31/10/2018, Margeіr Petursson was removed from the position of the member of the Supervisory Board; 

 31/10/2018, Iryna Ihorivna Zaichuk was removed from the position of the member of the Supervisory Board; 

 31/10/2018, Taras Mykhailovych Khoma was removed from the position of the member of the Supervisory 

Board; 

 31/10/2018, Andrii Bohdanovych Tiutko was removed from the position of the member of the Supervisory 

Board; 

 31/10/2018, Andrew Pospielovsky was appointed to the position of the Chairperson of the Supervisory Board; 

 31/10/2018, Margeіr Petursson was appointed to the position of the member of the Supervisory Board; 

 31/10/2018, Robert Scott Richards was appointed to the position of the member of the Supervisory Board; 

 31/10/2018, Potte Philippe George was appointed to the position of the member of the Supervisory Board; 
 31/10/2018, Otten Thomas Josef was appointed to the position of the member of the Supervisory Board; 

 31/10/2018, Nazar Ivanovych Kupybida was appointed to the position of the member of the Supervisory 

Board. 

Changes in the personal composition that occurred in connection with the requirements of the applicable laws of 

Ukraine. 

No committees of the Supervisory Board were set up in 2018. 

During 2018, the Supervisory Board held 63 meetings, at which, in particular, the following decisions were made: 

 approving draft agendas of the General Shareholders Meetings; 

 approving the Bank's strategy and business plan for 2018 to 2022; 

 approving the Company's annual financial report for 2017; 

 approving the reports from the Internal Audit Service; 

 approving reports on stress testing of financial risks and their impact on the Bank's revenues and capital; 

 setting the threshold level of operational and technological risk (risk appetite); 

 approving conditions for the Bank obtaining loans from international financial institutions; 
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 approving changes in the Bank’s organizational chart; 

 approving resolution of the Management Board and the Credit Committee for implementation of / changes in 

conditions of individual lending transactions; 

 approving and changing regulations and internal regulations of the Bank.  

As at the close of business of 31/12/2018, the Bank's Management Board acted as a collegial executive body composed 

of 4 persons: 

 Ashot Gamletovich Abraamian, Chairperson of the Management Board; 

 Nataliia Osadchii, Deputy Chairperson and member of the Management Board (Corporate Business, Treasury, 

Marketing and Personnel); 

 Tamar Tkhelidze, Deputy Chairperson and member of the Management Board (Retail Business, Business 

Support, Back Office); 

 Viktor Semenovych Khimiak, Deputy Chairperson and member of the Management Board (Finance, Financial 

Monitoring, Administration and Accounting). 

Changes in the personal composition of the Management Board in 2018: 03/09/2018, Mykhailo Mykolaiovych Seniuk 

was removed from the position of the Deputy Chairperson of the Management Board in connection with changes in the 

organizational structure.  

The Management Board held 65 meetings throughout 2018 (including those held under the working procedure), at which 

the following decisions were made: 

 approving draft Strategy and Business Plan of  JSCB Lviv for 2018 to 2022 for further submission to the 

Supervisory Board; 

 approving conditions for the Bank obtaining loans from international financial institutions; 

 approving financial statements for 2017, approving interim financial statements; 

 approving reports on stress testing of financial risks and their impact on the Bank's revenues and capital; 

 approving the threshold level of operational and technological risk (risk appetite); 

 approving the compliance risk report; 

 reviewing audit reports; 

 approving the composition of the Bank's committees; 

 issues related to the management of risks related to legalization of criminal incomes / terrorist financing;  

 moving branches of the Bank; 

 approving the results of the tenders held;  

 determining the list of the Bank's related parties; 

 making changes in the staff arrangements of the Bank; 

 selling property taken in the possession of the Bank as a mortgagee; 

 plans and cost estimates for implementing individual investment projects; 

 approving and changing regulations and other internal regulatory documents of the Bank.  

In accordance with the Charter, the Bank's Management Board may delegate the resolution of certain issues falling within 

its competence as defined in the Charter, Regulation on the Bank's Management Board or the applicable laws of Ukraine 

to any temporary or permanent committees, commissions, working groups, etc., taking into account the requirements of 

the applicable laws of Ukraine. 

The organizational structure of the Bank provides for the functioning of such permanent committees: 

 The Credit Committee (in 2018, the Committee passed at its meetings resolutions for approving: financial limits 

for customers; new loans and refinancing; prolonging existing loans; changes in the terms and conditions for 

repaying loans; restructuring existing loans; granting exceptions from the standard terms and conditions for 

certain loans); 
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 The Assets, Liabilities and Tariffs Management Committee (ALTMC) (in 2018, ALTMC passed at its meetings 

resolutions related to: approving measures to ensure the necessary liquidity, defining key indicators and limits 

of currency risk, approving interest rates applicable to banking products, implementing treasury transactions and 

setting appropriate limits; approving tariffs for banking services; approving transfer prices for the calculation of 

the efficiency of the Bank's institutions / units; establishing individual tariffs and interest rates for bank products 

and services to certain customers); 

 The Credit Risk and Reserve Committee (CRRC) (in 2018, CRRC passed at its meetings, among other things, 

resolutions related to: approving the amount of the existing insurance reserves for active transactions in 

accordance with the approved procedures; approving PD and LGD for the formation of the reserves and 

recognizing the credit risk; results of stress testing of the credit risk); 

 The Operational Risk Management, Compliance and Information Security Committee (ORMCISC) (in 2018, 

ORMCISC passed at its meetings, among other things, resolutions related to: current and prospective plans for 

the development, implementation, operation, monitoring, review, maintenance and improvement of ISMS, 

operational risk incidents, reports on operational risk and compliance risk; violations of information security); 

 The Human Resource Committee (HRC) (in 2018, HRC passed at its meetings, among other things, resolutions 

related to Bank's staffing (hiring, transfer, reduction, dismissal), reviewing salaries of employees, disciplinary 

measures and incentives); 

 The IT Project Management Committee (ITPMC) (in 2018, ITPMC passed at its meetings, among other things, 

resolutions related to prioritization of the Bank relating to IT initiatives, approving the annual IT budget for 

making proposals to the financial plan of the Bank, approving applications for purchase of hardware and 

software; optimizing IT processes); 

 The Cost Control and Tender Organization Committee (CCTOC) (in 2018, CCTOC passed at its meetings, 

among other things, resolutions related to the selection of suppliers of goods and services through tenders for 

commercial offers; announcement of tenders and recognizing the successful bidders). 

 

The personal composition of the committees are as follows: 

The Credit Committee: 
The Bank has in place credit committees at the following levels (decision-making matrix): 

 
where: 

 CEO is the Chairperson of the Management Board 

 MBB is the Deputy Chairperson of the Management Board responsible for corporate business, treasury, 

marketing and human resources 

 MBO is the Deputy Chairperson of the Management Board responsible for retail business, business support 

and back office 

 MBF is the Deputy Chairperson of the Management Board responsible for finances, financial monitoring, 

administration and accounting 

 CRO is the Executive Director for Risks 

 CСО is the Head of Compliance Service 

 HCR is the Head of Credit Risk Department 

 DHCR is the Deputy Head of Credit Risk Department 

 HCRSME is the Head of SME Credit Risk Department 

 HСB is the Head of Corporate Business 

 HBD is the Head of Business Development 

 HRB is the Head of Retail Business 

 DHRB is the Deputy Head of Retail Business 

 HL is the Head of Legal Department 

 DHL is the Deputy Head of Legal Department 
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 HNPL is the Head of Problem Loan Department 

 RM is the Regional Manager 

 MCOORD is the Managing Coordinator 

 UW is the Credit Analyst (underwriter) 

 CNSLT is the Business Customer Consultant 

 SPR is the Retail Business Specialist 

 BM is the Head of Department 

 DBM is the Deputy Head of Department 

 

The Asset, Liability and Tariff Management Committee: 

 Chairperson of the Bank's Management Board is the Chairperson of the Committee; 

 Deputy Chairperson of the Management Board responsible for finance, financial monitoring, administration 

and accounting is the Deputy Chairperson of the Committee; 

 All other members of the Management Board; 

 Executive Director for Risks; 

 Head of Treasury and Cash Circulation Department; 

 Head of Financial Risk Department (Secretary).  

 

The Credit Risk and Reserve Committee: 

 The Executive Director for Risks is the Chairperson of the Committee; 

 Deputy Chairperson of the Bank's Management Board responsible for the corporate business, treasury, 

marketing and human resources is the Deputy Chairperson of the Committee; 

 Chairperson of the Bank's Management Board; 

 Head of Business Development Department; 

 Head of Corporate Business; 

 Head of Credit Risk Department (Secretary). 

 

The Operational Risk Management, Compliance and Information Security Committee:  

 Deputy Chairperson of the Management Board responsible for finance, financial monitoring, administration 

and accounting is the Chairperson of the Committee; 

 The Executive Director for Risks is the Deputy Chairperson of the Committee; 

 Chairperson of the Bank's Management Board; 

 Head of Compliance Service; 

 Head of Business Support Department; 

 Head of Operational Risk Department (secretary).  

 

The Human Resource Committee:  

 Deputy Chairperson of the Bank's Management Board responsible for the corporate business, treasury, 

marketing and human resources is the Chairperson of the Committee; 

 Deputy Chairperson of the Management Board responsible for the retail business, business support and back 

office is the Deputy Chairperson of the Committee; 

 All other members of the Management Board 

 Executive Director for Risks; 

 Head of Human Resource Department (Secretary) 

 

The IT Project Management Committee: 

 Deputy Chairperson of the Management Board responsible for the retail business, business support and back 

office is the Chairperson of the Committee; 

 Chairperson of the Management Board is the Deputy Chairperson of the Committee; 

 Deputy Chairperson of the Bank's Management Board responsible for the corporate business, treasury, 

marketing and human resources;  

 Head of Business Support Department; 

 Head of IT Department (secretary). 

 

Cost Control and Tender Organization Committee: 

 Deputy Chairperson of the Management Board responsible for finance, financial monitoring, administration 

and accounting is the Chairperson of the Committee; 

 Deputy Chairperson of the Bank's Management Board responsible for the corporate business, treasury, 

marketing and human resources is the Deputy Chairperson of the Committee; 
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 Other members of the Management Board who oversee the units that initiate costs / investments; 

 Head of Compliance Service; 

 Deputy Head of Reporting, Planning and Controlling Department (secretary). 

There were no violations of internal rules by the members of the Supervisory Board and executive body (Supervisory 

Board), which have caused damage to the financial institution or consumers of financial services in 2018. 

In 2018, the Bank faced with such sanctions as fines and penalties from the National Bank of Ukraine, Pension Fund of 

Ukraine, State Fiscal Service of Ukraine, National Securities and Stock Market Commission for the total amount of UAH 

184 thousand; no measures of influence were not imposed on the members of the Supervisory Board and the Management 

Board. 

The remuneration paid in 2018 to the members of the Supervisory Board amounted to UAH 1,337 thousand and, to 

executive body (Management Board) of the Bank, UAH 4,486 thousand. 

Description of the key characteristics of the internal control and risk management systems of the Bank 

 

The Bank's internal control system (ICS) is built on the following principles:  

 the constant and proper functioning of the internal control system allows the Bank to identify in a timely manner 

significant risks and deviations from the operational objectives and prevent their occurrence in the future;  

 accountability of all participants in the internal control system, i.e., the quality of control functions performed 

by each person is controlled by another participant of the internal control system;  

 division of responsibilities, the Bank seeks to avoid duplicating the control functions and these functions are 

distributed among employees so that the same person does not combine functions related to the initiation of 

transactions, their approval, accounting, and control;  

 appropriate coordination and approval of transactions, the Bank seeks to establish a procedure for the approving 

all transactions by authorized persons acting within their respective powers;  

 responsibility of all of the Bank's employees for the proper performance of control functions within the limits of 

their duties;  

 implementation of internal control on the basis of a clear interaction of all units and services of the Bank;  

 continuous development and improvement, the Bank seeks to create conditions for flexible adjustment of the 

internal control system, so that it can be adapted to take into account the need to solve new tasks and to expand;  

 timely giving notices of deficiencies, the Bank should have the strictest timing for transferring relevant 

information to persons authorized to make decisions on eliminating deficiencies;  

 regular evaluation of system efficiency;  
 ensuring the independence, organizational and financial separation of the Bank's internal audit unit and its 

functional accountability directly to the Supervisory Board. 

The ICS organization shall meet the following principles:  

 efficiency and effectiveness, organizing an ongoing process of internal control integrated into the current 

activities of the Bank and understandable at all levels of the Bank's personnel;  

 division of duties, ensuring the avoidance of a situation when one person has complete control over the function 

or activity of the Bank (separating control functions from transactions undertaken by the Bank);  

 comprehensiveness, covering all of the Bank's activities and all of its divisions;  
 Timeliness, creating the internal control system enabling to receive information relating to threats of losses faced 

by the bank before such losses are incurred; 

 independence, separating the function for evaluating the effectiveness of the internal control system from the 

functions of its organization and implementation;  
 Confidentiality, preventing disclosure of information to persons who are not entitled to receive it. 

The Bank's ICS covers:  
 Bank's Supervisory Board; 

 Bank's Management Board; 

 Internal Audit Service; 

 Compliance Service; 

 chief accountant and his or her deputies; 

 risk management unit; 

 heads of separate subdivisions; 

 unit managers and employees who carry out internal control in line with the powers set out in the internal 

documents of the Bank. 
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The Bank's Supervisory Board ensures that ICS is functioning and monitors its effectiveness within the limits of the 

powers provided by the laws, charter and internal documents of the Bank. The Bank's Management Board ensures that 

the ICS is organized. 

The Bank's risk management system, strategy and risk management policy are described in section 3. Resources, Risks 

and Relationships in this report. 

List of persons who directly or indirectly hold significant shareholding in the Bank 

 

No. 
Surname, name and 

patronymic of physical 

person or full name of legal 

person 

Type 

of the 

person 

Type 

of 

significan

t 

sharehold

ing
4 

 

Information relating to 

the person 
Description of the person's relationship with the bank 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

1. responsAbility Participations 
AG 

LE D Switzerland. 8005, Zurich. 
Josefstrasse, 59, registration 

No. – 338680458 

Bank's shareholder holding 51 % of the Bank's shares 
(decision No. 169 of the 

Committee on Banking Supervision and Regulation, Payment S

ystem Oversight of the National Bank of Ukraine, dated 

23/06/2018)  
2. NEW PROGRESS 

HOLDING Limited Liability 
Company  

LE D 17 Hoholivska Street, Kyiv, 

01054, Ukraine Registration 
Number 33694814 

Bank's shareholder holding 38.940537 % of the Bank's shares 

(written permit from the National Bank of Ukraine for the 
purchase of shares in accordance with decision No. 17/1, dated 

24/03/2006). 

3. Tangent Holding International 

B.V. 
LE I Netherlands, 2585GB, 

Gravenhage. Laan Copes v 
Cattenburch, 52. 

Registration Number- 
852481007 

The participant New Progress Holding Limited Liability 

Company "(a share of 86.23%), who holds 38.940537% of the 
bank's shares (decision No. 169 of the 

Committee on Banking Supervision and Regulation, Payment S
ystem Oversight of the National Bank of Ukraine, dated 

23/06/2018). 
4. Margeir Petursson  

 

I I Citizenship: Iceland. 

Iceland. Reykjavik 
1. Controller: 

 New Progress Holding Limited Liability Company 

(100%: directly, 13.77% and indirectly, 86.23%); 

 Tangent Holding International BV (100%): 

2. The acquisition of an indirect significant shareholding in the 

bank by Margeir Petursson was approved on 30 December 

2015 under decision No. 169 of the 
Committee on Banking Supervision and Regulation, Payment S

ystem Oversight of the National Bank of Ukraine, dated 

23/06/2018. 

Information relating to any restrictions on the rights of participation and voting of shareholders (participants) at 

the general meeting of the Bank 

The right to participate in and vote at a general meetings of the Bank shall be vested in the shareholders put on the list of 

the shareholders entitled to participate in the General Shareholders Meetings received from the National Depository of 

Ukraine as of 24:00 three business days before the date of the General Meeting.  

Otherwise, there are no restrictions on the of shareholders' (participants') rights to participate in and vote at the Bank's 

general meetings. 

The procedure for appointment and dismissal of the Bank's officials 

Pursuant to the Charter, members of the Bank's Supervisory Board shall be elected, decision for termination of powers of 

the Supervisory Board members shall fall within the exclusive competence of the Bank's General Shareholders Meeting. 

The following issues shall fall within the competence of the Bank's Supervisory Board: 

 appointing and dismissing the Chairperson and members of the Bank's Management Board; 

 appointing and dismissing the head of the Internal Audit Service and heads of other units of the Bank, whose 

appointment and dismissal fall within the competence of the Bank's Supervisory Board in accordance with the 

laws of Ukraine. 

The Member of the Management Board who is responsible for financial monitoring shall be appointed and dismissed by 

the Supervisory Board in consultation with the National Bank of Ukraine if the applicable laws of Ukraine so provide.  

Powers and authorities of the Bank's officials 

The Supervisory Board shall be competent to: 

                                                           
4 D is direct / I is indirect 
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1) approve the Bank's development strategy in accordance with the main directions of activities determined by the 

Bank's General Shareholders Meeting; 

2) approve the budget of the Bank and the Bank's business development plan; 

3) approve the budget of the Internal Audit Service and budgets of other branches of the Bank, which budget 

approval is assigned to the Supervisory Board in accordance with the requirements of the laws of Ukraine; 

4) determine and approve the risk management strategy and policy, the risk management procedure as well as the 

list of risks and risk limits and procedure for escalating risk limits violations; 

5) ensure the functioning of the Bank's internal control system and monitoring its effectiveness; 

6) control over the effectiveness of the operation of the risk management system; 

7) approve the plan for restoring the Bank's activities; 

8) decides to introduce significant changes in the Bank's activities; 

9) approve each year and regularly reviews the NPA management strategy (the "NPA strategy") and operational 

plan; at least once every three months, tracks the progress achieved in the previous period with all the indicators 

specified in the NPA strategy and operational plan and, if necessary, identifies the additional measures necessary 

to ensure the implementation of this strategy; 

10) determine sources of capitalization and other financing of the Bank; 

11) determine the Bank's credit policy; 

12) determine the organizational structure of the Bank, including the Internal Audit Service and other units of the 

Bank, which creation is within the competence of the Bank's Supervisory Board in accordance with the 

requirements of the laws; 

13) determine the nature, format and extent of information relating to risks, make decision on taking adequate 

measures to mitigate risks where the risk profile of the bank does not correspond to the approved risk appetite 

without delay; 

14) take measures to prevent conflicts of interest in the bank, facilitate their settlement and provide information to 

the National Bank of Ukraine on conflicts of interest faced by the Bank; 

15) approve regulation on the Internal Audit Service and regulations on other subdivisions of the Bank, which 

approval falls within the competence of the Bank's Supervisory Board in accordance with the requirements of 

the laws of Ukraine; 

16) appoint and dismiss the Chairperson and members of the Bank's Management Board; 

17) appoint and dismiss the head of the Internal Audit Service and heads of other units of the Bank, whose 

appointment and dismissal fall within the competence of the Bank's Supervisory Board in accordance with the 

laws of Ukraine. 

18) decide on terminating powers of the Management Board Chairman or Member and electing a person to 

temporarily perform the functions of the Management Board Chairman; 

19) control over the activities of the Management Board of the Bank, make proposals for its improvement; 

20) determine an operating procedure and plans of the Internal Audit Service and control its activities; 

21) select an audit firm to be engaged to conduct an external audit, approve the terms and conditions of an agreement 

to be executed with the audit firm, and establish a fee for its services; 

22) consider reports on external audit of the Bank and prepare recommendations to the Bank's General Shareholders 

Meeting for making decision on it; 

23) control over the elimination of deficiencies identified by the National Bank of Ukraine and other public 

authorities and management bodies, which within their competence exercise supervision over the activities of 

the Bank, the Internal Audit Service and the audit firm, based on the results of the external audit; 

24) make decisions regarding 

a) creating and participating in subsidiaries, structural and/or separate units, their reorganization and liquidation, 

setting up separate subdivisions of the Bank, approving their Charters and regulations; 

b) creating and/or participating in any legal entities, their reorganization and liquidation; 
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25) approve terms of civil law and employment agreements (contracts) to be concluded with the Members of the 

Bank's Management Board, and employees of the Internal Audit Service, setting their remuneration, including 

incentive and compensation payments. 

26) approve terms of civil law and employment agreements (contracts) to be concluded with employees of the 

Internal Audit Service, setting their remuneration, including incentive and compensation payments. 

27) ensure that the Bank timely provides (publishes) the accurate information on the bank’s activities in accordance 

with the applicable laws of Ukraine; 

28) control the Bank timely providing (publishing) the information relating to the Bank's corporate governance 

principles (code); 

29) make decisions on holding regular (annual) and extraordinary General Shareholders Meetings of the Bank; 

30) convene ordinary and extraordinary General Shareholders Meetings of Bank, prepare agenda of ordinary and 

extraordinary General Shareholders Meetings of the Bank, make decisions regarding the date of the meetings 

and on proposals to the put on the agenda, except for extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting of the Bank 

convened by the shareholders; 

31) give notice of the Bank's General Shareholders Meeting in accordance with the laws of Ukraine; 

32) make decisions on the Bank placing any securities, other than the shares; 

33) make decisions on redemption of the securities placed by the Bank, other than shares; 

34) make decisions on the sale of shares previously repurchased by the Bank; 

35) resolve issues concerning the Bank's participation in the banking group, industrial and financial groups and other 

groups (associations); 

36) make decisions for giving consent to a significant transaction if the market value of the property or services that 

are the subject matter of the transaction is 10 percent or more of the asset value according to the latest annual 

financial statements of the Bank or prior consent to such transaction, and give consent to enter into interested 

party transactions in the events stipulated by the Law of Ukraine on Joint Stock Companies; 

37) make decisions on establishing, if necessary, limits of the powers and authorities of the Management Board, 

collegial bodies and individual employees of the bank to made decision to enter into transactions, and delegate 

such powers to the Management Board, collegial body or individual employees of the Bank; 

38) make decisions on the selection (replacement) of a depositary and / or clearing institution, which provides 

additional services to the Bank, and approve the terms of the contract with it, set the amount of the fee payable 

for its services; 

39) send, in the events stipulated by the laws of Ukraine, offers to the shareholders of the Bank for the acquisition 

of their shares; 

40) approve the procedure for making transactions with Bank's related parties; 

41) approve, within the scope of its competence, the regulations governing issues related to the Bank's activities; 

42) approve the remuneration of members of the Bank's Management Board, the requirements to which are set by 

the National Bank of Ukraine; 

43) approve the report on remuneration of the members of the Management Board, requirements to which are set by 

the National Bank of Ukraine; 

44) set up a temporary counting commission upon convening of the Bank's General Shareholders Meeting by the 

Bank's Supervisory Board; 

45) approve the form and the text of the ballot paper; 

46) approve the market value of the property if required under the Law on Joint Stock Companies; 

47) review of the report of the Management Board and approve the measures on the results of its consideration; 

48) elect the Registration Commission unless otherwise provided by the applicable laws; 

49) designate the date of listing the persons entitled to receive dividends, procedure and term of payment of 

dividends, which shall not exceed six months from the date of the decision passed by the General Meeting on 

the payment of dividends; 

50) determine the date for listing the shareholders to be notified of the General Shareholders Meeting and entitled to 

participate in the General Shareholders Meeting; 
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51) issues falling within the purview of the Supervisory Board under section XVI of the Law of Ukraine on Joint 

Stock Companies I according to applicable law and arising in connection with and related to a merger, joining, 

split-up, spin-off or conversion of the company; 

52) determine whether the Bank is likely to be recognized insolvent as a result of its assuming or performing any 

obligations, including as a result of paying out dividends or redeeming the shares; 

53) resolve to elect an appraiser for the Bank’s property and approve terms and conditions of an agreement to be 

made with him and a fee to be paid for his services; 

54) approve the purchase price of shares and give notice thereof to a person (persons acting jointly) upon purchasing 

shares in the Bank based on results of acquiring a controlling shareholding by a shareholder of the Bank; 

55) approve recommendations to the Bank's General Shareholders Meeting based on the results of considering the 

opinion of the external independent auditor (audit firm) of the company to make decision to such effect; 

56) establish the procedure for controlling the financial and business activities of the Bank; 

57) approve the decision on the Bank's participation at the expense of its own funds and on an equity or investment 

basis in the economic activities of legal entities; 

58) consider preliminarily issues and prepare proposals to be submitted to the Bank's General Shareholders Meeting;  

59) review preliminarily annual financial statements; 

60) consider, approve, and review from time to time, the Bank's strategic plan; 

61) make decisions on the procedure for covering losses suffered by the Bank; 

62) make decisions to set up committees of the Supervisory Board; 

63) exercise of other powers stipulated in this Regulation or delegated by the Bank's General Shareholders Meeting. 

The Chairperson of the Bank's Supervisory Board shall organize its work, convene and chair at meetings of the Bank's 

Supervisory Board, perform other powers stipulated by the Charter and the Regulations on the Bank's Supervisory Board. 

The Bank's Management Board shall: 

1) resolve all issues related to the Bank's activities (except those that fall within the exclusive competence of the 

Bank's General Shareholders Meeting and the Supervisory Board); 

2) ensure the preparation for approval by the Bank's Supervisory Board of draft budget, strategy and development 

business plan of the Bank; 

3) implement the Bank's strategy and business plan; 

4) implement the risk management strategy and the policy approved by the Bank's Supervisory Board, ensure the 

implementation of procedures for the identification, assessment, monitoring and monitoring of risks; 

5) set up the Bank's organizational structure designated by the Bank's Supervisory Board; approve the staffing 

arrangements of the Bank; 

6) develop regulations regulating the activities of structural and separate units of the Bank in accordance with the 

Bank's development strategy; 

7) ensure the security of the Bank's information systems and the systems used for storing customer assets; 

8) inform the Bank's Supervisory Board of the performance indicators of the Bank, detected violations of the laws, 

internal regulations of the Bank and any deterioration in the Bank's financial position or threat of such 

deterioration, level of risks arising out of the Bank's activities; 

9) supervise the compliance by the Bank with the applicable laws of Ukraine; 

10) decide on the Bank organizing transactions, storage of funds and valuables of the Bank, accounting and reporting, 

internal control and other issues related to the Bank's activities; 

11) 11) set up committees of the Management Board, approve and amend the regulations on committees of the 

Management Board, make decisions for election (replacement) of committee members; 

12) consider and approve the regulations and other internal regulatory documents of the Bank, as well as amendments 

thereto, as the Chairperson of the Bank's Management Board or other members of the Bank's Management Board 

find expedient or necessary to submit for the collegial review of the Bank's Management Board and which 

approval does not fall within the competence of the Bank's General Shareholders Meeting and/or Supervisory 

Board , including those governing the business processes in the Bank; 
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13) make decision to enter into transactions within the limits of powers determined by the Bank's Supervisory Board; 

14) make a decision to enter into an agreement when the value of liabilities under one transaction or several related 

transactions does not exceed the equivalent of One Million US dollars (USD 1,000,000) in the national currency 

of Ukraine at the exchange rate of the National Bank of Ukraine in effect on the day of such decision, unless the 

Bank's Supervisory Board has established the other limits of authority of the Bank's Management Board.  

15) prepare drafts for approval by the Bank's Supervisory Board regarding the transactions, in relation to which the 

Bank's Supervisory Board is competent to make decisions; 

16) make cost estimates for profits and expenses, annual report of the Bank; 

17) subject the requirements of the applicable laws of Ukraine, determine the nature of information that may not be 

disclosed; 

18) having made the decision to reduce the Bank's Authorized Capital, notify of such decision in writing within 30 

days each creditor whose claims against the Bank are not secured by a pledge, guarantee or surety; 

19) submit proposals to the Bank's Supervisory Board regarding the holding of ordinary and extraordinary General 

Shareholders Meetings of the Bank; 

20) require the convening of an extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting of the Bank if any proceedings have 

been initiated to recognize the Bank as a bankruptcy or if a significant transaction is necessary, and otherwise as 

stipulated by the Charter of the Bank and the applicable laws of Ukraine; 

21) require convening meetings of the Bank's Supervisory Board; 

22) at the request of the Bank's Supervisory Board, members of the Bank's Management Board, participate in 

meetings of the Bank's Supervisory Board or consideration of separate issues put on the agenda of its meeting; 

23) If the Bank's activities are audited at request of a shareholder (shareholders) of the Bank, who owns (holds) more 

than 10 percent of the Bank's shares, give a response with information relating to the date of starting the audit 

within 10 days from the date of receipt of the request from such shareholder (shareholders) of the Bank in relation 

to the audit; 

24) if the Bank audited at request of a shareholder who holds more than 10 percent of the Bank's shares, provide 

certified copies of all documents upon request within 5 days from the date of receipt of the relevant request from 

the audit firm; 

25) give consent to receive additional information relating to activities of the Bank if the provision of such 

information is not mandatory in accordance with the applicable laws of Ukraine and the Bank's Charter; 

26) resolve issues concerning the participation of the Bank in unions and associations not aimed at making profits 

without violating the competence of the Bank's Supervisory Board provided for in clause 12.3.1 of Article 12 of 

the Charter and the applicable laws of Ukraine; 

27) consider issues the Chairperson of the Bank's Management Board or other members of the Bank's Management 

Board find expedient or necessary to transfer to the collegial decision of the Bank's Management Board; 

The Chairperson of the Bank's Management Board is an official of the Bank who manages all activities of the Bank in 

accordance with the powers vested in him or her under the Charter or by the Bank's General Shareholders Meeting, 

Supervisory Board, and bears personal responsibility for the tasks entrusted to the Bank's Management Board. 

Each member of the Bank's Management Board manages and bears personal responsibility for the work of the structural 

and separate divisions of the Bank subordinated to such member of the Bank's Management Board in accordance with 

the organizational structure of the Bank. 

Significant factors that affected the Bank's activities during the year 

Upon conducting its activities, the Bank is potentially exposed to the risks inherent in the banking business. 

In November 2018, the National Bank of Ukraine published a research related to systemic risk assessment in the financial 

sector dealing with how major banks and non-bank financial institutions perceive current and potential risks in the 

financial sector5.  

According to the research, the most significant risk factors are:  

 corruption, actions of law enforcement agencies and the judiciary; 

 state of cooperation with international financial organizations; 

                                                           
5 https://bank.gov.ua/doccatalog/document?id=82367650  

https://bank.gov.ua/doccatalog/document?id=82367650
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 political and social situation in Ukraine; 

 state of protection of rights vested in creditors and investors; 

 fraud and cybernetic threats; 

 quality of legislation and the tax system; 

 access to funding; 

 dynamics of world prices for commodities; 

 dynamics and volatility of the exchange rates; 

 war with Russia (military actions in the Eastern Ukraine); 

 competition on the financial services market; 

 dynamics of foreign capital inflow (including direct investments) into Ukraine; 

 asset value and collateral quality; 

 quality of human capital in the financial sector; 

 state economic policy (monetary, fiscal, etc.); 

 level of economic activities; 

 current and expected inflation; 

 potential bankruptcy and/or significant financial difficulties faced by financial institutions; 

 level and dynamics of real estate prices. 

The Bank has developed and implemented all of the procedures required under the banking law for risk management and 

control. 

Availability of risk management system at the Bank and its key features 

The Bank has created a risk management system ensuring continuous risk analysis in order to make timely and appropriate 

management decisions to mitigate risk and reduce associated loss (losses), which is based on the division of 

responsibilities between Bank's branches by using the model of three protection lines: 

1) the first line, at the level of the Bank's business units and support units that take risks and bear the responsibility 

for them and report on the current management of such risks; 

2) the second line, at the level of the risk management unit and compliance monitoring unit; 

3) the third line, at the level of the Bank's internal audit unit in relation to the verification and evaluation of the 

effectiveness of the operation of the risk management system. 

Results the internal audit (control) system operating during the year 

In 2018, the Internal Audit Service performed task related to the monitoring of the effectiveness of internal controls in 

the Bank in accordance to the Work Plan for 2018 approved by the Supervisory Board on 27 December 2017.  

The plan provided that the internal audit in 2018 shall be focused on directly relevant issues related to the functioning and 

development of the banking business processes, and efficiency and ensuring the control of banking transactions though 

comprehensive assessment of existing risks inherent to specific processes and their impact on the Bank. In particular, the 

internal audit in 2018 focused by way of priority and specifically on analysis and evaluation projects:  

 efficiency of the management in place in relation to the most relevant banking products; their development, 

maintenance and updating; 

 effectiveness of the control system in place in relation to deposit transactions with individuals and the rent of 

individual safe deposit boxes; 

 lending to small and medium-sized businesses; 

 formation of reserves for compensation for possible losses from active banking transactions; 

 effectiveness of the control system in place in relation to organizing electronic banking (functioning of remote 

channels of access to accounts of corporate and retail customers);  

 organizing the system and effectiveness of internal controls; 
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 processes of managing the liquidity risk and market risk.  

On a separate note, the audit was substantially focused on activities and consulting to maintain control and improve the 

processes of the Bank's information security management system (ISMS).  

Moreover, the internal audit covered in 2018 for the ongoing monitoring over the branches the implementing approved 

recommendations and plans for improvement of processes based on results of previously approved decisions of the 

Supervisory Board and the Management Board.  

The Internal Audit Service regularly reported to and informed in 2018 the Supervisory Board and the Management Board 

with respect to all significant issues related to the functioning of the internal control systems, their adequacy and reliability 

and the needs to improve and develop the same, etc. 

In addition, in 2018 the Bank: 

 set up the Operational Control Division; 

 divided functions of operational control (Operational Control Unit) and evaluation of processes construction 

efficiency, including in terms of their control (Internal Audit Service); 

 set up the Compliance Service. 

There have been no alienations of assets during the year in excess of the limits established in the Bank's Charter. 

There have been in 2018 no alienations of assets during the year in excess of the limits established in the Bank's 

Charter. 

Results of valuating assets in the event of their sale and purchase during the year in excess of the amount set 

forth in the Bank's Charter 

In view that there were in 2018 no transactions related to sale and purchase of assets in the amount exceeding the limit 

set forth in the Bank's charter, no valuation was carried out. 

Transactions with related parties carried out during the year  

At the end of the day on 31 December 2018, the balances on transactions with related parties were (in UAH thousand): 

 

Item Major 

participants 

(shareholders

) of the Bank 

Leading 

managerial 

personnel 

Other related 

parties 

Loans and advances to customers (contractual interest rate is 10.86%) - 168 35 685 

Loan debt provisions - (2) (424) 

Other assets 6 - 3 

Due to customers (contractual interest rate is 6.53%) 47 575 9 621 12 789 

Subordinated debt (contractual interest rate is 13.26%) 104 750 - 12 999 

 

At the end of the day on 31 December 2017, the balances on transactions with related parties were (in UAH thousand): 

 

Item Major 

participants 

(shareholders

) of the Bank 

Leading 

managerial 

personnel 

Other related 

parties 

Loans and advances to customers (contractual interest rate is 10.68%) - 5 38 225 

Loan debt provisions - - (118) 

Other assets 3 - 1 

Due to customers (contractual interest rate is 7.44%) 6 016 2 172 35 853 

Subordinated debt (contractual interest rate is 12.50%) 73 664 - - 

 

During 2018, relations with related parties were kept in accordance with the applicable laws. The Bank did not enter into 

transactions with related parties on the terms and conditions not consistent with the current market conditions. 

As at 31/12/2018, the actual value of the normative for the maximum credit risk for transactions with related parties (N9) 

was 9.96% (while the regulatory requirement was no more than 25%). 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To Shareholders and Supervisory Board of Joint-Stock Company Joint Stock Bank "Lviv"  
To the National Bank of Ukraine 
To the National Securities and Stock Market Commission 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Joint-
Stock Company Joint-Stock Bank "Lviv" (the "Bank"), 
comprising: 

- statement of financial position (balance sheet) 
as at 31 December 2018; 

- statement of profit and loss and other 
comprehensive income (report on financial 
results) for 2018; 

- statement of changes in equity (statement of 
equity) for 2018; 

- statement of cash flows for 2018 (by indirect 
direct method);  

notes to financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the financial statements attached hereto 
give, in all material respects, a true view of the Bank's 
financial standing Bank as of 31 December 2018 and 
its financial results and cash flows for the year then 
ended, in accordance with the Internationally 
International Financial Reporting Standards (the 
"IFRS") and requirements set out in the Law of Ukraine 
on Accounting and Financial Reporting in Ukraine with 
respect to the preparation of financial statements. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements 
that are applicable in Ukraine and are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key audit matters comprising the most significant evaluated risks of material misrepresentation, including 
evaluated risks of material misrepresentation due to fraud 

The key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. We have concluded that the matters listed below are key audit matters to be reflected in our report. 

28 Fizkultury Street 
Kyiv, 03150 

Ukraine 

 
 

T: + 380 (44) 284 18 65 

F: + 380 (44) 284 18 66 
 

info@bakertilly.ua 

www.bakertilly.ua 



 

ADVISORY  ASSURANCE  TAX  ACCOUNTING 
 

BAKER TILLY UKRAINE LLC trading as Baker Tilly is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which 
are separate and independent legal entities. 

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters 

Provisions for losses from impairment of loans and receivables from customers, funds with other banks are 
UAH 34,066 thousand. 

See Notes 6, 8, 9 and 4.4 

We focused on this area as a key audit matter due to the 
materiality of balances in such items as loans and 
receivables from customers, funds with other banks and 
subjective nature of judgments used in calculating the 

impairment.  

Provisions for impairment losses reflect management's 
estimate of loan portfolio losses and customer debt as at the 
reporting date. 

Expected loan losses under financial instruments have been 
evaluated in the manner that reflects: an objective and 
weighted likelihood amount measured by assessing certain 
range of potential results, time value of money, reasonably 
necessary and supporting information relating to past events, 
current conditions and forecasts of future economic 
conditions, taking due account of all reasonably necessary 
and supporting information, including forecast information. 

Any significant growth of the credit risk and impairment being 
identified and measuring an amount of the expected 
compensation shall include certain assumptions and analysis 
of risk factors, including borrower's financial standing, 
expected future cash flows, market prices that may be 
observed, fair value of the collateral.  

Using various models and assumptions may result in 
different evaluations of the provisions for impairment of loans 
and receivables from customers. 

Our procedures included, among other things: 

- Reviewing the internal control system put in place 
by the managerial personnel to the extent related to 
the measurement of provisions for losses from 
impairment of loans and receivables from 
customers, either on an individual or collective 
basis.  

- Moreover, we have assessed independently 
whether the management's judgments were 
appropriate regarding the use of calculation 
methodologies and input data relating to past 
events, current conditions and forecast information 
to calculate indicators for potential default and 
indemnification and collateral value.  

- We have tested on a selective basis the 
assumptions underlying the identified impairment 
and its quantitative assessment, including the 
analysis of borrowers' financial standing, forecasts 
for future cash flows and valuation of collateral. As 
regards the provisions for impairment of loans, for 
which no individual indications to the impairment 
have been identified, we have tested the models 
used and input data used in these models and their 
mathematic accuracy. 

We have found no significant discrepancies in these testing 
results. 

Other Information 

The managerial personnel shall be responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information contained in the Management's Report (report on management) for 2018, prepared in accordance with 
the requirements of the Law of Ukraine on Business Accounting and Financial Reporting in Ukraine and other 
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, and in the Securities Issuer Annual Information for 2018, which 
includes as a component of the management report a corporate governance report, subject to the Law of Ukraine 
on Securities and the Stock Market, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.  

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information referred to 
above when it is provided to us and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the works we have performed in relation to the other information received prior to the date of the 
auditor's report, we conclude that such other information is materially misstated, we shall be obligated to report such 
misstatement. We have not identified such facts that should be stated in the report. 

Responsibility of the Management and Those who Have Supreme Authorities for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
the IFRS and the Law of Ukraine on Accounting and Financial Reporting in Ukraine for preparing the financial 
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statements and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to continue as 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those who are vested with the supreme authorities are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit concluded in accordance 
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Bank's internal control; 

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the management;  

- conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern;  

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events so that 
the financial statements give a true and fair view.  

We communicate with those who have supreme authorities regarding the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings together with other issues, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.  

We also provide those who have supreme authorities with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those who have supreme authorities, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Requirements of the Other Laws and Regulations 

Other information required under article 14 of the Law of Ukraine on the Audit of Financial Statements and 
Auditing Activities 

In compliance with article 14 of the Law of Ukraine on the Audit of Financial Statements and Auditing Activities, we 
state in our independent auditor's report the following information that is required in addition to the requirements set 
out in the International Standard on Auditing: 

Designation and duration of the audit engagement 

We have been engaged to acts as auditors under the resolution of the Bank's Supervisory on 28 September 2018 
to conduct a mandatory audit of the Bank's financial statements for the year that ended on 31 December 2018. The 
aggregate duration of our audit engagement related to the mandatory audit of the bank's financial statements on a 
continuous basis, subject to any prolongations of the mandate that took place and repeated engagements shall be 
7 years. 

Rendering non-auditing services and independence 

We acknowledge that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, we have not provided to the Bank any non-auditing 
services prohibited by the law and described in paragraph four of article 6 of the Law of Ukraine on the Audit of 
Financial Statements and Auditing Activities. We, including the key audit partner, have been independent in relation 
to the Bank upon conducing our audit.  

We have provided the Bank with the following services, other than services related to mandatory audit that were not 
disclosed in the financial statements and Management Report: assessing the Bank's asset quality and adequacy of 
the collateral available for lending transactions as of 1 January 2018 to the extent relevant to the compliance with 
the Terms of Reference for resilience assessment of banks and the banking system of Ukraine as approved by 
Resolution No. 848 of the Management Board of the National Bank of Ukraine, dated 28 December 2017. 

Consistency with the additional report addressed to the audit committee 

We acknowledge that our audit opinion on the financial statements set out in this independent auditor's report is 
consistent with the additional report addressed to the audit committee, which functions are performed by the Bank's 
Supervisory Board. 

The management report being consistent with the financial statements 

Based on our audit findings and considering the knowledge and understanding of the Bank's activities and work 
environment obtained in the processing of auditing in all material aspects: 

- management report of JSCB Lviv  for 2018, which comprises as a separate section a corporate governance 
report prepared in accordance with the Law of Ukraine on Accounting and Financial Reporting, Instruction 
on the Procedure for Preparing and Disclosing Financial Statements by Ukrainian Banks approved by 
Resolution No. 480 of the National Bank of Ukraine, dated 24/10/2011 and other applicable legislative and 
regulatory acts, and the information contained therein is consistent with the financial statements; 
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- we have not identified any materially misstated information in the management report. 

Explanations regarding audit efficiency to the extent related to the identification of violations related to fraud 

Our audit objectives related to fraud are to identify and assess risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements by fraud, to obtain acceptable audit evidence to a sufficient extent in relation to the assessed risks of 
material misstatement by fraud by means of proper auditing procedures in response to such risks and to take 
necessary measures against actual or suspected frauds identified during the audit. However, those who have 
supreme authorities and the Bank's management shall be primarily responsible for preventing and identifying any 
fraud. 

Identifying and assessing potential risks related to 
violations 

Actions in response to the assessed risks 

Having identified and assessed the risks of significant 
misstatement to the extent related to the identification of 
violations, including, but not limited to those, related to fraud 
and non-compliance with legislative and regulatory 
requirements, our procedure was designed to include, 
among other things: 

- requests addressed to the management and those 
who have supreme authorities, including receiving 
and reviewing supporting documents related to the 
Bank's policies and procedures, for: 

- identifying, assessing and complying with 
legislative and regulatory requirements 
and availability of information relating to 
their violations; 

- identifying and reacting to any risks of 
fraud and any information available 
relating to any actual, suspected or 
expected fraud; and  

- internal controls put in place to reduce 
risks related to fraud or non-compliance 
with legislative or regulatory requirements. 

- discussing with audit engagement team members 
under what circumstances and at which stage the 
Bank's financial statements may be exposed to 
material misstatement by fraud, including the ways 
to commit the fraud. In the context of such 
discussion, we have identified potentials for 
committing fraud in such fields as income 
recognition, discarding control measures by the 
management; and 

- obtaining the understanding of legislative and 
regulatory acts applicable to the Bank and 
comprising the legal framework for its operations. 
By doing so, we focused specifically on those laws 
and regulations that had direct impact on the 
financial statements and influenced fundamentally 
the Bank's operations. The key laws and regulations 
we have considered in this context including the 
Law of Ukraine on Banks and Banking and 
regulations of the National Bank of Ukraine related 
to the licensing and prudent supervision, Law of 
Ukraine on Securities and the Stock Market, and 
applicable regulations of the National Securities and 
the Stock Market Commission, Law of Ukraine on 

As a result of the procedures we have carried out to identify 
and assess risks, we have not identified as the key audit 
matters any issues related to the potential risks related to 
fraud or non-compliance with legislative and regulatory acts. 

Our procedures to respond to the other risks that have been 
identified consisted, among other things, in: 

- reviewing disclosures to the financial statements 
and resting supporting documentation to assess the 
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations 
addressed in this section; 

- requests addressed to the management and those 
who have supreme authorities and internal lawyers 
with respect to existing and potential legal actions 
and claims; 

- performing analytical procedures to identify any 
unusual or unexpected mutual connections that may 
point to risks of material misstatement by fraud; 

- reviewing minutes of meetings of those who have 
supreme authorities and revising internal audit 
reports;  

- testing the adequacy of the information contained in 
financial records and adjustments; evaluating 
whether the judgments and decisions made by the 
management upon identifying accounting estimates 
point to their biased nature; assessing economic 
feasibility of significant transactions, which are 
extraordinary or not consistent with the ordinary 
course of business. 

We have also communicated the relevant laws and 
regulations and potential risks of fraud that have been 
identified to all members of the audit engagement team 
members and have been throughout the entire audit 
suspicious about any indications of fraud or non-compliance 
with laws and regulations. 
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Identifying and assessing potential risks related to 
violations 

Actions in response to the assessed risks 

Financial Services and State Regulation of Financial 
Service Markets. 

Other Matters 

Based on our audit findings and considering the knowledge and understanding of the Bank's activities and work 
environment obtained in the processing of auditing in all material aspects: 

- we have verified the information contained in the corporate governance report being a part of the Securities 
Issuer Annual Information for 2018 of JSCB Lviv as required in clauses 1 to 4 of paragraph three of article 
401 of the Law of Ukraine on Securities and the Stock Market has been prepared in compliance with the 
Law of Ukraine on Securities and the Stock Market and other applicable legislative and regulatory 
requirements and found that such information is consistent with the financial statements; 

- we believe that the corporate governance report being a part of the Securities Issuer Annual Information for 
2018 of JSCB Lviv, for which the Bank's management is responsible, contains all information required under 
clauses 5 to 9 of paragraph three of article 401 of the Law of Ukraine on Securities and the Stock Market. 

Other Laws and Regulations 

Reports required under the Law of Ukraine on Banks and Banking and the Regulation on the Procedure for 
Banks Submitting to the National Bank of Ukraine Auditor's Reports Based on Results of Annual Audit of 
Financial Statements approved by Resolution No. 90 of the National Bank of Ukraine ("NBU"), dated 
02/08/2018 

As required under the Law of Ukraine on Banks and Banking and the Regulation on the Procedure for Banks 
Submitting to the National Bank of Ukraine Auditor's Reports Based on Results of Annual Audit of Financial 
Statements approved by Resolution No. 90 of the National Bank of Ukraine ("NBU"), dated 02/08/2018, an audit 
report shall contain information (evaluation) relating to 

1) compliance (fair presentation) of the bank's assets and liabilities broken down by maturities in the file with statistic 
reporting indicators А7Х – Information on the Structure of Assets and Liabilities by Their Maturities, as prepared by 
the bank for further submission to the National Bank as of January 1 of the year next following the reporting one; 

2) bank's compliance with the requirements set out in legal and regulatory acts of the National Bank of Ukraine 
relating to: 

- internal control; 

- internal audit; 

- definition of credit risk exposure on active banking operations; 

- related party recognition and transactions; 

- bank's capital adequacy determined taking into account the bank's asset quality; 

- bank accounting. 

An audit objective is to express an opinion on whether the Bank's annual financial statements for 2018 present fairly, 
in all material aspects, the financial position of the Bank in accordance with the International Financial Reporting 
Standards. 

The information contained in this report is the result of our audit procedures within the scope of audit of the Bank's 
annual financial statements for 2018. This information has been derived from selective testing to the extent 
necessary for planning and conducting of audit procedures in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. 

The report has been prepared solely for the information and use by the Bank's management and the National Bank 
of Ukraine and may not be used by any other party. A limited scope of procedures shall be considered in reading 
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this report regarding the assessment of issues related to the Bank's activities, organization of accounting and 
internal controls. 

Furthermore, consideration shall be given to the fact that our criteria for assessing issues related to the Bank's 
activities, organization of accounting and internal controls may differ from those applied by the National Bank of 
Ukraine. 

As a result of our audit procedures within the scope of audit of the annual financial statements, we provided 
information (estimates) with respect to the above issues: 

As a result of our audit procedures within the scope of the annual audit, we have found discrepancies related to the 
Bank reflecting information relating to the bank's assets and liabilities broken down by maturities in the file with 
statistic reporting indicators А7Х – Information on the Structure of Assets and Liabilities by Their Maturities, as 
prepared by the bank for further submission to the National Bank as of January 1 of the year next following the 
reporting one, including, in particular, as of 01/01/2019. 

Thus, having verified, on a selective basis, some operations of the Bank, we have found the following discrepancies: 

Assets / Liabilities Indebtedness as of 
31.12.2018 (UAH) 

According to the data in 
the Bank's form 631 

According to the selective 
inspection data 

Loans and receivables from 
customers 

1 349 652,37 from 32 days to 365 
(366) days 

 

 20 580 382,76 from 366 days to 2 years  

 80 241 484,55 from 2 to 5 years  

 109 613,62 Overnight (on 1st day)  

 273,72 from 2 to 31 days  

 32 579 177,14 
 

from 32 days to 365 (366) 
days 

 35 350 857,99  from 366 days to 2 years 

 34 241 484,55  from 2 to 5 years 

 273,72  maturity overdue 

 109 613,62  Overnight (on 1st day) 

Due to customers 3 691 294,97 from 32 days to 365 
(366) days 

 

 202 222,06 from 2 to 5 years  

 3 893 517,03 
 

from 2 to 31 days 

Lending liabilities 469 906,19 maturity overdue    
469 906,19 

 
from 32 days to 365 (366) 
days 

 

Regarding the bank's compliance with the requirements set out in legal and regulatory acts of the National Bank of 
Ukraine relating to: 

internal control  

As a result of our audit procedures within the scope of audit of the annual financial statements, we have identified 
no evidence that the structure and arrangements of the Bank's internal controls do not meet the statutory 
requirements of the NBU, in particular, Resolution No. 867 of the National Bank of Ukraine on Approval of the 
Regulations on the Organization of Internal Control in Banks of Ukraine, dated 29 December 2014. 

internal audit 

We believe that as of the audit date the Bank's internal regulations governing the internal audit procedures comply 
with the statutory requirements of the NBU, including, Resolution No. 311 of the National Bank of Ukraine on 
Approval of the Regulations on the Organization of Internal Audit in Banks of Ukraine, dated 10 May 2016. Internal 
audit procedures are performed in compliance with the requirements of the Bank's internal policies and regulations. 

Regarding the definition of credit risk exposure on active banking operations  
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The amount of credit risk as at the reporting date is calculated by the Bank in accordance with the requirements of 
the National Bank's regulations, including the Regulation on the Assessment by Ukrainian Banks of Credit Risk for 
Active Banking Operations, as approved by Resolution No. 351 of the Board of the National Bank of Ukraine, dated 
30 June 2016 ("NBU Resolution No. 351"). 

As a result of conducting audit procedures as part of the audit of the annual financial statements, we have not 
detected any material deviations with respect to the Bank's credit risk exposure calculation as at 31 December 2018. 

regarding the related party recognition and transactions 

As a result of our audit procedures within the scope of audit of the annual financial statements, we have identified 
no evidence of non-compliance of the Bank's risk management system in terms of related party transactions and 
related party identification and transaction procedures with the statutory requirements of the NBU. During our audit, 
we have identified no violations of the statutory requirements in transactions with related parties.  

regarding the bank's capital adequacy determined taking into account the bank's asset quality; 

The Bank's share capital as at 31 December 2018 was adequate and amounted to UAH 438 405 thousand (see 
Note 26 "Share Capital and Share Premium"). The Banks has registered during the year an increase in the Bank's 
share capital by way of private placement of additional shares with the current par value at the expense of additional 
contributions in the total amount of UAH 133 000 thousand, including: 
- according to minutes of the Bank's General Shareholders Meeting dated 30.08.2017 in the amount of 
UAH 33 500 thousand, 
- according to minutes of the Bank's General Shareholders Meeting dated 07.06.2018 in the amount of 
UAH 99 500 thousand. 
As at 31 December 2018, according to the Bank's data, the Bank's regulatory capital amounted to 
UAH 361 022 thousand as required by regulations of the NBU (see Note 38 "Capital Management"). 

regarding the bank accounting 

The Bank's accounting system generally meets the regulatory requirements of the NBU and the Bank's accounting 
policies. 

 

Reports required under the Requirements to an Auditor's Report to be Submitted to the National Securities 
and Stock Market Commission upon Obtaining a License for Engaging in Professional Activities on the 
Securities as approved by decision No. 160 of the National Securities and Stock Market Commission, dated 
12/02/2013. 

In accordance with the Requirements to an Auditor's Report to be Submitted to the National Securities and Stock 
Market Commission upon Obtaining a License for Engaging in Professional Activities on the Securities as approved 
by decision No. 160 of the National Securities and Stock Market Commission ("NSSMC"), dated 12/02/2013, we 
provide the following information and conclusions: 

basis data relating to the Bank 

The full name is Joint-Stock Company Joint Stock Bank Lviv  

legal entity's identification code in the Unified State Register of Enterprises and Organizations set out in the Unified 
State Register of Legal Entities, Individual Entrepreneurs and Public Organizations is 09801546 

Place of business is 1 Serbska Street, Lviv, 79008, Ukraine  

state registration date is 12/08/2008 

Principal activities are other types of monetary intermediation; 

date of amendments to the constituent documents: the Bank's Charter as amended and restated was approved by 
the general shareholders meeting on 06/03/2019 and approved by NBU on 25/03/2019 

list of participants (shareholders) (for individuals, given name, patronymic and surname; for legal entities, 
organizational and legal form, place of business) who own 5 % and more of the shares (participatory interests) as 
of the date of the auditor's report with the indication of the actual amount: - responsAbіlіty Partіcіpatіons AG 
(Switzerland) – 51% of the authorized capital; New Progress Holding Limited Liability Company (Ukraine) – 
38,940537% of the authorized capital; Frontmost Limited (Cyprus) – 9,989789% 
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regarding the owner's equity according to the figures of applicant's financial statements prepared for the last 
reporting period preceding the date of filing the application for license being in compliance with the requirements 
set out in the regulatory acts of the Commission 

The Bank's equity according to the financial statements is UAH 234 497 thousand as of 31/12/2018. The Bank's 
regulatory capital is in compliance with the regulatory and legal acts of the National Bank of Ukraine. The Bank's 
capital meets, according to the audit findings, the requirements set out in regulatory and legal acts of the NSSMC.  

regarding the authorized capital being consistent with the constituent documents  

The Bank's share capital as at 31/12/2018 meets the Bank's constituent documents and amounts to UAH 
438 405 thousand. The Banks has registered during the year an increase in the Bank's share capital by way of 
private placement of additional shares with the current par value at the expense of additional contributions in the 
total amount of UAH 133 000 thousand, including: 
- according to minutes of the Bank's General Shareholders Meeting dated 30.08.2017 in the amount of 
UAH 33 500 thousand, 
- according to minutes of the Bank's General Shareholders Meeting dated 07.06.2018 in the amount of 
UAH 99 500 thousand. 

regarding the formation and payment of the authorized capital (paid in full or in part, documents (with the indication 
of the title, date, number), based on which the auditor's opinion is issued). If the authorized capital has not been 
paid in full, an amount of the paid-up and non-paid-up part of the authorized capital shall be indicated 

According to the audit findings and pursuant to letter No. 27-0006/22755 dated 25.04.2019 the amount of the 
registered and actually paid-up of authorized capital of the Bank as of 04.01.2019 is UAH 438 405 thousand. The 
authorized capital has been formed out of cash. 

We hereby provide the information regarding formation of the Bank's authorized fund during 2014-2018: 

Minutes of the Bank's 
GSM 

Resolution on Share Capital Document re increase/payment 

dated 01.08.2014 increase of the Bank's share capital by way of 
private placement of additional shares with 
current par value at the expense of additional 
contributions in the amount of UAH 7 500 000. 

payment orders: No. 140 dated 17.10.2014 in 
the amount of UAH 9 652,50, No. 119 dated 
29.09.2014 in the amount of 
UAH 7 490 347,50 

dated 20.02.2015 increase of the Bank's share capital by way of 
private placement of additional shares with 
current par value at the expense of additional 
contributions in the amount of UAH 15 000 000. 

payment orders: No. 06/05 dated 06.05.2015 
in the amount of UAH 14 981 835, No. 74 
dated 14.05.2015 in the amount of 
UAH 18 165 

dated 02.07.2016 increase of the Bank's share capital by way of 
private placement of additional shares with 
current par value at the expense of additional 
contributions in the amount of UAH 37 500 000. 

payment orders: No. 440107 dated 
31.08.2016 in the amount of 
UAH 31 051 564,70, No. 1 dated 31.08.2016 
in the amount of UAH 7 879 575,25 (incl. 
share premium UAH 1 431 139,95) 

dated 30.08.2017 increase of the Bank's share capital by way of 
private placement of additional shares with 
current par value at the expense of additional 
contributions in the amount of UAH 33 500 000. 

payment order No. 1 dated 22.11.2017 in the 
amount of UAH 33 500 000 

dated 07.06.2018 increase of the Bank's share capital by way of 
private placement of additional shares with 
current par value at the expense of additional 
contributions in the amount of UAH 99 500 000. 

payment orders: No. 1 dated 20.09.2018 in 
the amount of UAH 9 830 600, No. 454154 
dated 28.09.2018 in the amount of 
UAH 464 400, No. 1 dated 28.09.2018 in the 
amount of UAH 84 651 000, No. 1 dated 
01.10.2018 in the amount of UAH 1 864 000, 
No. 257 dated 18.09.2018 in the amount of 
UAH 2 690 000 

 

regarding the applicant having no overdue obligations for payment of taxes (tax debt available / not available) and 
duties, outstanding penalties for violating the laws on financial services, including violations occurring on the 
securities market 
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As of 31.12.2018 the Bank has no any overdue obligations for payment of taxes and duties, as well as any 
obligations for payment of penalties for violating the laws on financial services, including violations occurring on the 
securities market. 

regarding the areas of application of the funds contributed to form the authorized capital of a legal entity who, in line 
with its charter, intends to be engaged in professional activities on the securities market starting from the date of 
incorporation or the date of amending the charter in relation to the principal activities of the company. 

According to the Bank, all of the contributions to the Bank's authorized capital have been applied to carry out the 
Bank's statutory activities.  

regarding the applicant's related persons found out during the audit by performing procedure for auditing the 
financial statements 

Upon performing procedures for auditing the financial statements, there have been found out no related parties not 
identified by the Bank, transactions with whom are not disclosed in Note 46 – Related Party Transactions. 

regarding the availability and scope of unforeseen assets and/or liabilities, which are very likely to be recognized on 
the balance sheet 

Upon performing procedures for auditing the financial statements, we have not been found any contingent assets 
and/or liabilities, which are very likely to be recognized on the balance sheet, save for the information disclosed in 
Note 40 – Bank's Potential Liabilities. 

regarding any events occurring after the date of the balance sheet, which were not reflected in the financial 
statements, but may have significant impact on the applicant's financial standing 

Upon performing procedures for auditing the financial statements, we have not found any events occurring after the 
date of the balance sheet, which were not reflected in the financial statements, but may have significant impact on 
the Bank's financial standing (see Note 49 – Subsequent Events). 

regarding the existence of other factors and circumstances that may have significant effects on the applicant's 
operations in future and assessing a degree of their impact 

Based on the audit findings, we have not found out any facts or circumstances, which may have significant effects 
on the Bank's operations in future. 

In particular, we believe that the composition and structure of the Bank's financial investments pose no threat to the 
Bank's operation in future. 

As of 31/12/2018, the composition and structure of the Bank's financial investments are presented by investments 
in deposit certificates of the NBU for the book value of UAH 250 491 thousand and domestic government loan bonds 
for the book value of UAH 138 901 thousand (see Note 10 – Investments in Securities) 

regarding the other financial information required under the laws 

Our audit of the Bank's financial statements did not concern any other financial information in accordance with the 
laws, other than the information contained in the Bank's financial statements for 2018 and the information set out in 
this section of the report with respect to the other laws and regulations.  

basic information relating to the terms and conditions of the audit agreement 

date and number of the audit agreement: No. 196/18, dated 28/09/2018 

audit start and end dates: 15/11/2018 and 20/04/2019 

 

Key Audit Partner 

Serhii Anatoliiovych Kesariev is the partner of the audit task from which this Independent Auditor's Report results. 

 

General Director 

BAKER TILLY UKRAINE LLC       Oleksandr Pochkun 

Number of auditor's registration with the Register of Auditors and Auditing Entities: No. 100810.  
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (STATEMENT OF EQUITY) 
FOR 2018 

          (UAH, ths.) 

Item Notes Attributable to owners of the Bank 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

Balance as of 31.12.2016 (before 

reassessment) 

  
272 870 230 38 931 - 63 220 (197 279) 177 972 - 177 972 

Effect of changes in accounting policy, 

correction of errors and effect of transfer to 

new and/or revised standards and 

interpretations 

  

- - - - - - - - - 

Adjusted balance as of 31.12.2016   272 870 230 38 931 - 63 220 (197 279) 177 972 - 177 972 

Total comprehensive income   - - - - 9 180 (40 776) (31 596) - (31 596) 

profit/(loss) for the year   - - - - - (40 776) (40 776) - (40 776) 

other comprehensive income   - - - - 9 180 - 9 180 - 9 180 

Unregistered share capital   - - (5 431) - - - (5 431) - (5 431) 

Transactions with shareholders   - 22 184 - - - - 22 184 - 22 184 

Share issue:   37 500 1 431 - - - - 38 931 - 38 931 

nominal value   37 500 - - - - - 37 500 - 37 500 

share premium   - 1 431 - - - - 1 431 - 1 431 

Balance as of 31.12.2017   310 370 23 845 33 500 - 72 400 (238 055) 202 060 - 202 060 

 

  





JSCB “LVIV” 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 

(UAH, thousand)   

 

43 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
(INDIRECT METHOD) FOR 2018 

 
  (UAH, ths.) 

Item Notes 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES       

Profit/(loss) before tax   (49 986) (35 688) 

Adjustments:       

Depreciation and amortization   6 716 5 139 

Net increase/(decrease) in provisions for impairment of assets   23 328 672 

Amortization of discount/(premium)   3 972 2 838 

Result of transactions in financial derivatives  (58) - 

(Accrued income)   (1 947) (5 199) 

Accrued expenses   1 610 151 

Net loss/(income) from investing activities   1 843 (205) 

Other non-monetary cash flows   (8 042) (10 168) 

Net cash profit/(loss) from operating activities before changes in 

operating assets and liabilities 
  (22 564) (42 460) 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities    

Net (increase)/decrease in securities held-to-maturity   (78 374) (87 304) 

Net (increase)/decrease in loans and advances to banks   (3 939) (2 774) 

Net (increase)/decrease in loans and advances to customers   (425 339) (225 758) 

Net (increase)/decrease in other financial assets   (812) 10 031 

Net (increase)/decrease in other assets   (706) 24 167 

Net increase/(decrease) in due to banks   (2 000) - 

Net increase/(decrease) in due to customers   328 206 322 222 

Net increase/(decrease) in provisions for liabilities   155 - 

Net increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities   17 475 (10 760) 

Net increase/(decrease) in other liabilities   3 885 411 

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities before income taxes   (184 013) (12 225) 

Income tax paid   - (7 885) 

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities   (184 013) (20 110) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES       

Acquisition of investment property   - (44) 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment    (40 015) (13 160) 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment   20 131 8 222 

Acquisition of intangible assets   (5 703) (2 995) 

Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets  1 867 - 

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities   (23 720) (7 977) 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

 

Note 1. Bank information 

Bank name. 

Joint-Stock Company “Joint-Stock Commercial Bank “Lviv”, abbreviated name – JSCB “Lviv”, hereinafter - JSCB 

“Lviv” or the Bank. 

To make the Bank's activity complaint with the requirements of the Ukrainian legislation on 14.11.2018 the General 

Shareholders Meeting of the Bank has made a decision to change the type of the joint-stock company from public to 

private, to change the name of the Bank, to approve the restated Charter of the Bank. On 08.04.2019 the restated Charter 

of JSCB "Lviv" was registered in the Unified State Register of Legal Entities, Individual Entrepreneurs and Public 

Formations. 

On 14 October 1991, Commercial Bank "Lviv" was incorporated as a Limited Liability Company and registered by the 

National Bank of Ukraine under No. 28. On 16 September 1993, the Bank was converted into a Closed Joint-Stock 

Company Joint-Stock Commercial Bank "Lviv" based on the decision of the Meeting of the Bank Members. On 15 

November 2001, according to the Decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders, it was renamed into Closed Joint-

Stock Company Joint-Stock Commercial Bank "Lviv" in correspondence with the Laws of Ukraine "On Business 

Associations" and "On Banks and Banking", "On Securities and Stock Market", other legislative actions of Ukraine and 

regulatory legal acts of the National Bank of Ukraine. On 17 January 2008, upon the Decision of the General Meeting of 

Shareholders Closed Joint-Stock Company Joint-Stock Commercial Bank "Lviv" changed its name to Open Joint-Stock 

Company Joint-Stock Commercial Bank "Lviv", which acts as a legal successor of all rights and obligations of CJSCB 

"Lviv". 

Subject to the decision of the General Shareholders Meeting dated 14.09.2009 due to making the Charter compliant with 

the Law of Ukraine "On Joint-Stock Companies", the name of the Open Joint-Stock Company Joint-Stock Commercial 

Bank "Lviv" was changed to Public Joint-Stock Company Joint-Stock Commercial Bank "Lviv". 

 

Location of the Bank. 

1 Serbska St., Lviv, Ukraine. 

In 2017-2018, no changes were made to the location of JSCB “Lviv”. 

 

Country of incorporation. 

The Bank is incorporated and operates in Ukraine. 

 

Name and location of the Parent Company. Name of the largest Parent Company of the Group. 

The Bank is part of a unified banking system of Ukraine and is an independent entity. 

 

Business legal structure of the Bank.  

Private Joint-Stock Company. 

 

Nature of the Bank's operations and core activities, its specialization. 

During the reporting period JSCB “Lviv” operated as a universal commercial Bank. 

According to the Charter the main purpose of the Bank’s activities is earning profit by providing banking and other 

financial services in national and foreign currency and conducting other activities that may be allowed for banks according 

to the current legislation of Ukraine. If there is a license, permission or consent (agreement) of the National Bank of 

Ukraine, Securities an Stock Market State Commission, State Property Fund of Ukraine, or any other authorities, required 

for conducting activities foreseen by the Charter, the Bank conducts such activity after obtaining such licenses, 

permissions or consents (agreements). 

The supreme governing body of the Bank is the General Meeting of Shareholders defining the mission, philosophy and 

strategy of the activities. Regulatory authority that supervises the activities of the Bank is the Supervisory Board. The 

Bank Supervisory Board represents the shareholders’ interests in the period between the Members’ General Meetings. 

The Board as the executive body of the Bank is responsible for the ongoing management of its activities. 
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Note 1. Bank information (continued) 

The Bank operates according to the banking license No. 54 and the general license for conducting of currency transactions 

No. 54 issued by the National Bank of Ukraine on 26.10.2011. 

According to the banking license No. 54 of 26.10.2011 the Bank has a right to provide banking services, determined in 

the third part of Article 47 of the law of Ukraine “On Banks and Banking” notably: 

1) acquisition of funds and bank metal in deposits from the unrestricted circle of l legal entities and individuals; 

2) opening and managing current (correspondent) accounts of the clients including accounts in bank metals; 

3) placing raised in deposits including current accounts funds and bank metals sui Juris, on One’s own terms and at 

One’s own risk. 

The Bank has a right to provide its clients (except banks) with financial services including concluding agency contracts 

with the legal entities. The list of financial services which the Bank has a right to provide its clients (except banks) by 

concluding the agency contracts is established by the National Bank of Ukraine. 

Except providing financial services the Bank has a right to conduct its activities concerning: 

1) investments; 

2) issue of own securities; 

3) issue, dissemination and conducting lotteries; 

4) saving valuables or providing individual bank safes in property lease; 

5) collection of funds and currency valuables transition; 

6) maintaining registers of registered securities owners (except of own securities); 

7) providing consulting and informational services concerning banking and other financial services. 

According to the general license for conducting of currency transactions No. 54 dated 26.10.2011 the Bank has a right to 

conduct its activities, provide banking and other financial services in foreign currency notably: 

1) currency valuables non-trading transactions; 

2) cash foreign currency and cheques (buying, selling, exchange, obtaining for collection) transactions, which are 

performed in the banks’ cash-offices and foreign currency exchange offices; 

3) cash foreign currency (buying, selling, exchange) transactions, which are performed in the foreign currency exchange 

offices which operate on the basis of concluded by the banks agency contracts with legal entities-residents; 

4) managing clients’ accounts (residents’ and non-residents’) in foreign currency and clients-non-residents in monetary 

units of Ukraine; 

5) managing banks’ correspondent accounts (residents’ and non-residents’) in foreign currency; 

6) managing banks’ correspondent accounts (non-residents’) in monetary units of Ukraine; 

7) opening correspondent accounts in authorized banks of Ukraine in foreign currency and performing transactions on 

them; 

8) opening correspondent accounts in banks (non-residents) in foreign currency and performing transactions on them; 

9) acquisition and placing foreign currency on currency market of Ukraine; 

10) acquisition and placing foreign currency on international markets; 

11) foreign currency trade on currency market of Ukraine [except of transactions with cash foreign currency and cheques 

(buying, selling, exchange), which are performed in the banks’ and agencies’ cash-offices and foreign currency 

exchange offices]; 

12) foreign currency trade on international markets; 

13) acquisition and placing bank metals on currency market of Ukraine; 

14) acquisition and placing bank metals on international markets; 

15) bank metals trade on currency market of Ukraine; 

16) currency transactions on currency market of Ukraine, which belong to financial services according to Article 4 of the 

law of Ukraine "On financial services and state regulation on Financial Market" and do not mentioned in paragraphs 

2-17 of Regulation of assignment of currency transactions general licenses for performing currency transactions to 

banks and foreign banks’ branches approved by the National Bank of Ukraine decision of 15.08.2011 No. 281. 
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Note 1. Bank information (continued) 

The Bank makes direct investments and performs portfolio transactions according to the securities, investment activity 

legislation of Ukraine and regulatory and legal acts of National Bank of Ukraine. 

In future the Bank does not plan to expand the list of transactions, the performance of which requires the permission of 

the National Bank of Ukraine. 

 

Participation in the Individuals Deposits Guarantee Fund. 

The Bank is a permanent member of the Individuals Deposits Guarantee Fund since 1999: 

No. under the Fund’s 

register 

Date of registration in 

the Fund 

No. of the Fund’s member 
certificate 

Date of the 

certificate 

034 02.09.1999 031 18.10.2012 

Percentage of the Management in the Bank’s shares. 

As of 31 December 2018 (COB) the members of the Supervisory Board and the Board did not own the shares of the Bank. 

As of 31 December 2017 (COB) the members of the Board did not own the shares of the Bank, and the members of the 

Supervisory Board owned 25 850 shares of the Bank (0,001 % of the equity capital), the value of which was 

UAH 2,6 thousand. 

Substantial shareholding.  

As of 31.12.2018 the following entities own a direct shareholding in the Bank:  

 responsAbility Participations AG (Switzerland) – 51 % of the authorized capital (decision No. 169 of the Banking 

Supervision and Regulation and Payment Systems Supervision (Oversight) Committee of the National Bank of 

Ukraine dated 23.06.2018); 

 Limited Liability Company "New Progress Holding" (Ukraine) – 38,940537% of the share capital. 

Margeir Petursson, a citizen of Iceland, is an ultimate key participant of Limited Liability Company "New Progress 

Holding" indirectly owing 48,930326% of the Bank’ share capital. The Banking Supervision and Regulation and Payment 

Systems Supervision (Oversight) Committee of the National Bank of Ukraine approved, under its decision No. 633, 

Margeir Petursson to acquire an indirect significant share in the Bank on 30 December 2015. 

As of 31.12.2017 Limited Liability Company "New Progress Holding" was a substantial share owner of the Bank 

(99.8997%). 

Participation of foreign investors in the share capital. 

Share of the foreign investor in the Bank – responsAbility Participations AG (Switzerland) constitutes 51% of the 

authorized capital. Share of the foreign investor in the Bank – Frontmost Limited (Cyprus) constitutes 9,99% of the 

authorized capital. 

Date of approval for issue. 

The issue of these financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2018 was approved by the decisions of the 

Supervisory Board and the Management Board of the Bank on 23 April 2019. 

Other disclosures required by IFRS. 

No information available. 

Note 2. Operating environment 

Description of economic environment where the Bank operates. 

The consumer inflation slowed down in Ukraine in 2018 to 9.8% (as compared to 13.7% in 2017), the lowest level 

following the results of the last five years. This was mostly due to the stringent policy followed by the NBU. Additional 

factors were expanding domestic demand, reducing global prices of food products and, at the end of the year, global oil 

prices. At the same time, the base inflation slowed down moderately based on the 2018 results (up to 8.7% per annum) 

due to, among other things, the pressure posed by increasing production costs. 
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Note 2. Operating environment (continued) 

The NBU Management Board left more than once the discount rate at the level of 18.0% per annum. According to the 

NBU, current and forecast monetary conditions are stringent enough to cause the inflation to fall to the medium-term 

average of 5% in 2020. Moreover, a new operational design for the NBU monetary policy came into being since 11 

January 2019 for more flexible reaction to changes in the liquidity of the Ukrainian banking system. 

There were 77 operating banks as of the end of 2018. The sector is still moderately concentrated. As of the end of 2018, 

top 20 banks' share was 91.0% of the net assets in the sector. State-owned banks are dominating on the market: their 

aggregate share was 54.7% and 63.4% in terms of net assets and public deposits accordingly. 

In 2018, the banking sector made the record profit of UAH 21.7 billion (rate of return from capital was 14.3%).  

The capital adequacy remained higher than the minimum necessary level throughout the year. The regulatory capital of 

banks that were solvent as of 01/01/2019 grew initially by 12.7%, while the authorized capital increased by 2.4%.  

The net retail lending portfolio increased by 34.1% annually. The net corporate loans in UAH increased by 8.1% annually. 

In 2018 UAH funds due to the public and business entities increased by 14.8% and 6.8% accordingly.  

In 2018, the value of new UAH deposits from businesses increased by 5.3 percentage points up to 14.5% per annum. As 

a result, the rate of return from banks' transaction decreased. At the same time, the retail sector is still highly profitable. 

An average weighted rate for UAH deposits is 11.7% per annum, while the rate for UAH loans is 31.5%. 

Deductions to the reserves made in 2018 were by 51.9% lower than those made in the previous year and the lowest since 

2012. The cover for non-performing loans by general reserves is sufficient, i.e., they cover 95.5% of the loan portfolio in 

general. The loan portfolio quality has been improving throughout 2018. 

The funding base is expected to grow in 2019 at the level of the previous year. Banks will still be interested in retail 

lending. The corporate portfolio growth that started in 2018 will continue. This will be facilitated by the expected 

reduction in interest rates in view that the NBU may turn to a milder monetary policy in 2019. 

The banks' key priorities for 2019 are to resume in full the corporate lending and to continue clearing balances of non-

performing loans. 

Impact of the above circumstances on the Bank's financial position and operating results. 

The Bank’ financial statements for 2018 have been prepared on the assumption that the Bank is able to continue its 

activities in the foreseeable future as a going concern. The Management and Shareholders have the intention to further 

develop the Bank’s business activities and believe that all the necessary measures have been taken to maintain the 

economic stability in the circumstances.  

As of 31.12.2018 the Bank is not in breach of any prudential standard for its activity as provided by the National Bank of 

Ukraine. 

In 2017-2018, the Bank did not distributed dividends.  

The Bank’s resources not disclosed in the statement of financial position under IFRS. 

No information available. 

  



JSCB “LVIV” 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 

(UAH, thousand)   

 

49 

Note 3. Basis of financial statements preparation  

Compliance of financial statements with IFRS, including all previously adopted effective IFRS and interpretations, 

and deviations from IFRS. 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting 

Standards ("IFRS") adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") on a historical cost basis, except 

for available-for-sale investments, other financial assets and liabilities held for trading, financial assets and liabilities at 

fair value through profit or loss, land, buildings and investment property. 

Functional currency of the Bank’s accounting records, measurement units of financial statements. 

The Bank maintains its accounting records in Ukrainian hryvnia (UAH), respectively, it defines UAH as the functional 

currency. Transactions in currencies other than UAH are treated as foreign currency transactions.  

The financial statements are presented in UAH and all values are rounded to the nearest UAH thousands, except when 

otherwise indicated. 

Given a shareholders' intention to continue the Bank's support by further contributions into the share capital, the 

Management believes that the use of a going concern assumption is adequate in the circumstances. 

Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies 

1. Consolidated financial statements. 

Due to the absence of consolidated entity, the consolidated financial statements are not prepared and presented by the 

Bank. 

2. Basis of preparation. 

The Bank’s accounting policies are based on the generally accepted accounting principles and standards, namely, ongoing 

concern basis, accrual and correspondence to income and expense (matching concept), completeness, self-sustainability 

and prudence concepts, substance over form, consistency, materiality guideline and credibility principles. 

During the preparation of the financial statements, the Bank’s Management adopts estimates and assumptions affecting 

the recognition of the amounts due in the financial statements. Such estimates and assumptions are based on the existing 

information as at the date of the financial statements preparation. Accordingly, actual results may differ from those 

estimates and assumptions. Estimates particularly sensitive to changes relate to provisions for impairment losses and fair 

value of financial instruments. 

The main assessment indicators used while preparing the financial statements are the following: historical (initial) cost, 

fair value, amortized cost applying the effective interest rate method and with the recognition of impairment. 

Providing for historical cost accounting, the assets are recognized at the amount actually paid for these assets and liabilities 

- at the amount of proceeds (funds raised) in exchange for such obligations. Thus, cash and cash equivalents, liabilities 

on demand as well as accounts payable are accounted at the historical (prime) cost. 

Non-current assets held for sale, real estate (buildings and constructions) with the deduction of accumulated depreciation, 

loans and deposits are accounted at fair (market) value. 

The investment property, intangible assets, fixed assets (except for real estate), securities in the bank portfolio available 

for sale and accounts receivable are accounted at the historical cost (prime cost) after deduction of accumulated 

depreciation and losses from diminishing utility. 

Income and losses of the Bank are recognized per every activity type (operating, investing and financing). The criteria 

for income and losses recognition are used separately per every banking transaction. Every type of income and losses is 

represented in the accounting statements separately. 
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Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

3. Initial recognition of financial instruments. 

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, investments 

held-to-maturity or available-for-sale. At initial recognition, financial assets are measured at fair value including expenses 

directly attributable to transaction costs. During the initial recognition of financial assets the Bank classifies financial 

assets and subsequently may reclassify them in certain cases, as described below. 

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Bank becomes a party to 

the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes "regular way trades": purchases or sales of financial assets that 

require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.  

After initial recognition, financial assets, including derivatives, are measured at fair value without any deduction for 

transaction costs that may be incurred on the sale or other disposal of financial assets, except for: 

 loans and receivables measured at amortized cost using an effective interest rate method; 

 investments held-to-maturity measured at amortized cost using an effective interest rate method; 

 investments in equity instruments that do not have quoted prices in an active market and fair value of which cannot 

be measured reliably. Such financial instruments are measured at cost.  

All financial liabilities, except financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and those that arise when a transfer 

of a financial asset carried at fair value does not qualify for derecognition, are measured at amortized cost. 

The difference between the amount of remuneration paid or received and the fair value of a financial instrument issued at 

a rate below the market one, is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as income or loss from initial 

recognition of a financial instrument. 

4. Impairment of financial assets. 

Loans issued, securities and accounts receivable are attributable to assets that are reviewed for impairment at each balance 

sheet date. 

If the carrying amount of assets exceeds the appraised amount of expected repayment, the diminishing assets utility is 

recognized. The diminishing utility in the accounting statements is represented by forming special provisions at the 

expense of Bank costs. 

The main criteria due to which the true and fair loss indicators from impairment are determined are (i) any late payments 

(delinquency), (ii) borrower’s financial position, (iii) unsatisfactory debt servicing. 

The losses from impairment are recognized by forming provisions at the amount necessary to decrease the balance sheet 

value to the current value of the expected cash flow discounted at the initial (historical) effective interest rate for this 

asset. 

The assets, which cannot be redeemed, are written off at the expense of the respective provisions for impairment losses 

after accomplishment of all necessary procedures related to asset recovery based on the Decision of the Management 

Board of the Bank. 

5. Derecognition of financial instruments. 

A financial asset is derecognized when: 

(a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 

(b) the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received 

cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either: the Bank has 

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Bank has neither transferred nor retained 

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.  
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Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

When the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 

arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred 

control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Bank's continuing involvement in the asset. 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

6. Cash and cash equivalents. 

Cash and cash equivalents are assets that can be converted into a foreseeable amount of cash on demand with insignificant 

risk of changes in the value. Cash and cash equivalents are unrestricted balances on correspondent accounts with the 

National Bank of Ukraine and other banks with maturity up to three months. Cash for which there are limitations on the 

use for a period exceeding three months are excluded from cash and cash equivalents.  

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost. 

7. Mandatory reserves with the National Bank of Ukraine.  

Mandatory reserves are carried at amortized cost and represent funds, which amount is calculated based on legal reserve 

requirement set by the National Bank of Ukraine to liabilities related funds borrowed by the Bank and not intended to 

finance the daily operations of the Bank. Banks shall make and maintain mandatory reserves in the national currency of 

Ukraine on the bank's correspondent account with the National Bank of Ukraine. They are not considered to be a part of 

cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the statement of cash flows. 

8. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated by management on 

initial recognition. Management may only designate an instrument at fair value through profit or loss upon initial 

recognition when the following criteria are met, and designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis: 

 the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from 

measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis; 

 the assets and liabilities are part of a bank of financial assets, financial liabilities or both which are managed and 

their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment 

strategy; 

 the financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, which significantly modify the cash flows 

that otherwise, would be required by the contract. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the statement of financial 

position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in 'Net gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities designated 

at fair value through profit or loss'. Interest is earned or incurred is accrued in 'Interest income' or 'Interest expense', 

respectively, using the effective interest rate (EIR), while dividend income is recorded in 'Other operating income' when 

the right to the payment has been established. 

9. Loans and advances to banks. 

Loans and advances to banks are recorded when the Bank provides banks-counterparties with funds repayable on a fixed 

or determined date. In these circumstances, the Bank has no intention of trading with the receivables arising. These 

receivables are not related to derivative financial instruments and have no quoted market prices. Loans and advances to 

banks are accounted for at amortized cost. 

10. Loans and advances to customers. 

Loans to customers and customers’ debts are accounted for when the Bank provides customers with funds in a form of 

payments to be due on a fixed or predetermined date, and the Bank has no intention of trading with the receivables.  

Loans to customers and customers’ debts are accounted for at amortized cost. 
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Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

The Bank seeks, if possible, to restructure loans rather than to enter into possession of collateral. This may include the 

extension of maturities and the agreement of new loan conditions. 

The accounting treatment of restructured loans is as follows: 

 when a loan currency has been modified, the previous loan is derecognized and instead a new loan is accounted; 

 when the reason for a loan restructuring is improvement of conditions for obtaining funds by a borrower, rather 

than the financial difficulties of a borrower, the loan is not recognized as impaired; 

 when a loan is impaired due to restructuring, the Bank uses the original effective interest rate for new cash flows 

to estimate the replacement cost of the loan. The difference between the recalculated present value of new cash 

flows taking into account collateral and the carrying amount before restructuring is included in expenses for 

formation of provisions for the period. 

The loan is not considered as overdue if its conditions have been reviewed and its impairment is estimated by using prime 

(initial) effective interest rate, which was calculated before the loan conditions have been changed. The management of 

the Bank constantly review the restructured loans to make sure that all criteria and possibilities to provide future payments 

are withstood. Such loans continue to be assessed for impairment on an individual or collective basis, and their 

replacement cost is calculated using the original effective interest rate of the loan. 

The interest income and expenses on loans and customers debts are recognized in the accounting by using the effective 

interest rate method. The effective interest rate is calculated taking into account all cash flow related to the financial 

instrument due to the conditions of the respective agreement including all commission fees as well as other sums paid or 

obtained which are the integral part of the financial instrument income (expenses). If it is impossible to true and fair 

estimate the cash flow or the expected financial instrument validity period, the cash flows as provided for by the respective 

agreement throughout the validity period of this agreement are used. 

The accruals are calculated on a prorate basis, i.e. proportionally to time (number of days) and to the amount of asset or 

liability using fact/fact method, in other words, the actual number of days per month and per year is used for the 

aforementioned accruals calculation. 

11. Financial assets available-for-sale. 

Available-for-sale investments include equity and debt securities. Equity investments classified as available-for-sale are 

those, which are neither classified as held-for-trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities 

in this category are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response 

to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions. 

The Bank has not designated any loans or receivables as available-for-sale. 

After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value. 

Unrealized gains and losses are recognized directly in equity (other comprehensive income) in the 'Available-for-sale 

reserve'. When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is recognized 

in the income statement in 'Other operating income'. Where the Bank holds more than one investment in the same security 

they are deemed to be disposed of on a first-in first-out basis. Interest earned whilst holding available-for-sale financial 

investments is reported as interest income using the EIR. Dividends earned whilst holding available-for-sale financial 

investments are recognized in the income statement as 'Other operating income' when the right of the payment has been 

established. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in the income statement in 

'Impairment losses on financial investments' and removed from the 'Available-for-sale reserve'. 

12. Reverse purchase/repurchase contracts. 

The Bank did not concluded reverse purchase/repurchase contracts. 

  



JSCB “LVIV” 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 

(UAH, thousand)   

 

53 

Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

13. Financial assets held-to-maturity. 

Held-to-maturity financial investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 

maturities, which the Bank has the intention and ability to hold to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-maturity 

financial investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR, less impairment. Amortized cost is 

calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the EIR. 

The amortization is included in 'Interest and similar income' in the income statement. The losses arising from impairment 

of such investments are recognized in the income statement line 'Credit loss expense'. 

If the Bank were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments before maturity 

(other than in certain specific circumstances), the entire category would be tainted and would have to be reclassified as 

available-for-sale.  

14. Investments in associates and subsidiaries. 

As at the reporting date, the Bank has no investments in associates and subsidiaries. 

15. Investment property. 

Investment property is a property held by the Bank in order to obtain rental income or increase the value of invested 

capital.  

Investment property is carried at fair value, which reflects the current market value and represents potential value of a 

transaction at market conditions between knowledgeable and willing parties.  

Investment property is revalued at each reporting date and the results are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 

income as gains/losses from investment property revaluation. The resulting rental income is recognized in the statement 

of comprehensive income within other operating income. 

Subsequent expenses for investment property are capitalized only when there is a possibility of future economic benefits 

associated with it and the amount of expenses can be reliably measured. All other costs for repairs and maintenance are 

expensed as incurred.  

If the Bank begins to use the investment property, it is reclassified into the category of fixed assets, and its carrying 

amount at the date of reclassification becomes the notional value, which is subsequently revalued and depreciated. 

16. Goodwill. 

Goodwill arising on a business combination is an amount paid by a buyer that exceeds the market acquisition value in 

anticipation of future economic benefits. 

Goodwill is an excess of the acquisition cost over the acquired interest in the fair value of identifiable assets acquired, 

which is inseparable from the acquired entity. The actual amount of goodwill is the acquisition cost less the difference in 

the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.  

During the reporting period, goodwill was not recognized in the balance sheet. 

17. Fixed assets. 

Fixed assets (including equipment under operating leases where the Bank is the lessor) is stated at cost excluding the costs 

of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected 

useful life are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in 

accounting estimates. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of fixed assets to their residual values 

over their estimated useful lives. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

 Constructions and investment property  50 – 200 years; 

 Vehicles 10 years; 

 Furniture and equipment 4 – 15 years. 
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Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

Fixed assets are derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or 

loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the asset) is recognized in 'Other operating income' in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognized. 

18. Intangible assets. 

The Bank's other intangible assets include the value of computer software.  

Software comprises directly software and a software use license. Licenses comprise licenses to undertake Banking 

operations issued by the NBU and trademark licenses issued by the payment systems in which the Bank holds its 

membership. The Bank’s other intangible assets include the right of access to payment systems in which the Bank holds 

its membership and right to use of property. 

An intangible asset is recognized only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future 

economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Bank. 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible 

assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are 

amortized over the useful economic life. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with 

a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected 

pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization 

period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible 

assets with finite lives is recognized in the income statement in the expense category consistent with the function of the 

intangible asset. 

Finite useful lives of intangible assets are approved by the commission of the Bank, but not more than 10 years. 

Amortization is calculated using a straight-line method of intangible assets’ depreciation to their residual value throughout 

the period of their useful lives: 

 Computer software 2 – 10 years; 

 Licenses  up to 10 years. 

19. Operating leases where the Bank is the lessor and/or lessee. 

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement 

and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or 

assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. 

(i) The Bank as a lessee 

Leases, which do not transfer to the Bank substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased 

items, are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the income statement on a straight-

line basis over the lease term. Contingent rental payables are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are 

incurred. 

(ii) The Bank as a lessor 

Leases where the Bank does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as 

operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased 

asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue 

in the period in which they are earned. 

 

  



JSCB “LVIV” 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 

(UAH, thousand)   

 

55 

Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

20. Finance leases where the Bank is the lessor and/or lessee. 

Finance lease is a lease that provides for the transfer of all risks and rewards of ownership of an asset. Ownership right 

may eventually be transferred or retained. 

Under finance lease, the assets are accounted for on the balance sheet of a lessee. 

Assets transferred under finance lease are recorded by a lessor as a loan issued, which is subject to the accounting 

requirements and requirements for formation and use of provisions for credit risks.  

The lessee discloses non-current assets in the balance sheet as both assets and liabilities. 

21. Non-current assets held-for-sale and disposal groups. 

Non-current assets held for sale are recognized if their carrying amount (balance-sheet value) is repaid by the sales 

operations rather than by current usage. As on the date when the decision to recognize these assets as those held for sale 

is taken, the following conditions are to be accomplished: the assets in their current state provide the possibility to sell 

them immediately as well as ensure high level of their sale probability during the current year since the date of their 

classification.  

The Bank recognizes the expenses from the diminishing utility in case of the non-current assets fair value decrease less 

expenses on sale; in case of non-current assets fair value increase less expenses on sale, the income is recognized but only 

in the amount which is not higher than earlier accumulated expenses from the diminishing utility. 

Non-current assets held for sale are estimated and shown in the accounting records by minimum of two estimation 

indicators: by the carrying amount or by the fair value less expenses on sale. The amortization (depreciation) of non-

current assets held for sale is not accrued. 

22. Depreciation and amortization. 

The value of all non-current (tangible and intangible) assets is subject to depreciation and amortization (excluding cost 

of land, capital investments in progress, non-current assets held for sale). 

Depreciation of fixed assets, amortization of intangible assets and costs of leasehold improvements are charged using the 

straight-line method, i.e. by even writing-off of initial or revalued cost of fixed and intangible assets to their residual 

values over the established useful lives of the respective assets, based on the classification of non-current assets by groups 

and useful lives on the basis of minimum terms in accordance with the requirements of the Tax Code of Ukraine. 

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that the Bank would have received due to disposal of the asset, less 

the estimated costs of disposal. 

The residual value of non-current assets (fixed assets and low value non-current tangible assets) and intangible assets on 

the Bank’s balance sheet is set at zero cost, since the Bank intends to use the assets until the end of their useful lives. 

Assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. 

Where the term of a right to use an intangible asset is not established according to a title document, this period constitutes 

10 years of continuous operation. 

Depreciation of low-value non-current assets is accrued in the first month of an asset’s use in the amount of 100% of its 

value. 

23. Discontinued operations. 

During 2018, the Bank did not discontinue banking operations, carried out according to the Banking License No. 54 dated 

26.10.2011 and the General License for Conducting of Currency Transactions No. 54 issued by the National Bank of 

Ukraine on 26.10.2011. 
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Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

24. Derivative financial instruments. 

Derivative financial instruments, including foreign exchange swaps, are accounted for at fair value. 

All derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative. 

Changes in the fair value of derivatives are included in profit or loss for the year.  

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are accounted for as separate derivatives when their risks and 

economic characteristics are not closely related to the risks and economic characteristics of an underlying transaction. If 

the Bank is unable to determine the value of the embedded derivative separately at the acquisition date or at the end of 

the next financial reporting period, the entire transaction as a whole is measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

Derivatives used by the Bank are not designated for hedging and are not qualified for hedge accounting. 

25. Borrowings. 

Borrowings are the deposits of legal entities and private individuals in national and foreign currencies, including precious 

metals. 

Financial liabilities for borrowings are initially recognized on the basis of the contract which determines the amount and 

maturity of liabilities. An obligatory condition for recognition is a proof that the Bank is a party to the contract under a 

financial instrument and has a legal repayment obligation. The basic principle of the recognition is the fact that there is a 

probability of an outflow of future economic benefits and a liability has an actual or another value that can be measured 

reliably. 

Borrowings are initially recognized by the Bank at the fair value including the expenses on a transaction. After the prime 

recognition the loans received as well as deposits are estimated at the amortized cost using the effective interest rate.  

The income and expenses from borrowings are recognized by the accrual principle (concept) using the effective interest 

rate method. They shall be accrued proportionally to the time (number of days) and amount of the asset or liability 

according to the actual/actual method, so that the actual number of days in a month and a year is used for calculation 

purposes. 

26. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

The Bank had no financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

27. Debt securities issued by the Bank. 

The debt securities issued by the Bank are recognized in the structure of the funds raised. 

The debt securities issued by the Bank are initially recognized at the fair value and further are recorded at the amortized 

cost using the effective interest rate method. The income and expenses from the debt securities issued by the Bank are 

recognized by the accrual principle (concept) using the effective interest rate method. 

The Bank issued no debt securities in 2017-2018.  

28. Provisions for liabilities. 

In the normal course of business, the Bank enters into other credit related commitments, including commitments to 

provide loans, financial guarantees and letters of credit. Where there arises a probability of a loss event, the Bank forms 

a provision for other credit liabilities. 

Financial guarantees provided at initial recognition are accounted for as liabilities at fair value, which is equal to the 

amount of fees and commissions obtained by a bank guarantee (remuneration for a guarantee provided). Fee and 

commission income from guarantees provided are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of a guarantee. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the guarantees are accounted for at a higher of: 

 amount required to settle the liability at the balance sheet date; 

 initially recognized liability amount less accumulated depreciation. 

The Bank fulfils liabilities on the financial guarantees provided, avals, sureties at the expense of a provision formed. The 

amounts of guarantees are simultaneously written-off from the off-balance sheet accounts. 
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Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

29. Subordinated debt. 

Subordinated debt represents a long-term loan agreement that ranks below other liabilities in case of the Bank’s default 

on its obligations, including those related to deposits and other debt instruments.  

Subordinated debt is accounted for at amortized cost. 

The Bank recognizes expenses for subordinated debt pursuant to the contract, but not less than once a month. 

30. Income tax. 

(i) Current tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from 

or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 

substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date. 

Income tax rate established by the legislation of Ukraine amounted to 18% in the reporting period.  

(ii) Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date between the tax bases of 

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized 

for all taxable temporary differences. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused 

tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary 

differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced to the 

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax 

asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each statement of financial position date and are 

recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be 

recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is 

realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 

statement of financial position date. 

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized directly in equity are also recognized in equity and not in the 

income statement. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 

against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

31. Share capital and share premium. 

Share capital is a sum of cash payments for the Bank’s shares made by its shareholders. Share premium is the excess of 

proceeds from sale of own shares or other corporate title over the nominal value of shares or other corporate title. Profits 

or losses for the reporting year are distributed subject to the decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders. 

32. Preference shares. 

The Bank has no preference shares.  

33. Treasury shares. 

The repurchase of shares from the Bank shareholders has not been performed during the reporting year. 

34. Dividends. 

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the Bank's 

shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are declared and no longer at the discretion of the 

Bank. Dividends for the year that are approved after the statement of financial position date are disclosed as an 

event after the statement of financial position date. 
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Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

35. Income and expense recognition. 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue 

can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:  

(i) Interest and similar income and expenses 

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as available- for-sale 

and financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss, interest income or expense is recorded using the 

EIR, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the 

financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial 

liability. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment 

options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part 

of the EIR, but not future credit losses. 

The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Bank revises its estimates of payments 

or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original EIR and the change in carrying amount is 

recorded as 'Other operating income'. However, for a reclassified financial asset for which the Bank subsequently 

increases its estimates of future cash receipts as a result of increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the effect of 

that increase is recognized as an adjustment to the EIR from the date of the change in estimate. 

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a bank of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an impairment 

loss, interest income continues to be recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the 

purpose of measuring the impairment loss. 

(ii) Fee and commission income 

The Bank earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers. Fee income can 

be divided into the following two categories: 

Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain period of time 

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These fees include commission 

income and asset management, custody and other management and advisory fees. 

Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down and other credit related fees are deferred (together with 

any incremental costs) and recognized as an adjustment to the EIR on the loan. When it is unlikely that a loan will be 

drawn down, the loan commitment fees are recognized over the commitment period on a straight line basis. 

Fee income from providing transaction services 

Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party, such as the arrangement 

of the acquisition of shares or other securities or the purchase or sale of businesses, are recognized on completion of the 

underlying transaction. Fees or components of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognized after fulfilling 

the corresponding criteria. 

(iii) Dividend income 

Dividend income is recognized when the Bank's right to receive the payment is established. 

(iv) Net trading income 

Results arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from changes in fair value and related interest income 

or expense and dividends for financial assets and financial liabilities 'held-for-trading'.  
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Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

36. Foreign currency translation. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the date of 

the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of 

exchange at the statement of financial position date. All differences arising on non-trading activities are taken to 'Other 

operating income' in the income statement. 

Non-monetary items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as 

at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated 

using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.  

37. Mutual offset of assets and liabilities. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if, 

and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle 

on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master 

netting agreements, therefore, the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in statement of financial position. 

The Bank did not offset assets and liabilities in 2018. 

38. Assets under trust. 

The Bank provides trust asset management services at the expense of construction financing funds. The Bank acts as an 

agent under such agreements. Accordingly, the Bank has no obligations regarding funds in trust. The funds have current 

accounts with the Bank on which cash is deposited not yet invested into assets that meet certain fund investment program. 

39. Inflation accounting. 

Ukraine was considered a hyperinflationary economy country during the period ended 31 December 2000. Therefore, the 

Bank applied IAS 29 "Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies". The impact of IAS 29 lies in the fact that non-

monetary items have been translated in measurement units effective as at 31 December 2000, using the consumer price 

index, and these recalculated values have been used as a basis for accounting records in subsequent accounting periods. 

40. Employee benefits and related charges. 

Wages, salaries, contributions to state social funds, paid annual leave, payment of medical certificate, bonuses and non-

monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees. 

The Bank under the laws of Ukraine shall make the Single Social Contribution to the national Pension Fund. Contributions 

made to the Pension Fund are expensed as incurred. Costs of provisioning for payment of vacations and premiums are 

recognized as a part of staff costs 

The Bank has no other obligations for post-retirement benefits or other significant compensated benefits requiring accrual. 

41. Business segment information. 

The Bank shows the segment separately if the major part of its income is created from the banking activity beyond the 

segment and simultaneously indicators of its activity correspond to one of the following criteria: 

 business segment income is no less than 10% of the total revenue of all segments (including banking activities within 

the segment); 

 financial result of a business segment is no less than 10% of the total financial result of all segments; 

 balance sheet value of a business segment assets is no less than 10% of the balance sheet value of assets of all 

segments. 

The transfer result is calculated as the difference between the transfer income and transfer expenses of each segment. The 

transfer income for retail and corporate business segments are formed as estimated revenue from the sale of treasury 

banking activity segment borrowed funds at the transfer price. The transfer expenses are formed as estimated expenditures 

on purchase of allocated resources in the treasury banking activity segment at the transfer price. 
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Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

The Bank recognizes the income which is directly related to the respective segment and the respective part of the Bank 

income, which can be related to the respective segment from external activity or from operations between other segments 

within the Bank as the income of reporting segment. 

The expenses related to the main activity of the segment that directly related to the respective segment and the respective 

part of the expenses, which can be reasonably related to the respective segment including expenses from external activity. 

The segment expenses do not include: 

 income tax expenses; 

 general administrative expenses and other expenses that arise at the level of a primary bank and at the level of the 

Bank and relate to the Bank as a whole. 

The basis for allocating income and expenses by segments is the internal (management) financial statements. 

42. Related party transactions. 

The Bank’s related parties, i.e. parties that have an ability to exercise direct or indirect influence over the Bank’s activities, 

are determined on the basis of the requirements of Article 52 of the Law of Ukraine "On Banks and Banking" and 

regulations of the National Bank of Ukraine. 

The agreements concluded by the Bank with related entities may not provide more favorable conditions than those 

concluded with other persons. 

The decisions on providing loans, guarantees or sureties to the Bank’s related parties are made in accordance with the 

applicable at the time of decision making authority limits, but not below the Bank's Credit Committee without the person 

concerned in the competent authority. 

Related party transactions are accounted for on the same principles and rules established to account for other similar 

transactions with unrelated parties carried out by the Bank. Provisions for possible risks on active transactions with related 

parties are formed in the generally established procedure, with the reflection of provision amounts in the Bank’s expenses. 

43. Effect of changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates, correction of material errors and their 

presentation in the financial statements. 

There were no any changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates, correction of material errors and their 

presentation in the financial statements. 

44. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions. 

In the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies, management has exercised judgment and estimates in 

determining the amounts recognized in the financial statements. The most significant uses of judgment and estimates are 

as follows: 

Going concern 

The Bank's management has made an assessment of the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that 

the Bank has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of 

any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. 

Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis. 

Fair value of financial instruments 

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement of financial position cannot be 

derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of 

mathematical models. The inputs to these models are derived from observable market data where possible, but where 

observable market data are not available, judgment is required to establish fair values. The judgments include 

considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as volatility for longer dated derivatives and discount rates, prepayment 

rates and default rate assumptions for asset-backed securities. 
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Note 4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

Impairment losses on loans and advances 

The Bank reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each statement of financial position date to assess 

whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement. In particular, management judgment is required 

in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. These estimates 

are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the 

allowance. 

Loans and advances that have been assessed individually and found not to be impaired and all individually insignificant 

loans and advances are then assessed collectively, in banks of assets with similar risk characteristics, to determine whether 

provision should be made due to incurred loss events for which there is objective evidence but whose effects are not yet 

evident. The collective assessment takes account of data from the loan portfolio (such as levels of arrears, credit 

utilization, loan to collateral ratios, etc.), and judgments to the effect of concentrations of risks and economic data 

(including levels of unemployment, real estate prices indices, country risk and the performance of different individual 

banks). 

Impairment of available-for-sale investments 

The Bank reviews its debt securities classified as available-for-sale investments at each statement of financial position 

date to assess whether they are impaired. This requires similar judgment as applied to the individual assessment of loans 

and advances. 

The Bank also records impairment charges on available-for-sale equity investments when there has been a significant or 

prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost. The determination of what is 'significant' or 'prolonged' requires 

judgment. In making this judgment, the Bank evaluates, among other factors, historical share price movements and 

duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost. 

Deferred tax assets/liabilities 

A deferred profit tax shall be determined with respect to tax losses carried over to future periods and temporary differences 

between the taxable base of assets and liabilities and their book value in accordance with financial statements. When 

recognized for the first time, a deferred tax shall not be recorded with respect to temporary differences upon initial 

recognition of goodwill or other assets and liabilities relating to the transaction, if such transaction, when recorded 

initially, has no effect on the accounting and tax profit. 
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Note 5. Standards issued and revised but not yet effective 

The following standards have been adopted by the Bank for application since 1 January 2018: 

IFRS 9 – "Financial Instruments".  

The Bank continues to measure at fair value all financial assets currently accounted for at fair value. 

(UAH, ths.) 
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IAS 39 IFRS 9 
Expected 

losses 
Other 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

Cash and cash 

equivalents  

Loans and 

receivables 

Amortized cost 

value 
188 048 (4 790) - 183 258 

Loans and 

advances to banks 

Loans and 

receivables 

Amortized cost 

value 
17 179 - - 17 179 

Loans and 

advances to 

customers 

Loans and 

receivables 

Amortized cost 

value 
990 869 (14 391) - 976 478 

Securities held-to-

maturity 

Assets available for 

sale 

Fair value through 

other comprehensive 

income 

311 565 - - 311 565 

Derivative 

financial assets 

Assets held at fair 

value through profit 

and loss 

Fair value through 

profit or loss 
- - - - 

Other assets 
Loans and 

receivables 

Amortized cost 

value 
8 909 (56) - 8 853 

Total financial 

assets 

  
1 516 570 (19 237) - 1 497 333 

 

The effect of application of IFRS 9 constituted UAH (19 237) thousand. This effect is disclosed in the Statement of 

Equity. 
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Note 5. Standards issued and revised but not yet effective (continued) 

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers has become effective since 1 January 2018 

IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions has become effective since 1 January 2018 

Standards issued but not yet effective 

The following standards and interpretations, as well as amendments to standards have been issued as of the date of this 

financial statements approval but not yet become effective since 01.01.2019: 

The clarification to IFRS 3 "Business combinations" and IFRS 11 "Joint activity" appears. 

In particular, IFRS 3 now requires a revaluation of a business share under circumstances when a business entity obtains 

control over a business that is a joint operation. This requirement relates to the positioning of such agreement as a phased 

business combination. Instead, IFRS 11 clarifies the joint control: when an entity obtains joint control over a business 

that is a joint operation, the entity does not reevaluate the previously recognized share in that company.  

IAS 12 "Income taxes" is subject to some changes. In particular, § 52B of this standard was deleted, but its basic idea was 

moved to § 52A. Thus, the tax consequences of income in the form of dividends are recognized at recognition of 

obligations to pay dividends. It should be noted that this statement applies to all tax consequences of dividends, and not 

only to situations when there are different tax rates for distributed and retained profit. 

Changes are made to IAS 23 "Borrowing Costs", in terms of borrowing costs subject to capitalization, and relate directly 

to § 14. The changes clarify: if any specific loans remain outstanding after the asset is ready for its expected use or sale, 

the borrowing becomes a part of the funds borrowed by the entity as a whole when calculating the capitalization rate for 

total loans. 

As for the other important updates in the IFRS, certain amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 28, IAS 19 will come into effect on 

January 1, 2019. 

Amendments to IFRS 9 "Prepayment features with potentially negative compensation" 

According to IFRS 9, a debt instrument may be evaluated at the depreciated cost or at the fair value through other 

comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flows are "exclusively payments towards the principal amount 

and interest on the outstanding part of the principal amount" (SPPI test) and the instrument is withheld within the relevant 

business model that enables such classification.  

Amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that a financial asset undergoes the SPPI test, regardless of which event or circumstance 

leads to an early termination of the agreement, as well as regardless of which party pays or receives a reasonable 

compensation for early termination of the agreement. 

These amendments are applied retrospectively and come into effect for annual periods beginning from January 1, 2019. 

They may be applied before this date. These amendments do not affect the Bank's financial statements. 

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 "Sales or contributions of assets in agreements between an investor and its 

associate/joint venture" 

Amendments consider contradictions between IFRS 10 and IAS 28, in terms of accounting of the loss of control over a 

subsidiary that is sold to an associate or a joint venture, or is included in them. Amendments clarify that the profit or loss 

arising from the sale or transfer of assets representing a business, as defined in IFRS 3, in an agreement between an 

investor and its associate or joint venture, is recognized in full. However, the profit or loss arising from the sale or transfer 

of assets that do not constitute a business is recognized only within the participation share held by investors other than 

the organization in an associate or a joint venture. The IFRS Council postponed the date of entry into force of the 

amendments for an indefinite period, but the organization applying these amendments ahead of time should use them 

prospectively. The Bank will apply these amendments when they enter into force. 

  

http://www.interbuh.com.ua/ua/documents/oneregulations/65569
http://www.interbuh.com.ua/ua/documents/oneregulations/65577
http://www.interbuh.com.ua/ua/documents/oneregulations/65569
http://www.interbuh.com.ua/ua/documents/oneregulations/65577
http://www.interbuh.com.ua/ua/documents/oneregulations/62006
http://www.interbuh.com.ua/ua/documents/oneregulations/62014
http://www.interbuh.com.ua/ua/documents/oneregulations/65575
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Note 5. Standards issued and revised but not yet effective (continued) 

Amendments to IAS 19 "Amendments to the program, program reduction, or repayment of program obligations" 

Amendments to IAS 19 consider accounting in cases when changes to the program, program reduction or repayment of 

program obligations occur during the reporting period. Amendments clarify that if changes to the program, program 

reduction or repayment of program obligations occur during the reporting period, the organization must: 

determine the cost of services for the current period for the rest of period after changes to the program, program reduction 

or repayment of program obligations based on actuarial assumptions used to revalue the net liability (asset) of the program 

with a defined payment reflecting the rewards offered under the program, and program assets after this event; 

determine the net interest amount for the rest of the period after changes to the program, program reduction or repayment 

of program obligations, using: the net liability (asset) of the program with a defined payment, reflecting the rewards 

offered under the program, and program assets after this event; and the discount rate used to revalue this net liability 

(asset) of the program with a defined payment. 

The amendments also clarify that an organization should first determine the cost of services of past periods, or the profit 

or loss on repayment of liabilities under this program, without taking into account the effect of marginal value of the 

asset. This amount is recognized in profit or loss. Then the organization should determine the effect of marginal value of 

the assets after making changes to the program, its reduction or full repayment of the program obligations. Any change 

in this effect, except for amounts included in the net amount of interest, is recognized in other comprehensive income. 

These amendments apply to changes in the program, its reduction or full repayment of the program obligations that 

occurred on or after the first annual reporting period date, commencing on or after January 1, 2019. They may be applied 

before this date. These amendments will apply only in relation to future changes to the Bank's program, its reduction or 

repayment of program obligations. 

Amendments to IAS 28 "Long-term investments in associates and joint ventures" 

The amendments clarify that the organization applies IFRS 9 to the long-term investments in associates or joint ventures, 

to which the equity method of accounting is not applied, but which, in fact, form a part of net investments in an associate 

or a joint venture (long-term investments). This clarification is important since it means that the model of expected credit 

losses in IFRS 9 applies to such long-term investments. 

The amendments also explain that, when applying IFRS 9, an organization does not take into account losses incurred by 

an associate or a joint venture that is the impairment loss on net investments recognized as adjustments to the net 

investments in an associate or a joint venture arising as a result of application of IAS 28 "Investments in associates and 

joint ventures". 

These amendments are applied retrospectively and come into effect for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 

2019. They may be applied before this date. Since the Bank has no such long-term investments in an associate or a joint 

venture, the amendments will have no impact on its financial statements. 
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Note 5. Standards issued and revised but not yet effective (continued) 

IFRS 17 "Insurance agreements" 

In May 2017, the IFRS Council issued IFRS 17 "Insurance agreements", a new comprehensive financial reporting 

standard for insurance agreements that considers an issue of recognition, evaluation, presentation and disclosure of 

information. When IFRS 17 enters into force, it will replace IFRS 4 "Insurance agreements" issued in 2005. IFRS 17 

applies to all types of insurance agreements (that is life insurance and insurance other than life insurance, direct insurance 

and reinsurance) regardless of the type of organization that issues them, as well as certain precautionary measures and 

financial instruments with discretionary participation conditions. There are several exceptions to the field of application. 

The main objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model of the insurance agreements that is more efficient and 

consistent for insurers. Compared to IFRS 4 requirements, which are mainly based on previous local accounting policies, 

IFRS 17 provides for a comprehensive accounting model of the insurance agreements covering all relevant accounting 

aspects. IFRS 17 is based on the general model, supplemented by the following: 

certain modifications to insurance agreements with conditions of direct participation (variable remuneration method); 

a simplified approach (approach based on the bonus distribution), mainly for the short-term agreements. 

IFRS 17 will come into effect for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021. At that, it will be necessary 

to disclose the comparative information. It may be applied before this date, provided that the entity also applies IFRS 9 

and IFRS 15 at the date of first application. This standard is not applicable to the Bank. 

Clarification of IFRIC 23 "Uncertainty over income tax treatments" 

The clarification considers the procedure for accounting the income tax when there is an uncertainty about tax treatment 

that affects the application of IAS 12. The clarification does not apply to taxes or fees not included in field of IAS 12 

application, as well as does not contain specific requirements relating to interest and fines associated with the uncertain 

tax treatments. In particular, the clarification considers the following issues: 

- whether the organization considers the uncertain tax treatments separately; 

- assumptions made by the organization regarding tax treatments by the tax authorities; 

- how the organization determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax base, unused tax losses, unused tax benefits and 

tax rates; 

- how the organization considers changes in facts and circumstances. 

The organization should decide whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more 

other uncertain tax treatments. It is necessary to use an approach that will allow predicting the outcome of uncertainty 

more precisely. The clarification comes into effect for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.  

The Bank will apply the clarification from the date of its entry into force. Since the Bank operates in a complex tax 

environment, application of the clarification may affect the Bank's financial statements.  

IFRS 16 Leases 

 

IFRS 16 Leases shall become effective since 1 January 2019 being issued in January 2016 and substantially carry forward 

IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC Interpretation 15 Operating Leases 

- Incentives and SIC Interpretation 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. 

IFRS 16 establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires that 

all lessees used a single lessee accounting model, similarly to the accounting procedure stipulated in IAS 17 for finance 

lease. The standard provides for two recognition exemptions – leases where the underlying asset has a low value (such as 

personal computers) and short-term leases (leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the inception of the lease 

the lessee shall recognize the liability for lease payments (leasing obligation) and asset representing the right to use the 

underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., assets in the form of right to use). Lessees will be required to recognize 

depreciation of lease assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in the income statement. 
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Note 5. Standards issued and revised but not yet effective (continued) 

Lessees will also have to reassess lease obligations upon the occurrence of certain events (such as changes in lease terms, 

changes in future lease payments due to changes in indices or rates used to determine these payments). In most cases, the 

lessee will consider revaluation surplus of a lease obligation as the adjustment of an asset in the form of a right to use. 

IFRS 16’s approach to lessor accounting remained substantially unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17. Lessors will 

continue to classify leases using the same principles of classification as in IAS 17, distinguishing two types of leases: 

operating and finance. 

In addition, IFRS 16 requires lessors and lessees to disclose a larger volume of information than IAS 17 does. 

IFRS 16 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early adoption is permitted, but 

not before the date of adoption of IFRS 15. A lessee has the right to apply this standard using a retrospective approach or 

a modified retrospective approach. The transitional provisions provide for certain exemptions. The Bank plans to assess 

the possible impact of application of IFRS 16 on its financial statements. 

Subject to the Law of Ukraine "On Business Accounting and Financial Statements" starting from 2019 the enterprises 

that are of a public interest should prepare and submit financial statements to public authorities according the international 

standards in a unified electronic format (in XBRL format). 

The main advantages of XBRL are: 

- automatic data input-upload without repeated transformation; 

- fast and automatic preparation of a report (statement), including consolidated; 

- fast, efficient and reliable data analysis and comparison; 

- data tracking and less time for making decisions; 

- promotion of efficiency and cost effectiveness for regulatory (supervision) process. 
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Note 6. Cash and cash equivalents 

Table 1. Cash and cash equivalents 
  

   
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

1 Cash on hand 52 738 47 446 

2 Balance at correspondent account with the National Bank of Ukraine 62 739 40 033 

3 Correspondent accounts, deposits and overnight loans: 195 655 100 569 

3.1 domestic banks 39 672 39 074 

3.2 banks of other countries 155 983 61 495 

4 Total cash and cash equivalents 311 132 188 048     

Below is information on the credit quality of cash equivalents placed on correspondent accounts with banks.    
(UAH, ths.)  

Loan quality category (debtor's class) 31.12.2018 31.12.2017  
1 class 27 922 24 512  
2 class 167 498 73 288  
3 class 2 836 2 859  
4 class - -  
5 class - - 

 Cash equivalents placed on correspondent accounts with banks gross of 

provisions  
198 256 100 659 

 Provision for impairment of cash equivalents placed on correspondent 

accounts with banks  
(2 601) (90) 

 
Total cash equivalents placed on correspondent accounts with banks net 

of provisions 
195 655 100 569 

    

Table 2. Non-monetary investment transactions 
  

Table 3. Non-monetary financial transactions 
  

 

During 2017-2018, the Bank did not carry out financial and investment transactions that did not require the use of cash 

and cash equivalents and are not included in the Statement of cash flows. 

Note 7. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

No information available. 

Note 8. Loans and advances to banks 

Table 1. Loans and advances to banks 
  

   
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

1 Deposits in other banks 21 118 17 179 

1.1 short-term deposits  21 118 17 179 

1.2 long-term deposits - - 

2 Reverse purchase/repurchase contracts with other banks - - 

3 Loans to banks - - 

4 Provision for impairment of due from banks (2 959) - 

5 Total due from banks, net of provisions 18 159 17 179     

Line 1 comprises the amount of margin deposits of Ukrainian banks for card payments. 
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Note 8. Loans and advances to banks (continued) 

Table 2. Analysis of credit quality – loans and advances to banks as of 31.12.2018      
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Deposits 
Repo 

contracts 
Loans Total 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

1 Neither impaired nor overdue in 21 118 - - 21 118 

1.1 20 largest banks 21 118 - - 21 118 

1.2 other Ukrainian banks - - - - 

1.3 major OECD countries banks - - - - 

1.4 other OECD countries banks - - - - 

1.5 other banks - - - - 

2 Impaired funds estimated on individual basis - - - - 

3 Loans and advances to banks, gross of provisions 21 118 - - 21 118 

4 Provision for impairment of due from banks (2 959) - - (2 959) 

5 Total loans and advances to banks, net of provisions 18 159 - - 18 159       

Table 3. Analysis of credit quality – loans and advances to banks as of 31.12.2017 
  

   
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Deposits 
Repo 

contracts 
Loans Total 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

1 Neither impaired nor overdue in 17 179 - - 17 179 

1.1 20 largest banks 17 179 - - 17 179 

1.2 other Ukrainian banks - - - - 

1.3 major OECD countries banks - - - - 

1.4 other OECD countries banks - - - - 

1.5 other banks - - - - 

2 Impaired funds estimated on individual basis - - - - 

3 Loans and advances to banks, gross of provisions 17 179 - - 17 179 

4 Provision for impairment of due from banks - - - - 

5 Total loans and advances to banks, net of provisions 17 179 - - 17 179       

Table 4. Analysis of movement of provisions for impairment of loans and advances to banks      
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Movement of provisions 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

due from 

other banks 

repo 

contracts 

due from 

other banks 

repo 

contracts 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

1 Provision for impairment as of the beginning of the period - - - - 

2 Increase/(decrease) of impairment provision during the period  (2 959) - - - 

3 Bad debt written-off against provision - - - - 

4 Recovery of loans previously written-off as bad debts - - - - 

5 Transferring to disposal group assets - - - - 

6 Subsidiaries disposal - - - - 

7 Effect of translation into statements currency - - - - 

8 Provision for impairment as of the end of the period (2 959) - - - 
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Note 9. Loans and advances to customers 

Table 1. Loans and advances to customers 
  

   
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

1 Loans to government authorities and municipalities  - - 

2 Loans to legal entities 1 052 571 911 788 

3 Loans related to repo agreements - - 

4 Loans to individual entrepreneurs 266 028 120 042 

5 Mortgage loans to individuals 23 769 10 799 

6 Consumer loans to individuals 78 161 75 984 

7 Other loans to individuals 1 739 3 070 

8 Provision for loan impairment (28 506) (130 814) 

9 Total loans to customers less provisions 1 393 762 990 869 
    

There were no securities that are a collateral for loans to customers and advances to customers under repo transactions. 

 
Table 2. Analysis of movements in loan loss provisions as of 31.12.2018          

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Movements in provisions 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

1 
Balance as at the beginning of 

the period 
- (126 609) - (355) (13) (3 679) (158) (130 814) 

2 

(Increase)/decrease in 

impairment provision during the 

year 

- (28 396) - (4 085) (275) (2 500) 125 (35 131) 

3 
Bad debt written-off against 

provision 
- 133 189 - - - 2 509 - 135 698 

4 
Recovery of loans previously 

written-off 
- - - - - - - - 

5 
Transferring to disposal group 

assets 
- - - - - - - - 

6 Subsidiaries disposal - - - - - - - - 

7 
Effect of presentation currency 

translation 
- 1 712 - 13 - 16 - 1 741 

8 
Balance as at the end of the 

period 
- (20 104) - (4 427) (288) (3 654) (33) (28 506) 
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Note 9. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 

Table 3. Analysis of movements in loan loss provisions as of 31.12.2017         
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Movements in provisions 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

1 
Balance as at the beginning of 

the period 
- (102 527) - (1 361) (127) (4 411) (129) (108 555) 

2 

(Increase)/decrease in 

impairment provision during the 

year 

- (15 805) - 1 030 115 812 (29) (13 877) 

3 
Bad debt written-off against 

provision 
- - - - - - - - 

4 
Recovery of loans previously 

written-off 
- - - - - - - - 

5 
Transferring to disposal group 

assets 
- - - - - - - - 

6 Subsidiaries disposal - - - - - - - - 

7 
Effect of presentation currency 

translation 
- (8 277) - (24) (1) (80) - (8 382) 

8 
Balance as at the end of the 

period 
- (126 609) - (355) (13) (3 679) (158) (130 814) 

 
Table 4. Loan structure by types of economic activity     

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Economic activity 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

amount % amount % 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

1 Public Administration - 0% - 0% 

2 Production and distribution of electrical power, gas and water 6 603 1% 2 740 1% 

3 Real estate operations, lease, engineering and service delivery 179 612 13% 114 308 10% 

4 Trading; maintenance of vehicles, household goods and items of 

personal use  
427 710 30% 303 887 27% 

5 Agriculture, hunting and forestry  146 977 10% 47 380 4% 

6 Private individuals 103 668 7% 89 852 8% 

7 Other 557 698 39% 563 516 50% 

8 Total loans and advances to customers net of provisions 1 422 268 100% 1 121 683 100%        
Line "Others" comprises: 

  
(UAH, ths.)  

31.12.2018 31.12.2017  
amount % amount % 

Processing industry 298 758 21% 272 513 24% 

Construction 56 211 4% 110 691 10% 

Transportation, warehousing, postal and courier activities 124 585 9% 141 361 13% 

Others 78 144 5% 38 951 3%  
557 698 39% 563 516 50% 
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Note 9. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 

The Bank analyses monthly the credit risk concentration on the amounts of loans granted to the economy sectors. This 

analysis identifies the largest concentration of loans in the loan portfolio by economic activity and is an integral part 

of credit risk management. 

The total loans of the Bank’s 10 largest borrowers amounted to UAH 317 291 thousand or 22% of the loan portfolio 

before impairment, as at 31 December 2017 – UAH 382 535 thousand or 34%). 

 
Table 5. Loans by types of collateral as of 31.12.2018         

(UAH, ths.) 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

1 Unsecured loans - 24 060 - 3 649 2 382 27 602 1 650 59 343 

2 Loans secured by: - 1 028 511 - 262 379 21 387 50 559 89 1 362 925 

2.1 cash - 24 975 - 163 150 2 752 - 28 040 

2.2 securities - - - - - - - - 

2.3 real estate - 780 274 - 213 122 21 237 45 009 - 1 059 642 

2.3.1 including residential 

(housing) buildings 
- 150 923 - 102 224 20 612 29 778 - 303 537 

2.4 guarantees and indemnities - 37 010 - 8 826 - - - 45 836 

2.5 other assets - 186 252 - 40 268 - 2 798 89 229 407 

3 Total loans and advances to 

customers net of provisions 
- 1 052 571 - 266 028 23 769 78 161 1 739 1 422 268 

 
Table 6. Loans by types of collateral as of 31.12.2017         

(UAH, ths.) 
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1 Unsecured loans - - - - - - - - 
2 Loans secured by: - 911 788 - 120 042 10 799 75 984 3 070 1 121 683 

2.1 cash - 14 120 - 1 654 261 5 425 1 972 23 432 

2.2 securities - - - - - - - - 

2.3 real estate - 321 275 - 76 770 9 136 31 777 - 438 958 

2.3.1 including residential 

(housing) buildings 
- 36 175 - 43 134 8 809 20 904 - 109 022 

2.4 guarantees and indemnities - - - - - - - - 

2.5 other assets - 576 393 - 41 618 1 402 38 782 1 098 659 293 

3 Total loans and advances to 

customers net of provisions 
- 911 788 - 120 042 10 799 75 984 3 070 1 121 683 
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Note 9. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 
 

Table 7. Analysis of credit quality as of 31.12.2018          
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 
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1 
1st stage of impairment – loan losses 

expected within 12 months 
- 953 939 - 257 990 23 769 69 450 1 691 1 306 839 

1.1 without payment delay - 886 083 - 257 079 23 327 68 598 1 682 1 236 769 

1.2 with payment delay up to 31 days - 67 856 - 911 442 852 - 70 061 

1.3 with payment delay from 32 to 92 days - - - - - - 9 9 

1.4 with payment delay from 93 to 183 days - - - - - - - - 

1.5 
with payment delay from 184 to 365 (366) 

days 
- - - - - - - - 

1.6 with payment delay more than 366 (367) days - - - - - - - - 

2 

2nd stage of impairment – loan losses 

expected within the loan instrument term, 

under unimpaired loans 

- 86 206 - 6 588 - 5 979 43 98 816 

2.1 without payment delay - 84 898 - 6 547 - 5 774 35 97 254 

2.2 with payment delay up to 31 days - - - - - - - - 

2.3 with payment delay from 32 to 92 days - 1 308 - 41 - 205 8 1 562 

2.4 with payment delay from 93 to 183 days - - - - - - - - 

2.5 
with payment delay from 184 to 365 (366) 

days 
- - - - - - - - 

2.6 with payment delay more than 366 (367) days - - - - - - - - 

3 

3rd stage of impairment – loan losses 

expected within the loan instrument term, 

impaired loans 

- 12 426 - 1 450 - 2 732 5 16 613 

3.1 without payment delay - - - - - - 2 2 

3.2 with payment delay up to 31 days - - - - - - - - 

3.3 with payment delay from 32 to 92 days - - - 766 - 21 - 787 

3.4 with payment delay from 93 to 183 days - 7 852 - 281 - 71 - 8 204 

3.5 
with payment delay from 184 to 365 (366) 

days 
- - - - - 128 3 131 

3.6 with payment delay more than 366 (367) days - 4 574 - 403 - 2 512 - 7 489 

4 
Total loan amount before deducting 

provisions 
- 1 052 571 - 266 028 23 769 78 161 1 739 1 422 268 

5 Provisions for loan impairment - (20 104) - (4 427) (288) (3 654) (33) (28 506) 

6 Total loans less provisions - 1 032 467 - 261 601 23 481 74 507 1 706 1 393 762 
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Note 9. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 
 

Table 8. Analysis of credit quality for 31.12.2017          
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 
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1 Undue and non-impaired - 537 451 - 96 727 9 293 49 809 2 057 695 337 

1.1 
Large borrowers with credit record 

more than 2 years 
- 110 434 - - - - - 110 434 

1.2 New large borrowers - 158 825 - - - - - 158 825 

1.3 Loans to medium-sized businesses - 183 553 - - - - - 183 553 

1.4 Loans to small-sized businesses - 84 639 - - - - - 84 639 

1.5 Other loans to private individuals - - - 96 727 9 293 49 809 2 057 157 886 

2 Overdue, but non-impaired - 7 162 - 599 649 1 275 - 9 685 

2.1 with payment delay up to 31 days - 1 456 - 278 - 70 - 1 804 

2.2 with payment delay from 32 to 92 days - 1 883 - - 304 56 - 2 243 

2.3 
with payment delay from 93 to 183 

days 
- 2 553 - - 345 789 - 3 687 

2.4 
with payment delay from 184 to 365 

(366) days 
- - - 321 - - - 321 

2.5 
with payment delay more than 366 

(367) days 
- 1 270 - - - 360 - 1 630 

3 
Impaired loans estimated on 

individual basis 
- 367 175 - 22 716 857 24 900 1 013 416 661 

3.1 with payment delay up to 31 days - - - 205 - 409 - 614 

3.2 with payment delay from 32 to 92 days - 307 - 383 - 246 - 936 

3.3 
with payment delay from 93 to 183 

days 
- 595 - - - 159 - 754 

3.4 
with payment delay from 184 to 365 

(366) days 
- 12 800 - - - 181 - 12 981 

3.5 
with payment delay more than 366 

(367) days 
- 91 726 - 2 - 3 783 13 95 524 

3.6 without payment delay - 261 747 - 22 126 857 20 122 1 000 305 852 

4 
Total loan amount before deducting 

provisions 
- 911 788 - 120 042 10 799 75 984 3 070 1 121 683 

5 Provisions for loan impairment - (126 609) - (355) (13) (3 679) (158) (130 814) 

6 Total loans less provisions - 785 179 - 119 687 10 786 72 305 2 912 990 869 
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Note 9. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 
 

Table 9. Effect of collateral value on credit quality as of 31.12.2018 
 

    
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 
Carrying 

amount 

Expected 

cash flows 

from sale of 

collateral 

Collateral 

effect 

1 2 3 4 5 = 3-4 

1 Loans to government authorities and municipalities  - - - 

2 Loans to legal entities  1 052 571 961 224 91 347 

3 Loans under repo transactions  - - - 

4 Loans to individual entrepreneurs 266 028 259 199 6 829 

5 Mortgage loans to individuals 23 769 20 809 2 960 

6 Consumer loans to individuals  78 161 52 016 26 145 

7 Other loans to individuals 1 739 - 1 739 

8 Total loans  1 422 268 1 293 248 129 020      

Table 10. Effect of collateral value on credit quality as of 31.12.2017     
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 
Carrying 

amount 

Expected 

cash flows 

from sale of 

collateral 

Collateral 

effect 

1 2 3 4 5 = 3-4 

1 Loans to government authorities and municipalities  - - - 

2 Loans to legal entities  911 788 291 432 620 356 

3 Loans under repo transactions  - - - 

4 Loans to individual entrepreneurs 120 042 39 643 80 399 

5 Mortgage loans to individuals 10 799 3 537 7 262 

6 Consumer loans to individuals  75 984 10 195 65 789 

7 Other loans to individuals 3 070 - 3 070 

8 Total loans  1 121 683 344 807 776 876      

The cost of assets provided as a collateral is determined by the market (fair) and residual value taking into account the 

practical difficulty of assets’ sale. Fair market value is the price based on the current market value, determined by 

supply and demand ratio and represents the amount by which an asset may be exchanged or obligation may be repaid 

between knowledgeable willing parties. 

Since the condition of certain non-current assets held for sale (balance sheet account 3408) did not ensure a high degree 

of probability of their sale, in 2018 the Bank classified them as current assets and accounted for as property passed into 

the Bank’s ownership as a mortgagee (balance sheet account 3409). 

During the reporting period the total amount of assets acquired through foreclosure on the collateralized property and 

classified as non-current assets held for sale or as property passed into the Bank’s ownership as a mortgagee decreased 

by UAH 7 037 thousand. 

The Bank’s Management annually approves the plan for implementation of property passed into the Bank’s ownership 

as a mortgagee. 
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Note 10. Investments in securities 

 
Table 1. Investments in securities 

  

   
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

1 Government bonds 389 392 311 565 

2 Municipal bonds - - 

3 Corporate bonds - - 

4 Promissory notes - - 

5 Provisions for impairment of investments in securities - - 

6 Total investments in securities less provisions 389 392 311 565 
    

  Line "Government bonds" comprises: 
  

  
 

31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

  Deposit certificates of the National Bank of Ukraine 250 491 282 578 

 Domestic government loan bonds 138 901 28 987 

  389 392 311 565 

 
Table 2. Analysis of changes in provision for impairment of investments in securities as of 
31.12.2018     

As of 31.12.2018 no provision was formed for impairment of investments in securities.     

Table 3. Analysis of changes in provision for impairment of investments in securities as of 
31.12.2017     

As of 31.12.2017 no provision was formed for impairment of investments in securities. 

Table 4. Analysis of credit quality of investments in securities as of 31.12.2018      
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

1 Undue and non-impaired debt securities 389 392 - - - 389 392 

1.1 State institutions and enterprises 389 392 - - - 389 392 

1.2 Municipal authorities - - - - - 

1.3 Larges businesses - - - - - 

1.4 Medium businesses - - - - - 

1.5 Small businesses - - - - - 

2 Not redeemed within an issuer specified term, 

but not impaired debt securities 
- - - - - 

3 Impaired debt securities estimated on individual 

basis 
- - - - - 

4 Provision for impairment of investments in 

securities 
- - - - - 

5 Total investments in securities less provisions 389 392 - - - 389 392 
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Note 10. Investments in securities (continued) 

Table 5. Analysis of credit quality of investments in securities as of 31.12.2017      
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

1 Undue and non-impaired debt securities 311 565 - - - 311 565 

1.1 State institutions and enterprises 311 565 - - - 311 565 

1.2 Municipal authorities - - - - - 

1.3 Larges businesses - - - - - 

1.4 Medium businesses - - - - - 

1.5 Small businesses - - - - - 

2 
Not redeemed within an issuer specified term, 

but not impaired debt securities 
- - - - - 

3 
Impaired debt securities estimated on individual 

basis 
- - - - - 

4 
Provision for impairment of investments in 

securities 
- - - - - 

5 Total investments in securities less provisions 311 565 - - - 311 565 

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, there were no securities transferred without derecognition as a collateral 

for repo transactions. 

 
Note 11. Derivative financial assets 

There were no any derivative financial assets. 

 

Note 12. Investments in associates/associates and subsidiaries 

There were no investments in associates and subsidiaries. 
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Note 13. Investment property 

Table 1. Investment property estimated using: 
  

1) fair value method 
  

   
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

1 Fair value of investment property as at the beginning of the period 24 883 24 806 

2 Acquisitions - - 

3 Capital investments into reconstruction  - 77 

4 Proceeds on business combination - - 

5 Transfer to non-current assets held for sale and disposal group assets - - 

6 Disposals - - 

7 Transfer to category of owner-occupied buildings - - 

8 Transfer from category of owner-occupied buildings - - 

9 Effect of presentation currency translation - - 

10 Profit (loss) from revaluation to fair value - - 

11 Other changes - - 

12 Fair value of investment property as at the end of the period 24 883 24 883  
 

  

In 2015, the Bank in the course of a loan repayment procedure made a transaction of recognition on the balance sheet of real 

estate (a building), followed by its classification as an investment property. 

The Bank’s investment Property is not classified as a part of property held under an operating lease contract. The fair value 

of investment property is measured using the income and comparative assessment methods.     

Table 2. Amounts recognized in the statement of comprehensive income      
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

1 Income from investment property lease 1 837 1 500 

2 Direct operating expenses (including maintenance) on investment property which 

generates income from lease 
(222) (150) 

3 Other direct expenses which do not generate income from lease - - 

     

Table 3. Minimum amounts of future lease payments under irrevocable operating lease, where the Bank 
acts as a lessor.     

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

1 Up to 1 year 1 529 1 858 

2 From 1 to 5 year 72 1 107 

3 Over 5 year - - 

4 Total payments to be received from operating lease 1 601 2 965 

There were no significant agreements of non-cancellable operating lease. 

  

 
Note 14. Goodwill 

The Bank conducted no transactions with goodwill.  
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Note 15. Fixed and intangible assets 

Table 1. Fixed and intangible assets 
           

           
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 11.1 12 

1 Carrying amount as at the beginning of 2017 9 851 91 008 5 589 522 3 432 1 629 - 171 9 039 - 121 241 

1.1 historical (revalued) cost 9 851 100 436 14 666 1 307 7 234 2 835 1 403 171 12 178 - 150 081 

1.2 depreciation as at the beginning of 2017  - (9 428) (9 077) (785) (3 802) (1 206) (1 403) - (3 139) - (28 840) 

2 Acquisition related to business combination - - - - - - - - - - - 

3 Proceeds - 646 2 632 1 095 55 281 225 8 226 2 995 - 16 155 

4 
Capital investments into fixed assets completion and 

intangible assets improvement  
- - - - - - - - - - - 

5 
Transfer to non-current assets held-for-sale and disposal 

group assets  
- - - - - - - - - - - 

6 Other transfers - - - - - - - - - - - 

7 Disposal  - - (789) (264) (42) (43) (65) (7 992) (76) - (9 271) 

8 Amortization charges - (1 081) (1 711) (148) (509) (196) (225) - (1 269) - (5 139) 

9 Diminishing utility  - - - - - - - - - - - 

10 Utility recovery  - - - - - - - - - - - 

11 Revaluation 1 333 9 862 - - - - - - - - 11 195 

11.1 historical cost 1 333 10 789 - - - - - - - - 12 122 

11.2 depreciation - (927) - - - - - - - - (927) 

12 Effect of presentation currency translation  - - - - - - - - - - - 

13 Other changes - - 773 264 37 39 65 - 76 - 1 254 
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Note 15. Fixed and intangible assets (continued) 

Line Item 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 11.1 12 

14 
Carrying amount as at the end of 2017 (beginning of 

2018) 
11 184 100 435 6 494 1 469 2 973 1 710 - 405 10 765 - 135 435 

14.1 historical (revalued) cost 11 184 111 871 16 509 2 138 7 247 3 073 1 563 405 15 097 - 169 087 

14.2 depreciation as at the end of 2017 (beginning of 2018) - (11 436) (10 015) (669) (4 274) (1 363) (1 563) - (4 332) - (33 652) 

15 Acquisition related to business combination - - - - - - - - - - - 

16 Proceeds - 4 101 4 965 2 768 1 075 532 2 523 24 051 5 703 - 45 718 

17 
Capital investments into fixed assets completion and 

intangible assets improvement 
- - - - - - - - - - - 

18 
Transfer to non-current assets held-for-sale and disposal 

group assets 
- - - - - - - - - - - 

19 Other transfers - - - - - - - - - - - 

20 Disposal  - (259) (731) (384) (200) (59) (1 891) (20 006) (3 379) - (26 909) 

21 Amortization charges - (1 275) (1 983) (330) (524) (223) (782) - (1 599) - (6 716) 

22 Diminishing utility  - - - - - - - - - - - 

23 Utility recovery  - - - - - - - - - - - 

24 Revaluation - - - - - - - - - - - 

24.1 historical cost - - - - - - - - - - - 

24.2 depreciation - - - - - - - - - - - 

25 Effect of presentation currency translation  - - - - - - - - - - - 

26 Other changes - 47 730 384 194 51 150 - 1 512 - 3 068 

27 Carrying amount as of 31.12.2018 11 184 103 049 9 475 3 907 3 518 2 011 - 4 450 13 002 - 150 596 

27.1 historical (revalued) cost 11 184 115 713 20 743 4 522 8 122 3 546 2 195 4 450 17 421 - 187 896 

27.2 depreciation as of 31.12.2018 - (12 664) (11 268) (615) (4 604) (1 535) (2 195) - (4 419) - (37 300) 

Lines 13 and 26 "Other changes" reflect the amount of impairment under fixed assets and intangibles assets disposed in the reporting period.
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Note 15. Fixed and intangible assets (continued) 

 value of fixed assets in relation to which there are restrictions concerning ownership, usage and 

disposal foreseen by the legislation of Ukraine: 

- 

 value of pledged fixed and intangible assets:  - 

 residual value of fixed assets that are temporarily not used (temporary closing down, 

reconstruction etc.): 

- 

 residual value of fixed assets extracted from operation for sale: - 

 historical (revalued) cost of fully depreciated fixed assets: 8 481 

 value of intangible assets in relation to which there are restrictions concerning ownership: - 

 value of internally created intangible assets: - 

 increases or decreases during the accounting period which arise in the result of revaluation and 

losses from the impairment acknowledged or reversed directly in equity: 

- 

Subsequent to initial recognition of a fixed/intangible asset as an asset, it is accounted for: 

 at revalued amount (fair value) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (groups of fixed 

assets "land plots" and "buildings"); 

 at initial value (cost) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (for other groups of fixed 

and intangible assets).  

Revaluation of fixed assets is carried out as of the financial statements date in order to make the book value of fixed 

assets compliant with market prices in case of substantial difference (more than 10%) between market and book values. 

The market value is determined by comparison of analogues based on reports of internal and external valuator who has 

the relevant professional qualification and actual experience in valuation of property with the equivalent location and 

category. 

Due to the fact that as of 31 December 2017 and as of 31 December 2018 the difference between book and market values 

of buildings and land plots was not substantial, revaluation was not carried out.  

Since land plots and buildings are assessed by comparing prices of similar assets, they are classified as Level 2 fair value 

hierarchy. 

Note 16. Other assets 

Table 1. Other financial assets 
  

(UAH, ths.)     
Line Item Notes 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 5 

1 Receivables under securities   - - 

2 Receivables under finance lease   - - 

3 Receivables under payment card transactions   1 174 9 

4 Receivables under foreign currency transactions   - - 

5 Derivative financial assets    - - 

6 Restricted cash    - - 

7 Other financial assets   15 764 10 575 

8 Provision for impairment of other financial assets   (371) (1 675) 

9 Total other financial assets less    16 567 8 909 

          

  Line "Other financial assets" comprises: 
 

 

  
  

31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

  Other receivables from transactions with the Bank's customers  7 476 2 626 

 Other receivables from transactions with banks  7 325 6 506 

 Shortages and other charges for bank employees  - 100 

 Other accrued income  565 1 008 

 Accrued income from cash management services   398 335 

   15 764 10 575 
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Note 16. Other assets (continued) 

Table 2. Analysis of changes in provision for impairment of other financial assets as of 31.12.2018       
(UAH, ths.)  

Line Movements in provisions 
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1 Balance as at the beginning of the period - - - - - (1 675) (1 675) 

2 
Increase/(decrease) in provision for 

impairment during the period  

- - - - - 78 78 

3 Bad debts written-off - - - - - 1 226 1 226 

4 Transfer to disposal group assets - - - - - - - 

5 Effect of presentation currency translation - - - - - - - 

6 Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 

7 Balance as at the end of the period - - - - - (371) (371) 

Table 3. Analysis of changes in provision for impairment of other financial assets as of 31.12.2017        
(UAH, ths.)  

Line Movements in provisions 
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1 Balance as at the beginning of the period - - - - - (1 350) (1 350) 

2 
Increase/(decrease) in provision for 

impairment during the period  

- - - - - (325) (325) 

3 Bad debts written-off - - - - - - - 

4 Transfer to disposal group assets - - - - - - - 

5 Effect of presentation currency translation - - - - - - - 

6 Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 

7 Balance as at the end of the period - - - - - (1 675) (1 675) 
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Note 16. Other assets (continued) 

Table 4. Credit quality analysis of other financial assets as of 31.12.2018 
       

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 
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1 Undue and non-impaired - - 1 174 - - 7 828 9 002 

1.1 
large borrowers with credit record more 

than 2 years 
- - 1 174 - - 7 496 8 670 

1.2 New large borrowers - - - - - 78 78 

1.3 Medium-sized companies  - - - - - 113 113 

1.4 Small-sized companies - - - - - 141 141 

2 
Overdue but non-impaired debt with delay 

in payment 
- - - - - 162 162 

2.1 up to 31 days - - - - - 79 79 

2.2 from 32 to 92 days - - - - - 23 23 

2.3 from 93 to 183 days - - - - - 11 11 

2.4 from 184 to 365 (366) days - - - - - 17 17 

2.5 more than 366 (367) days - - - - - 32 32 

3 
Debts impaired on individual basis with 

delay in payment 
- - - - - 7 774 7 774 

3.1 up to 31 days - - - - - 184 184 

3.2 from 32 to 92 days - - - - - 105 105 

3.3 from 93 to 183 days - - - - - 23 23 

3.4 from 184 to 365 (366) days - - - - - 22 22 

3.5 more than 366 (367) days - - - - - 7 440 7 440 

4 
Total other financial assets before 

deducting provisions 
- - 1 174 - - 15 764 16 938 

5 
Provisions for other financial assets 

impairment 
- - - - - (371) (371) 

6 
Total other financial assets less 

provisions 
- - 1 174 - - 15 393 16 567 
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Note 16. Other assets (continued) 
 
Table 5. Credit quality analysis of other financial assets as of 31.12.2017 
       

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 
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1 Undue and non-impaired - - 9 - - 2 769 2 778 

1.1 
large borrowers with credit record more 

than 2 years 
- - 9 - - 2 625 2 634 

1.2 New large borrowers - - - - - 1 1 

1.3 Medium-sized companies  - - - - - 110 110 

1.4 Small-sized companies - - - - - 33 33 

2 
Overdue but non-impaired debt with delay 

in payment 
- - - - - 112 112 

2.1 up to 31 days - - - - - 112 112 

2.2 from 32 to 92 days - - - - - - - 

2.3 from 93 to 183 days - - - - - - - 

2.4 from 184 to 365 (366) days - - - - - - - 

2.5 more than 366 (367) days - - - - - - - 

3 
Debts impaired on individual basis with 

delay in payment 
- - - - - 7 694 7 694 

3.1 up to 31 days - - - - - 772 772 

3.2 from 32 to 92 days - - - - - 46 46 

3.3 from 93 to 183 days - - - - - 106 106 

3.4 from 184 to 365 (366) days - - - - - 27 27 

3.5 more than 366 (367) days - - - - - 6 743 6 743 

4 
Total other financial assets before 

deducting provisions 
- - 9 - - 10 575 10 584 

5 
Provisions for other financial assets 

impairment 
- - - - - (1 675) (1 675) 

6 
Total other financial assets less 

provisions 
- - 9 - - 8 900 8 909 
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Note 16. Other assets (continued) 

Table 6. Total amount of minimum lease payments receivable under finance lease and their 
present value as of 31.12.2018      

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Up to 1 year From 1 to 5 

years 

Over 5 

years 

Total 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

1 

Total amount of minimum lease payments 

under finance lease receivable at the end of 

the reporting period  

1 007 4 018 1 918 6 943 

2 Future financial income  122 299 36 457 

3 
Provision for financial lease liabilities at the 

end of the reporting period  
(13) (53) (25) (91) 

4 
Present value of minimum lease payments at 

the end of the reporting period 
1 076 4 303 2 062 7 441 

      
 

The Bank signed a contract for sale of own real estate (non-residential building) passed into the Bank’s ownership as 

a mortgagee. Under the contract, the sale is performed on terms of deferred debt repayment according to the schedule. 

Since the above transaction constitutes financial leasing by its form with the transfer of ownership right at the end of 

the contract, the Bank recognizes it on the respective accounts.  

 
Table 7. Other assets 

   

    
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Notes 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 5 

1 Receivables from assets purchase   777 280 

2 Prepayment for services   367 1 310 

3 Banking metals   - - 

4 Property transferred to the ownership of the Bank as a pledgee   57 497 85 502 

5 Other assets   5 184 5 370 

6 Provisions for other assets    (473) (1 191) 

7 Total other assets less provisions   63 352 91 271 

     

  Line "Other assets" comprises: 
   

  
  

31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

  Inventory in stock 
 

65 25 

  Inventory at accountable persons 
 

44 67 

  Deferred expenses 
 

924 1 139 

 Transit account for other settlement of accounts  1 - 

 Receivables from taxes and duties other than income tax  4 150 4 139 

      5 184 5 370 

          

The property passed into the ownership of the Bank as a mortgagee consists of a residential building, industrial 

buildings and constructions, equipment, construction in progress of a residential building, etc. 

The transfer of property by debtors into the Bank’s ownership to repay liabilities is governed by the corresponding 

internal regulations. 

According to them, it is appropriate to accept into the Bank’s ownership the property, further implementation of which 

will allow the Bank to compensate the liabilities outstanding, unless otherwise provided by a mortgage agreement 

(pledge agreement). 
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Note 16. Other assets (continued) 

If the property intended for sale was not implemented during a year, such property is transferred into the assets held 

for use in operating activities. 

Extension of the period required to complete the sale is permitted if the delay is caused by events or circumstances that 

are beyond the Bank, but there are reasons to believe that the Bank continues to be engages in the sale of an asset. 

 

Table 8. Analysis of movements in provision for impairment of other assets     
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Movements in provisions 

Receivables from 

acquisition of 

assets 

Prepayment 

for services 
Other assets 

1 2 3 4 5 

1 Balance as of 31.12.2017 - - (1 191) 

2 Increase/(decrease) in provision for impairment during 

the period 

- - 
(360) 

3 Bad debts written-off - - 1 078 

4 Transfer to disposal group assets - - - 

5 Effect of presentation currency translation - - - 

6 Disposal of subsidiaries - - - 

7 Balance as of 31.12.2018 - - (473) 

 

Note 17. Non-current assets held for sale and disposal group assets 

Table 1. Non-current assets held for sale and disposal group assets    
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

Non-current assets held for sale 

1 Fixed assets 26 454 5 486 

2 Total non-current assets held for sale 26 454 5 486     

Total non-current assets held for sale consist of collateral, for which the Bank enforced a pledge in repayment of loans 

(premises of café/bar, facility under construction, land plot, apartments and non-residential premises). The assets are 

planned to be sold during 2019-2020. 

 

Note 18. Due to banks 

 

Table 1. Due to banks 
  

   
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

1 Correspondent accounts and overnight deposits due to other banks - - 

2 Due to the National Bank of Ukraine - - 

3 Other banks’ deposits - - 

4 Repo contracts with other banks - - 

5 Loans received  - 2 007 

6 Overdue funds raised from other banks - - 

7 Total due to other banks - 2 007 

The Bank timely and fully complies with its liabilities regarding the amounts due and interest on them. There are no 

assets provided by the Bank to third parties as a security for its obligations under the funds received from other banks. 
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Note 19. Due to customers 

 
Table 1. Due to customers 

    

    
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item     31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2     3 4 

1 State and non-government organizations     603 - 

1.1 current accounts     603 - 

1.2 time deposits     - - 

2 Other legal entities     654 806 559 856 

2.1 current accounts     425 852 371 628 

2.2 time deposits     228 954 188 228 

3 Private individuals     1 033 268 799 191 

3.1 current accounts     130 534 94 440 

3.2 time deposits     902 734 704 751 

4 Total due to customers     1 688 677 1 359 047       

Table 2. Due to customers by types of economic activities     
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Economic activity 
31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

amount % amount % 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

1 Public Administration 1 149 0% 347 0% 

2 
Production and distribution of electrical power, gas 

and water 
2 471 0% 5 949 0% 

3 
Real estate operations, lease, engineering and 

service delivery 
118 100 7% 92 886 7% 

4 
Trading; maintenance of vehicles, household goods 

and items of personal use 
102 378 6% 166 787 12% 

5 Agriculture, hunting and forestry 11 378 1% 11 938 1% 

6 Private individuals  1 033 268 61% 799 191 59% 

7 Other 419 933 25% 281 949 21% 

8 Total due to customers 1 688 677 100% 1 359 047 100% 

  

Line "Other" comprises: 

  

(UAH, ths.)   
31.12.2018 31.12.2017   

amount % amount %  
Processing industry 138 269 8% 117 901 9%  
Construction 98 472 6% 33 670 2%  
Transportation, warehousing, postal and courier 

activities 
25 616 2% 15 353 1% 

 
Finance and insurance activities 114 151 7% 75 696 6%  
Legal entities – non-residents 29 507 1% 18 209 1%  
Other 13 918 1% 21 120 2%   

419 933 25% 281 949 21%       
As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of due to customers that represent a collateral for credit operations, 

irrevocable commitments under import letters of credit, guarantees, sureties, etc., was UAH 39 052 thousand (as at 31 

December 2017 - UAH 27 089 thousand). 

There were no significant concentrations of the credit-deposit schemes. 
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Note 20. Derivative financial liabilities 

Table 1. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss    
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

1 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in trade portfolio - - 

2 Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss upon initial 

recognition 

- 58 

3 Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - 58 

The Bank classified a deed under currency swap-contract to be included in financial liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss. 
 

Note 21. Debt securities issued by the Bank 

The Bank did not issue debt securities. 

 
Note 22. Other borrowed funds 

 
Table 1. Other borrowed funds 

  

  
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

1 Syndicated loans received - - 

2 Loans from international and other financial organizations  206 663 108 509 

3 Finance lease liabilities - - 

4 Liabilities on return of provision sold or surcharged - - 

5 Total 206 663 108 509     

On 20.11.2018 the Bank and the Nordic Environment Finance Corporation signed an agreement on EUR 3 000 loan 

for financing energy efficiency projects, providing loans to small and medium-sized companies. 

On 06.12.2018 the Bank and companies Triodos Custody B.V. (The Netherlands) and Triodos SICAV II – Triodos 

Microfinance Fund (Luxembourg) – inclusive financial funds of Triodos Investment Management (The Netherlands) 

have signed an agreement for credit facility with the total amount of EUR 5 000 thousand with the purpose of extension 

of the credit portfolio by the Bank's borrowers – small and/or medium businesses. 

On 12.12.2018 the Bank and the German-Ukrainian Fund (GUF) have signed an agreement for loans in the amount of 

UAH 30 000 thousand under the program for support to financing of investment projects of small and medium 

businesses and in the amount of EUR 2 000 thousand under the microcredit program. 

Property rights under loan agreements executed by the Bank with each business entity and property rights under 

pledge/financial surety agreements securing the fulfillment of such business entities' loan obligations to the Bank have 

been provided by the Bank as a collateral under the loan received from the GUF. 

On 27.12.2018 the Bank and responsAbility Participations AG (Switzerland) have signed the agreement of UAH loan 

for the amount equivalent to USD 700 thousand (as of the loan date – UAH 19 087 thousand) for financing commercial, 

and investment projects in the field of agriculture, energy efficiency, modernization, industry, services provision etc. 

There were no facts of the Bank's failure to fulfil its liabilities on borrowed funds principal and interest. 

There were no fixed assets received in finance lease. 
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Note 23. Provisions for liabilities 

 
Table 1. Movement of provisions for liabilities for 2018      

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Movement of provisions 
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1 Balance as of 31.12.2017   - - - - 

2 Formation and/or increase of provision   155 - - 155 

3 Provision increase upon business combination   - - - - 

4 Fees received under issued guarantees   - - - - 

5 Amortization of fees received under issued guarantees as 

reflected in Statement of profit and loss and other 

comprehensive income 

  - - - - 

6 Provision utilization   - - - - 

7 Renewal of unused provision   - - - - 

8 Effect of presentation currency translation   - - - - 

9 Other movement   - - - - 

10 Balance as of 31.12.2018   155 - - 155 

 

Note 24. Other liabilities 

Table 1. Other financial liabilities 

   

   
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Notes 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 5 

1 Payables under securities   6 14 

2 Payables under payment card transactions   56 16 

3 Payables under foreign currency transactions   4 499 3 588 

4 Dividends payable   6 6 

6 Other financial liabilities   37 843 21 308 

7 Total other financial liabilities   42 410 24 932 

 

 Line "Other financial liabilities" comprises: 
 

(UAH, ths.)    
31.12.2018 31.12.2017  

Accounts payable for payments accepted 
 

52 62  
Due to customers under inactive accounts 

 
51 46  

Other payables under transactions with customers  31 443 20 394  
Payables under transactions with other financial instruments  47 17 

 Transit account under other settlement of accounts  4 254 3  
Other expenses accrued 

 
610 547 

 Payables for services  3 - 

 Suspense credit amount  1 383 239    
37 843 21 308 
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Note 24. Other liabilities (continued) 

Table 2. Other liabilities 

   

   
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Notes 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 5 

1 Payables for taxes and charges except for income tax 
  

4 928 3 591 

2 Accounts payable for Bank payroll payments 
  

19 1 

3 Accounts payable for assets purchase 
  

- - 

4 Deferred revenue  
  

3 399 2 362 

5 Other liabilities (vacation allowance security) 
  

3 642 2 152 

6 Total 
  

11 988 8 106 
     

Note 25. Subordinated debt 
    

 (UAH, ths.) 

Interest rate Currency Issue date Maturity 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

12,50% UAH 14.03.2018 14.04.2023 13 000 - 

14,50% UAH 26.03.2018 21.04.2023 31 750 - 

14,50% UAH 20.12.2017 28.02.2023 13 000 13 027 

12,50% UAH 14.06.2017 03.07.2023 60 000 60 637 

5,00% USD 26.10.2018 30.12.2025 99 054 - 

Total       216 804 73 664 

Subordinate debt agreements do not provide for exchange of debts to shares. 

Subordinate debt agreements in national currency have been executed with the major participants (shareholders) of the 

Bank and other related parties of the Bank. 

On 17 October 2018 the Bank and the German State Development Bank (KfW) have signed a USD subordinate loan 

agreement in the amount equivalent to EUR 3 097 thousand. The funds have been provided for the period up to 30.12.2025 

under the "Agro financing" program, which purpose is to strengthen the equity of financial institutions in Ukraine and 

support to development of micro, small and medium agricultural enterprises. 
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Note 26. Share capital and share premium  
      

 (UAH, ths.) 
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1 Balance as of 31.12.2016 2 679 053 267 905 230 - - 4 965 273 100 

2 Newly issued shares (stocks) 375 000 37 500 1 431 - - - 38 931 

3 Treasury shares (stocks) repurchased from shareholders  - - - - - - - 

4 Sale of treasury shares previously repurchased  - - - - - - - 

5 Cancelled treasury shares previously repurchased - - - - - - - 

6 Balance as of 31.12.2017 (balance as of 01.01.2018) 3 054 053 305 405 1 661 - - 4 965 312 031 

7 Contributions on newly issued shares (unit shares, stocks) 1 330 000 133 000 - - - - 133 000 

8 Treasury shares (stocks) repurchased from shareholders  - - - - - - - 

9 Sale of treasury shares (stocks) previously repurchased - - - - - - - 

10 Cancelled treasury shares previously repurchased - - - - - - - 

11 Balance as of 31.12.2018 4 384 053 438 405 1 661 - - 4 965 445 031 

(i) number of shares authorized for issue: 

As of 31 December 2018 there are no any authorized shares. 

(ii) number of issued and paid-in shares: 

The number of issued and paid-in shares is 4 384 053 380 units. All shares are fully paid. 

A discrepancy between the nominal value of shares (UAH 438 405 thousand) and the value disclosed in the financial 

statements (UAH 443 370 thousand) is due to the transformation adjustments as a result of application of the requirements 

of IAS 29 "Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies". Since Ukraine was considered as a hyperinflationary 

economy during ten years ended 31 December 2000, the Bank converted non-monetary items in the financial statements 

into measuring units effective on 31 December 2000 using a consumer prices index, and these recalculated values were 

used as a basis for accounting records in subsequent accounting periods. 

The amount of a discrepancy (UAH 4 965 thousand) is disclosed in column 8 of Table in Note 26. 

(iii) nominal value of a share: 

The nominal value of one share is UAH 0.10. 

(iv) rights, privileges and limitations of each group of equity, including restrictions on dividends distribution, return of 

capital: 

The owners of ordinary shares are provided for with the following rights:  

1) to participate in the Bank management; 

2) to participate and vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders in person or through their representatives, while the 

number of shareholder votes is determined by the number of shares purchased; 

3) to make proposals on the Bank’s activities; 

4) to make proposals to the agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders not later than within 30 days of convocation;

 

5) to elect and be elected to the governing bodies of the Bank; 

6) to participate in the Bank income distribution, receive dividends; 

7) to obtain part of the Bank property or part of the Bank value in case of the Bank liquidation; 

8) to receive information about the Bank’s activities, except for information constituting bank secrecy; 

9) other rights stipulated by law. 

One ordinary share gives a shareholder one vote to address every issue at the General Meeting of Shareholders, except of 

cumulative voting. 
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Note 26. Share capital and share premium (continued) 

The Bank's Shareholders shall: 

1) fulfil their obligations to the Bank and the National Bank of Ukraine; 

2) comply with the Charter and other internal documents of the Bank; 

3) implement the decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders, other Bank departments; 

4) pay for shares in the amount, manner and means provided by the Charter of the Bank; 

5) not disclose trade secrets and confidential information of the Bank; 

6) inform the Bank about changing their corporate details; 

7) promote the development of the Bank; 

8) not contradict in any way to the implementation of the Bank’s mission; 

9) perform other duties stipulated by the current legislation of Ukraine. 

Amount and term of dividend distribution:  

1) dividends are distributed annually by the end of a calendar year after the approval of the annual report no later than 

six months after the end of the reporting year; 

2) the amount of dividends exclusive of tax is determined and approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders 

according to the register of owners of registered shares; 

3) the right to receive dividends have persons registered in the register system as at the beginning of a specified by the 

General Meeting of Shareholders period of dividend distribution in proportion to the number of shares they own. 

(v) amount and terms of shares to be issued under the terms of options and sales contracts: 

No information available. 

 

Note 27. Revaluation reserves (components of other comprehensive income) 

 
Table 1. Movement of revaluation reserves (components of other comprehensive income) 

 

    
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Notes 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 5 

1 Opening balance   72 400 63 220 

2 Revaluation of securities in the Bank portfolio available for sale   - - 

3 Revaluation of fixed and intangible assets   - 11 195 

3.1 changes in revaluation to fair value   - 11 195 

3.2 impairment    - - 

3.3 realized revaluation result classified as retained earnings    - - 

4 Revaluation result on hedging transactions   - - 

5 Accumulated exchange differences from translation to 

presentation currency 

  
- - 

6 Share of other comprehensive income of an associate   - - 

7 Income tax associated with:   - (2 015) 

7.1 change in revaluation reserve for securities available for sale    - - 

7.2 change in revaluation reserve for fixed and intangible assets   - (2 015) 

7.3 change in revaluation reserve for hedge transactions   - - 

7.4 change in reserve for accumulated translation differences   - - 

7.5 share of changes in other comprehensive income of 

associates 

  
- - 

8 Total movements in revaluation reserves (other 

comprehensive income), less income tax 

  
- 9 180 

9 Closing balance    72 400 72 400 
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Note 28. Analysis of assets and liabilities by maturities 

 
Table 1. Analysis of assets and liabilities by maturities 

   

        
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Notes 

31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

Less than 

12 months 

More than 

12 months 
Total 

Less than 

12 months 

More than 

12 months 
Total 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

ASSETS               

1 Cash and cash equivalents   311 132 - 311 132 188 048 - 188 048 

2 
Mandatory reserves of the Bank with 

the National Bank of Ukraine 
  - - - - - - 

3 
Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss 
  - - - - - - 

4 Loans and advances to banks   18 159 - 18 159 17 179 - 17 179 

5 Loans and advances to customers   700 116 693 646 1 393 762 701 632 289 237 990 869 

6 Investments in securities   389 392 - 389 392 311 565 - 311 565 

7 Derivative financial assets   - - - - - - 

8 
Investments in associates/associates and 

subsidiaries 
  - - - - - - 

9 Investment property   - 24 883 24 883 - 24 883 24 883 

10 Current income tax receivable   9 297 - 9 297 9 297 - 9 297 

11 Deferred tax assets   - - - - - - 

12 Goodwill   - - - - - - 

13 Fixed and intangible assets   - 150 596 150 596 - 135 435 135 435 

14 Other assets   50 979 28 940 79 919 99 267 913 100 180 

15 
Non-current assets held for sale and 

disposal group assets 
  26 454 - 26 454 5 486   5 486 

16 Total assets   1 505 529 898 065 2 403 594 1 332 474 450 468 1 782 942 

LIABILITIES              

17 Due to banks   - - - 2 007 - 2 007 

18 Due to customers   1 547 804 140 873 1 688 677 1 175 557 183 490 1 359 047 

19 Derivative financial liabilities   - - - 58 - 58 

20 Debt securities issued by the Bank   - - - - - - 

21 Other funds raised   19 632 187 031 206 663 100 159 8 350 108 509 

22 Current income tax liabilities   - - - - - - 

23 Deferred tax liabilities   2 400 - 2 400 4 559 - 4 559 

24 Provisions for liabilities   153 2 155 - - - 

25 Other liabilities   54 340 58 54 398 33 019 19 33 038 

26 Subordinated debt   887 215 917 216 804 664 73 000 73 664 

27 Total liabilities    1 625 216 543 881 2 169 097 1 316 023 264 859 1 580 882 
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Note 29. Interest income and expenses 
   

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

INTEREST INCOME     

1 Loans and advances to customers  182 189 133 956 

2 Debt securities available-for-sale - - 

3 Debt securities held-to-maturity 22 147 18 039 

4 Loans and advances to banks 686 22 

5 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - 

6 Correspondent accounts in other banks  232 699 

7 Overnight deposits in other banks  - - 

8 Interest income from impaired financial assets (525) (2 848) 

9 Finance lease liabilities 62 31 

10 Other - - 

11 Total interest income 204 791 149 899 

INTEREST EXPENSES     

12 Term deposits of legal entities  (28 828) (19 266) 

13 Debt securities issued - - 

14 Other funds raised (7 190) (5 969) 

15 Term deposits of private individuals (62 998) (57 028) 

16 Term deposits of other banks (128) (262) 

17 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - - 

18 Overnight deposits of other banks  - - 

19 Current accounts  (15 031) (8 739) 

20 Correspondent accounts - - 

21 Finance lease liabilities - - 

22 Other (14 682) (10 658) 

23 Total interest expenses (128 857) (101 922) 

24 Net interest income/(expense) 75 934 47 977 

 

Line 22 discloses the amount of interest expenses under subordinated debts. 
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Note 30. Fee and commission income and expenses 

 
Table 1. Fee and commission income and expenses 

  

   
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME     

1 Settlement and cash transactions  63 511 52 571 

2 Cash collection - - 

3 Securities trading 7 3 

4 Other 2 995 2 151 

5 Trust activities  67 125 

6 Guarantees provided 353 694 

7 Total fee and commission income  66 933 55 544 

FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSES     
8 Settlement and cash transactions  (8 800) (8 063) 

9 Cash collection - - 

10 Securities trading (117) (126) 

11 Other (891) (512) 

12 Trust activities  - - 

13 Guarantees provided (851) (629) 

14 Total fee and commission expenses (10 659) (9 330) 

15 Net fee and commission income/expenses 56 274 46 214 

 
Note 31. Other operating income 

 
Table 1. Other operating income 

   

    
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Notes 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 5 

1 Dividends   - - 

2 Income from investment property lease out   1 653 1 501 

3 Income from operating leasing   198 206 

4 Income from sub-lease   222 217 

5 Income from loans and receivables sale   - - 

6 Negative goodwill recognized as income   - - 

7 Income from fixed and intangible assets disposal   258 223 

8 Income from investment property disposal    - - 

9 Royalty   - - 

10 Other operating income   3 513 2 642 

11 Total operating income    5 844 4 789      

 
Line "Other operating income" comprises: 

  
(UAH, ths.)    

31.12.2018 31.12.2017  
Income from financial consulting services 8 10  
Fines, penalties received by the Bank 

 
1 019 1 200  

Other operating income 
 

587 578  
Other income 

 
499 385  

Income from sale of property transferred to the Bank as a mortgagee 1 400 469    
3 513 2 642 
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Note 32. Other administrative and other operating expenses 

 
Table 1. Administrative and other operating expenses 

   

    
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Notes 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 5 

1 Diminishing utility of fixed and intangible assets   (2 101) (17) 

2 Renewal of fixed and intangible assets utility  - - 

3 Loss from diminishing goodwill utility  - - 

4 
Expenses on fixed and intangible assets maintenance, as well as 

expenses on telecommunications and other operating services 
 (19 554) (20 128) 

5 Operating lease expenses  (6 417) (4 675) 

6 Other expenses related to fixed assets  - - 

7 Professional services  (19 647) (13 593) 

7.1 
including expenses for consulting services from 
I.D. Inspiring Development GmbH 

 (18 423) (13 025) 

8 Marketing and advertising costs  (2 131) (665) 

9 Insurance costs  (347) (193) 

10 Payment of other taxes and mandatory fees, except for income tax  (15 713) (9 359) 

11 
Diminishing utility of non-current assets held for sale (or disposal 

groups)  
 - (477) 

12 Other  (30 615) (17 780) 

13 Total administrative and other operating expenses  (96 525) (66 887) 
     

Line "Other" comprises: 
   

  
31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

Costs of collection and transportation of valuables  (968) (716) 

Business trip expenses  (1 224) (961) 

Representation costs  (889) (842) 

Fines and penalties paid by the Bank  (184) (4) 

Other operating expenses  (281) (193) 

Expenses from sale/depreciation of property transferred to the Bank as a 

mortgagee 
 (25 963) (14 516) 

Other expenses  (1 106) (548) 
  (30 615) (17 780) 

 
In 2017 due to acquiring of share in the Bank by a new shareholder – responsAbility Participations AG (Switzerland) the 

Bank concluded the Management service agreement with German consulting company I.D. Inspiring Development 

GmbH (Frankfurt, Germany) with the agreement term of 5 years. 
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Note 33. Income tax expenses 

 
Table 1. Income tax expenses 

  

   
(UAH, ths.) 

Line  Item  31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

1 Current income tax  0 (1 168) 

2 Change in deferred income tax 2 160 (5 935) 

3 
Less deferred tax recognized in components of other comprehensive 

income 
0 2 015 

4 Total income tax expenses 2 160 (5 088) 

 
Table 2. Reconciliation of accounting income (loss) and taxable income (loss)   

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item  31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

1 Income before tax  (49 986) (35 688) 

2 Theoretical tax liabilities at the relevant tax rate (18%) 8 997 6 424 

ACCOUNTING INCOME (LOSS) ADJUSTMENT     

3 

Expenses not included in the amount of expenses aiming at taxable income 

calculation, but recognized in the accounting records (impairment of assets 

for sale, differences in depreciation amounts between financial and tax 

accounting, writing-off of securities, etc.) 

(13 842) (4 817) 

4 

Expenses included in the amount of expenses aiming at taxable income 

calculation, but not recognized in the accounting records (losses of previous 

years in tax accounting) 

4 492 1 359 

5 
Income subject to income tax, but not recognized as (not referred to) 

accounting income (loss) (income from sale of securities) 
- (3 993) 

6 
Income not subject to income tax, but recognized in the accounting records 

(specify) 
- - 

7 Current tax contributions formed insufficiently (excessively) in prior periods - - 

8 Unrecognized tax loss carry forward - - 

9 Use of earlier unrecognized tax losses - - 

10 Effect of tax rate change - - 

11 
Changes in the amount of net deferred tax asset not recorded in financial 

statements 
- - 

12 Other adjustments 2 513 (4 061) 

13 Income tax expenses  2 160 (5 088) 
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Note 33. Income tax expenses (continued) 
 
Table 3. Tax effects related to recognition of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as of 
31.12.2018 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

1 Tax effect of temporary differences which decrease 

(increase) the amount of tax and tax loss carry 

forward  

(4 559) - - 2 159 - - (2 400) 

1.1 Fixed assets (8 990) - - 71 - - (8 919) 

1.2 Provisions for assets impairment 4 431 - - 2 088 - - 6 519 

1.3 Assets revaluation - - - - - - - 

1.4 Cash flow hedges - - - - - - - 

1.5 Associates - - - - - - - 

1.6 Accrued income (expenses) - - - - - - - 

1.7 Tax loss carry forward  - - - - - - - 

1.8 Other  - - - - - - - 

2 Net deferred tax asset (liability)  (4 559) - - 2 159 - - (2 400) 

3 Recognized deferred tax asset  - - - - - - - 

4 Recognized deferred tax liability 4 559 - - 2 159 - - (2 400)          

Table 4. Tax effects related to recognition of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as of 
31.12.2017  
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

1 Tax effect of temporary differences which decrease 

(increase) the amount of tax and tax loss carry 

forward  

1 376 - - (3 920) (2 015) - (4 559) 

1.1 Fixed assets (7 022) - - 47 (2 015) - (8 990) 

1.2 Provisions for assets impairment 4 254 - - 177 - - 4 431 

1.3 Assets revaluation - - - - - - - 

1.4 Cash flow hedges - - - - - - - 

1.5 Associates - - - - - - - 

1.6 Accrued income (expenses) - - - - - - - 

1.7 Tax loss carry forward  4 144 - - (4 144) - - - 

1.8 Other  - - - - - - - 

2 Net deferred tax asset (liability)  1 376 - - (3 920) (2 015) - (4 559) 

3 Recognized deferred tax asset  1 376 - - (1 376) - - - 

4 Recognized deferred tax liability - - - (2 544) (2 015) - (4 559) 



JSCB “LVIV” 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 

(UAH, thousand, unless otherwise provided)  

 

98 

Note 34. Profit (loss) per one ordinary and preference share 

 
Table 1. Net and adjusted profit (loss) per one ordinary and preference share    

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Notes 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 5 

1 Profit /(loss) attributable to Bank ordinary Shareholders   (47 826) (40 776) 

2 Profit/ (loss) attributable to Bank preference Shareholders    - - 

3 Annual profit/(loss)    (47 826) (40 776) 

4 Average annual number of ordinary shares outstanding (thousand, pcs.)   3 344 053 2 919 464 

5 Average annual number of preference shares outstanding (thousand, pcs.)   - - 

6 Net and adjusted profit/ (loss) per an ordinary share    (0,0143) (0,0140) 

7 Net and adjusted profit/ (loss) per a preference share    - - 

 
Calculation of average number of ordinary shares outstanding 

Commencement date Expiration 

date 

Outstanding 

shares  

Time weighted 

ratio  

Average annual 

number of outstanding 

ordinary shares 

(thousand, pcs.)      

31.12.2017         
01.01.2017 12.05.2017 2 679 053 0,36 961 523 

12.05.2017 01.01.2018 3 054 053 0,64 1 957 941 

   1,00 2 919 464           

31.12.2018         
01.01.2018 22.02.2018 3 054 053 0,14 435 098 

22.02.2018 31.12.2018 3 389 053 0,85 2 896 944 

31.12.2018 01.01.2019 4 384 053 0,00 12 011 

   1,00 3 344 053 

The Bank has no dilutive potential ordinary shares, therefore an adjusted income/(loss) per a share equals to net 

profit/(loss) per a share. 

 
Table 2. Calculation of profit (loss) attributable to the Bank ordinary and preference Shareholders    

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Notes 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 5 

1 Profit /(loss) for the year attributable to Bank Shareholders   (47 826) (40 776) 

2 Dividends on ordinary and preference shares   - - 

3 Retained earnings/(losses) for the year   (47 826) (40 776) 

4 
Retained earnings/(losses) for the year attributable to Bank 

preference Shareholders depending on terms of shares 

  
- - 

5 
Dividends on preference shares where payment shall be made within 

a year 

  
- - 

6 Profit/ (loss) attributable to Bank preference Shareholders    - - 

7 
Retained earnings/(losses) for the year attributable to Bank ordinary 

Shareholders depending on terms of shares 

  
(47 826) (40 776) 

8 
Dividends on ordinary shares where payment shall be made within a 

year 

  
- - 

9 Profit /(loss) attributable to Bank ordinary Shareholders   (47 826) (40 776) 
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Note 35. Dividends 

 
Table 1. Dividends 

    

     
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

on ordinary 

shares 

on preference 

shares 

on ordinary 

shares 

on preference 

shares 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

1 Opening balance 6 - 6 - 

2 Dividends where payment 

shall be made within a 

period 

- - - - 

3 Dividends paid within a 

period 

- - - - 

4 Closing balance 6 - 6 - 

5 Dividends per one share 

where payment shall be 

made within a period 

- - - - 

 
 

Note 36. Operating segments 

 
For management purposes, the Bank is organized into three operating segments based on products and services as follows: 

1. Retail Banking - Individual customers' deposits and consumer loans, overdrafts, credit card facilities and funds transfer 

facilities. 

2. Corporate Banking - Loans and other credit facilities and deposit and current accounts for corporate and institutional 

customers. 

3. Treasury business - this business segment includes trading in financial instruments, transactions with securities and 

derivatives, including REPO deals, foreign currency transactions, raising and origination of loans on interbank loan 

markets, interest rate arbitrage on SWAP transactions. Besides, the treasury function includes the Bank's short-term 

asset management and the Bank's open positions in foreign currencies. 

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about 

resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss 

which in certain respects is measured differently from operating profit or loss in the financial statements. Income taxes 

are managed on a bank basis and are not allocated to operating segments. 

The following tables present income/losses and certain asset and liability information regarding the Bank’s operating 

segments. 

The statement of comprehensive income contains information on transfer (domestic) results of the main operating 

segments. 

Transfer result is calculated as a difference between transfer income and transfer expenses of each segment calculated at 

transfer prices set by major currencies and term groups. For the segments of retail and corporate business transfer income 

is generated as estimated income from the sale by the investment banking segment of attracted resources at resource 

attraction transfer prices, transfer expenses are formed as estimated costs for the purchase from the investment banking 

segment of resources at resource allocation transfer prices. 

The Bank has no customers, income from which exceeds 10% of the Bank’s total income. 
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Note 36. Operating segments (continued) 

Table 1. Income, expenses and operating segments results as of 31.12.2018         
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 

Operating segment 
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  External customers income 207 527 39 613 24 584 5 844 - 277 568 

1 Interest income 163 952 17 774 23 065 - - 204 791 

2 Fee and commission income 43 575 21 839 1 519 - - 66 933 

3 Other operating income - - - 5 844 - 5 844 

  Income from other segments (67 996) 53 777 14 219 - - - 

4 Interest income (67 996) 53 777 14 219 - - - 

5 Fee and commission income - - - - - - 

6 Other operating income - - - - - - 

7 Total segment income 139 531 93 390 38 803 5 844 - 277 568 

8 Interest expenses (39 959) (66 899) (21 999) - - (128 857) 

9 Allocation to provisions for impairment 

of loans and due from other banks 
(21 397) 1 452 (779) - - (20 724) 

10 Allocation to provisions for impairment 

of receivables 
- - - (395) - (395) 

11 Gains on securities trading in the Bank 

trading portfolio 
- - - - - - 

12 Gains on fair value hedge transactions - - - - - - 

13 Gains on revaluation of other financial 

instruments at fair value through profit 

or loss 

- - 49 - - 49 

14 Gains on sale of securities in the Bank 

portfolio available-for-sale 
- - - - - - 

15 Gains on foreign currency transactions - - 5 853 - - 5 853 

16 Gains on revaluation of foreign 

currency transactions  
- - 565 - - 565 

17 Gains on revaluation of investment 

property 
- - - - - - 

18 Fee and commission expenses  - (2 992) (7 667) - - (10 659) 

19 Impairment of securities in the Bank 

portfolio available-for-sale 
- - - - - - 

20 Impairment of investments in securities - - - - - - 

21 Allocations to provisions for liabilities (155) - - - - (155) 

22 Administrative and other operating 

expenses 
(1 478) (8 994) - (162 759) - (173 231) 

23 Share of profit (loss) of associates - - - - - - 

24 SEGMENT RESULT  

Profit (loss) 
76 542 15 957 14 825 (157 310) - (49 986) 

 
  



JSCB “LVIV” 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 

(UAH, thousand, unless otherwise provided)  

 

101 

Note 36. Operating segments (continued) 
 
Table 2. Income, expenses and operating segments results as of 31.12.2017         

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 

Operating segment 
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  External customers income 150 403 35 153 19 887 5 489 - 210 932 

1 Interest income 116 420 14 719 18 760 - - 149 899 

2 Fee and commission income 33 983 20 434 1 127 - - 55 544 

3 Other operating income - - - 5 489 - 5 489 

  Income from other segments (59 237) 52 323 6 914 - - - 

4 Interest income (59 237) 52 323 6 914 - - - 

5 Fee and commission income - - - - - - 

6 Other operating income - - - - - - 

7 Total segment income 91 166 87 476 26 801 5 489 - 210 932 

8 Interest expenses (25 635) (59 398) (16 889) - - (101 922) 

9 Allocation to provisions for 

impairment of loans and due from 

other banks 

(15 752) 741 (64) - - (15 075) 

10 Allocation to provisions for 

impairment of receivables 
- - - (1 175) - (1 175) 

11 Gains on securities trading in the Bank 

trading portfolio 
- - - - - - 

12 Gains on fair value hedge transactions - - - - - - 

13 Gains on revaluation of other financial 

instruments at fair value through profit 

or loss 

- - 1 310 - - 1 310 

14 Gains on sale of securities in the Bank 

portfolio available-for-sale 
- - - - - - 

15 Gains on foreign currency transactions - - 2 168 - - 2 168 

16 Gains on revaluation of foreign 

currency transactions  
- - (257) - - (257) 

17 Gains on revaluation of investment 

property 
- - - - - - 

18 Fee and commission expenses  - (2 355) (6 975) - - (9 330) 

19 Impairment of securities in the Bank 

portfolio available-for-sale 
- - - - - - 

20 Impairment of investments in securities - - - - - - 

21 Allocations to provisions for liabilities - - - - - - 

22 Administrative and other operating 

expenses 
(8 702) (7 296) - (106 341) - (122 339) 

23 Share of profit (loss) of associates - - - - - - 

24 SEGMENT RESULT  

Profit (loss) 
41 077 19 168 6 094 (102 027) - (35 688) 
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Note 36. Operating segments (continued) 
 
Table 3. Assets and liabilities of operating segments as of 31.12.2018 
      

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 

Operating segment 

Others 

segments 

and 

transactions 

Total 
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  SEGMENT ASSETS           

1 Segment assets 1 294 069 99 693 726 009   2 119 771 

2 
Non-current assets held for sale (or 

disposal groups) 
- - - - - 

3 Total segment assets 1 294 069 99 693 726 009 - 2 119 771 

4 Investments in associates - - - - - 

5 Retained assets - - - 283 823 283 823 

6 Total assets 1 294 069 99 693 726 009 283 823 2 403 594 

  SEGMENT LIABILITIES           

7 Segment liabilities 862 072 1 033 268 216 804 - 2 112 144 

8 Disposal group liabilities  - - - - - 

9 Total segment liabilities 862 072 1 033 268 216 804 - 2 112 144 

10 Retained liabilities - - - 56 953 56 953 

11 Total liabilities  862 072 1 033 268 216 804 56 953 2 169 097 

  OTHER SEGMENT ITEMS           

12 Capital investments - - - 4 450 4 450 

13 Amortization and depreciation - - - (6 707) (6 707) 

14 Other non-cash income/(expenses) - - - - - 

15 

Diminishing utility disclosed during 

the year in the statement of 

comprehensive income 

- - - - - 

16 

Utility recovery disclosed during the 

year in the statement of 

comprehensive income 

- - - - - 
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Note 36. Operating segments (continued) 
 
Table 4. Assets and liabilities of operating segments as of 31.12.2017 
      

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 

Operating segment 

Others 

segments 

and 

transactions 

Total 
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  SEGMENT ASSETS           

1 Segment assets 901 185 89 683 522 023   1 512 891 

2 Non-current assets held for sale (or 

disposal groups) 
- - - - - 

3 Total segment assets 901 185 89 683 522 023 - 1 512 891 

4 Investments in associates - - - - - 

5 Retained assets - - - 270 051 270 051 

6 Total assets 901 185 89 683 522 023 270 051 1 782 942 

  SEGMENT LIABILITIES           

7 Segment liabilities 668 365 799 191 75 671 - 1 543 227 

8 Disposal group liabilities  - - - - - 

9 Total segment liabilities 668 365 799 191 75 671 - 1 543 227 

10 Retained liabilities - - - 37 655 37 655 

11 Total liabilities  668 365 799 191 75 671 37 655 1 580 882 

  OTHER SEGMENT ITEMS           

12 Capital investments - - - 404 404 

13 Amortization and depreciation - - - (5 138) (5 138) 

14 Other non-cash income/(expenses) - - - - - 

15 Diminishing utility disclosed during 

the year in the statement of 

comprehensive income 

- - - - - 

16 Utility recovery disclosed during the 

year in the statement of 

comprehensive income 

- - - - - 

 
Table 5. Geographical areas 
 
The Bank operates and receives income solely within the territory of Ukraine. 
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Note 37. Financial risk management 

1) Credit risk 

The Bank’s credit risk assumes the risk of default by a borrower (the Bank’s counterparty) of obligations on credit 

transactions timely and in full. 

Credit risk management involves the following objectives: 

 ensuring stable and profitable operations of the Bank, while taking into account the credit risk to which the Bank is 

exposed; 

 creating a secure loan portfolio, while promoting credit activities that aim to generate income; 

 limiting the amount of losses as a result of credit risk realization at levels acceptable to the Bank. 

Credit risk management policy  

The policy of credit risk management, as set out in the "Credit policy regulations", involves the performance of goals and 

objectives through the use of a specific set of methods and instruments for credit risk management, which allow to detect 

credit risks at the stage of credit decision-making, control their levels in the process of monitoring of the borrower and 

the Bank’s loan portfolio, predict credit risk level in the future and find ways of risk optimization and minimization.  

Basic methods of credit risk management: 

 risk avoidance (rejection from crediting unreliable customers, unreliable credit projects); 

 risk limiting (establishment of insurance reserves; guaranteeing; limitation - in terms of branches, individual 

customers or groups of customers, by amounts of transactions, by limits of powers, limiting transactions with 

securities by issuers and holders etc.; diversification of credit risk - by regions, economy industries, terms of 

transactions; acceptance of liquid collateral); 

 risk insurance from credit default; 

 risk-taking - formation of a hierarchical system of credit decision making within the Bank. 

The Bank assesses the credit risk of borrowers under the domestic regulatory - legal documents, minimizes it by limiting 

powers of departments and authorized persons to independent credit decisions, monitors borrowers and own loan portfolio 

in accordance with the requirements of the National Bank of Ukraine.  

During the implementation of inter-bank transactions credit risk is managed by setting limits on banks. 

In addition, credit risk management policy involves adherence by the Bank to the following principles of credit risk 

management: 

 credit operation is subjected to comprehensive assessment, aimed to determine the internal ratings; 

 assessment of credit risk of potential and actual credit operations is conducted periodically taking into account the 

financial and economic changes in the environment, as well as changes in the financial position of a borrower; 

 assessment of credit risk for significant, given the level and the amount of credit risk, exposures is subject to 

additional verification by risk hierarchy units, regardless of assessment conducted by business hierarchy structural 

units; 

 offering customers of credit transactions on terms that take into account the credit risk associated with their 

implementation; 

 credit risk is to be diversified geographically and by industries, by products and by customers; 

 expected credit risk is to be secured by credit margin paid by a customer, and provisions formed for possible losses 

on credit transactions. 

Adherence to the above principles enables the Bank to use in full various methods of credit risk management both for 

individual credit transactions and for the Bank’s entire loan portfolio.  
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Note 37. Financial risk management (continued) 

Risk management process includes: 

 risk identification aimed to determine actual and potential sources of risk; 

 risk measurement; 

 risk management, which in particular lies in establishing acceptable levels of risk, planning activities, providing 

recommendations, regulations, creating procedures and other internal regulatory documents; 

 risk monitoring, which lies in the ongoing oversight of risk levels according to the Bank accepted methods of risk 

measurement; 

 reporting, which provides for periodic informing of the Bank’s management on the amount of risks exposed by the 

Bank and the measures taken by the Bank to maintain risks under control. 

Methods of credit risk assessment 

In assessing the credit risk, the Bank uses the following methods: 

 scoring methods; 

 rating methods; 

 statistical; 

 feasibility cost method; 

 expert evaluation method; 

 analytical method; 

 method of counterparts. 

Credit risk management instruments 

The principal credit risk management instruments used by the Bank include: 

 policies, regulations, procedures, guidelines, which define the possibility of crediting; 

 minimum requirements for certain types of credit transactions (maximum loan amount, collateral type); 

 minimum risk margin – a credit risk margin related to an individual credit transaction between the Bank and a 

customer, where the customer is offered with an interest rate that cannot be lower than the statutory rate; 

 authority limits determine the maximum level of competence to make credit decisions by the Bank’s authorized body 

taking into account the current indebtedness of a customer and a group of customer related persons. 

Methods for determining the internal rating and scoring  

The Bank manages the credit quality of financial assets using internal credit ratings. 

Assessment of individual credit transactions at the Bank is performed using methods of determining the internal rating 

and scoring created, developed and controlled by the risk management hierarchy. The use of estimates is made by the 

appropriate automated banking systems. The process and principles of individual assessment are determined by internal 

normative - legal documents of the Bank, main purpose of which is to adhere to the Bank’s single standard and provide 

an objective assessment of credit risk in the crediting process. 

The Bank assesses the credit risk of customers - individuals on the basis of determining the economic and personal 

creditworthiness of the customers. 

Determining the economic creditworthiness is based on the assessment of a customer’s current financial position, and 

personal creditworthiness - on scoring assessment and assessment of a customer’s credit history received from external 

and internal sources of the Bank. 

The results of scoring are used in the Bank's credit risk management process in determining the authority limits for making 

credit decisions and credit risk levels, as well as credit risk reporting. 
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Note 37. Financial risk management (continued) 

Collateral 

The amount and type of collateral required by the Bank depends on the assessment of a counterparty’s credit risk. The 

principles regarding the admissibility of types of collateral and assessment parameters have been established. The 

Management monitors the market value of collateral, demands additional collateral in accordance with the basic 

agreement, and monitors the market value of the software during the audit of allowance adequacy for impairment losses. 

Impairment assessment 

For accounting purposes, the Bank uses the incurred loss model for the recognition of losses on impaired financial assets. 

This means that losses may be recognized only when there is an objective evidence of a particular case of losses. This 

method differs from the expected loss model used for the purposes of compliance with the minimum amount of capital 

according to “Basel II” agreement. 

The main factors taken into account when testing loans for impairment are as follows: whether interest and principal 

payments are overdue; whether the contractors’ financial difficulties, decrease in their credit ratings or breach of original 

contractual terms are being aware of. The Bank reviews for impairment on two levels: provisions are assessed on an 

individual and aggregate basis. 

Provisions assessed on individual basis 

The Bank establishes provisions, formation of which is necessary for each individually significant loan or advance, on an 

individual basis. In determining the amount of provisions the following factors are taken into account: the stability of a 

counterparty's business plan; its ability to improve operating results in the event of financial difficulties; the estimated 

amounts receivable and expected amounts of dividend distribution in the event of bankruptcy; the ability to attract 

financial assistance; realizable value; and timing of expected cash flows. 

Provisions for impairment are assessed at each reporting date or more frequently, if unforeseen circumstances require 

closer attention. 

Provisions assessed on aggregate basis 

Provisions for losses on loans and advances that are not individually significant (including credit cards, mortgages and 

unsecured consumer lending) are assessed on an aggregate basis, as well as provisions regarding individual significant 

loans and advances for which there are no objective evidence of individual impairment. 

Provisions are assessed at each reporting date, with each loan portfolio tested separately. 

Assessment on an aggregate basis is performed regarding groups of assets with similar risk characteristics in order to 

determine the need for a provision formation, taking into account loss events for which there is objective evidence, but 

effects of which are far from obvious in the analysis of individual loans. Assessment on an aggregate basis takes into 

account information on the loan portfolio (such as information about previous losses on the portfolio, levels of arrears, 

use of credit funds, ratio of loan amount to existing collateral, as well as amount of the expected receipts and recoveries 

after impairment) or economic information (such as current economic conditions, unemployment levels and national or 

sectorial difficulties). In addition, the Bank also takes into account the approximate delay between the probable loss and 

the moment when it is determined, if it requires an individually assessed provision for impairment. Credit risk 

management (CRM) is responsible for determining of this period that may last up to one year. Subsequently, a provision 

for impairment is reviewed by CRM for compliance with the Bank’s general policies. 
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Note 37. Financial risk management (continued) 

Information on the maximum level of credit exposure, compliance with standards and credit risk limits during 2018 and 

their values as at 31.12.2018 is presented in the table.    
(%) 

Date 

N7 – norm of 

maximum amount of credit 

risk per one 

contractor (up to 25%) 

N8 – norm of large 

credit risks (up to 800%) 

Norm of maximum amount 

of credit risk under related 

party transaction (Н9) (up 

to 25%) 

31.12.2017 29.38 235.54 18.23 

31.01.2018 29.08 246.65 18.56 

28.02.2018 27.15 225.74 18.35 

31.03.2018 26.05 223.99 18.02 

30.04.2018 25.71 219.87 17.96 

31.05.2018 26.29 238.24 18.27 

30.06.2018 27.27 229.73 19.00 

31.07.2018 26.84 237.65 18.02 

31.08.2018 27.93 265.22 17.85 

30.09.2018 15.82 82.15 10.10 

31.10.2018 13.21 55.76 10.17 

30.11.2018 13.10 57.97 10.33 

31.12.2018 13.34 48.73 9.96 

Violation by the Bank in January-August 2018 of the norm of maximum amount of credit risk per one contractor (N7) 

was due to revaluation of foreign currency accounts in connection with increasing foreign currency rate against the 

national currency of Ukraine. 

As of 31 December 2018, the Bank is in compliance with all NBU's regulations. 

2) Market risk 

The objective of market risk management is to identify, determine and limit risks to acceptable volumes. 

The main types of market risk are: 

 foreign currency risk (risk of losses and shortfall in income associated with unfavorable changes in exchange rates 

and rates for precious metals); 

 interest rate risk (risk of losses associated with unfavorable changes in interest rates); 

 risk of securities (risk of losses associated with unfavorable changes in price indices for securities). 

The model of market risk assessment consists of four stages: 

First stage - drawing up the forecast for trends and changes in market interest rates, exchange rates, rates of precious 

metals and securities. 

Second stage - definition of the Bank's position regarding market risk by converting balance sheet data into a balance 

comparing assets and liabilities in relation to the timing of changes in interest rate. 

Third stage - determining the amount of market risk through: 

 analysis of emergency and accumulated discrepancies and calculation of potential impact of changes in interest rates 

on the level of interest income of the Bank; 

 analysis of the potential impact of changes in market exchange rates and rates for precious metals on the amount of 

foreign exchange position of the Bank; 

 determining the present value of assets and liabilities; 

 analysis of the potential impact of changes in the value of securities on the portfolio of securities; 

 determining the amount of risk. 

Fourth stage covers the reporting system. 
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Note 37. Financial risk management (continued) 

The event, which could lead to the implementation of market risk, is the change in market prices of securities. As at the 

end of 2018 the Bank's trading position in securities was closed - no securities were available in the trading portfolio. 

Under such circumstances the possible losses from exposure to market risk were absent.  

3) Foreign currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk of losses and shortfall in income associated with unfavorable changes in exchange rates and rates 

for precious metals. 

The objective of currency risk management is to identify currency risk areas, define its volumes and take measures 

intended to limit foreign currency risk to the amount approved by the Management Board. 

Analysis of foreign currency risk is based on the Provisions of foreign currency risk management. For the purpose of 

foreign currency risk management, the following risk measures are determined: 

 open foreign exchange position for each individual currency and precious metal; 

 total open foreign exchange position;  

 total long open foreign exchange position; 

 total short open foreign exchange position; 

 limit of total long open foreign exchange position; 

 limit of total short open foreign exchange position; 

 amount of VaR risk for a portfolio of currencies and precious metals is calculated on the basis of official foreign 

exchange rates; 

 marginal amount of VaR risk, which shows the contribution of each currency to the total amount of VaR risk; 

 stress tests for the portfolio of currencies and precious metals. 

Additional information on foreign currency risk management is presented in the following Tables. 

 

Table 1. Foreign currency risk analysis        
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Currency 

as of 31.12.2018 as of 31.12.2017 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

1 USD 619 939 619 789 - 150 405 272 396 923 9 824 (1 475) 

2 EUR 332 517 333 527 - (1 010) 228 172 231 359 8 374 (11 561) 

3 GBP 452 1 - 451 1 524 1 449 - 75 

4 CAD 3 458 3 438 - 20 2 919 2 808 - 111 

5 PLN 1 537 502 - 1 035 1 661 1 462 - 199 

6 RUR 5 027 4 959 - 68 219 161 - 58 

9 Total 962 930 962 216 - 714 639 767 634 162 18 198 (12 593) 
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Note 37. Financial risk management (continued) 

 

Table 2. Changes in profit or loss and equity arising from possible changes in UAH official 
exchange rate against foreign currencies set as at the reporting date, provided that all other 
variables remain fixed     

 (UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 

as of 31.12.2018 as of 31.12.2017 

impact on 

profit 

(loss) 

impact on 

equity 

impact on 

profit 

(loss) 

impact on 

equity 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

1 USD strengthening by 5 %  8 8 (74) (74) 

2 USD weakening by 5 %  (8) (8) 74 74 

3 EUR strengthening by 5 %  (50) (50) (578) (578) 

4 EUR weakening by 5 %  50 50 578 578 

5 GBP strengthening by 5 %  23 23 4 4 

6 GBP weakening by 5 %  (23) (23) (4) (4) 

7 
Other foreign currency and banking metals 

strengthening  
56 56 18 18 

8 
Other foreign currency and banking metals 

weakening  
(56) (56) (18) (18) 

      

Table 3. Changes in profit or loss and equity arising from possible changes in UAH official 
exchange rate against foreign currencies determined as weighted average foreign exchange rate, 
provided that all other variables remain fixed     

 (UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Weighted average 

foreign exchange rate –  

2018 

Weighted average 

foreign exchange rate –  

2017 

impact on 

profit 

(loss) 

impact on 

equity 

impact on 

profit 

(loss) 

impact on 

equity 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

1 USD strengthening by 5 %  7 7 (564) (564) 

2 USD weakening by 5 %  (7) (7) 564 564 

3 EUR strengthening by 5 %  (51) (51) (70) (70) 

4 EUR weakening by 5 %  51 51 70 70 

5 GBP strengthening by 5 %  23 23 6 6 

6 GBP weakening by 5 %  (23) (23) (6) (6) 

7 
Other foreign currency and banking metals 

strengthening  
58 58 11 11 

8 
Other foreign currency and banking metals 

weakening  
(58) (58) (11) (11) 
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Note 37. Financial risk management (continued) 

4) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk of reducing the financial results of the Bank under adverse changes in interest rates. 

The objective of interest rate risk management is to determine the amount of interest rate risk, form the structure of assets, 

liabilities and off-balance sheet liabilities that maximize the value of assets and interest income, subject to interest rate 

risk. 

In the process of interest rate risk management, the following interest rate risk measures are used: 

 mismatch of assets and liabilities sensitive to changes in interest rates; 

 vulnerability of interest income; 

 financial effects of scenario analysis. 

Additional information on interest rate risk management is presented in the following Tables.  

 

Table 4. General analysis of interest rate risk 

The table discloses financial assets and liabilities accounted for at carrying amount by interest rate repricing dates under 

the earlier of maturity contracts or terms. 

For assets and liabilities with fixed interest rates, classification is determined based on the period from the balance sheet 

date to the maturity date under the contract, and for assets and liabilities with variable interest rates - based on the earlier 

of interest rate repricing or maturity date. 

Net gap is calculated as the difference between assets and liabilities. If liabilities exceed assets, the net gap is presented 

in parentheses.      

 (UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 

On 

demand 

and less 

than 1 

month 

From 1 to 

12 months 

More than 

a year 

Non-

monetary 
Total 

1 2 3 4 6 7 8 

  2018           

1 Total financial assets 430 651 653 185 701 038 - 1 784 874 

2 Total financial liabilities 526 115 758 385 447 081 - 1 731 581 

3 
Net interest rate GAP as at the end 

of 2017 
(95 464) (105 200) 253 957 - 53 293 

  2017           

4 Total financial assets 347 878 693 906 377 246 - 1 419 030 

5 Total financial liabilities 371 660 613 692 81 389 - 1 066 741 

6 
Net interest rate GAP as at the end 

of 2016 
(23 782) 80 214 295 857 - 352 289 

 

During the analysis of interest rate risk the following assumptions concerning the formation of mismatch between 

assets and liabilities sensitive to interest rate changes were founded: 

 all loans to legal entities under fixed interest rates are included to the term to maturity; 

 all loans to individuals under fixed interest rates are included to the term to maturity; 

 all deposits from legal entities under fixed interest rate are included to the term to change in interest rate under the 

term to maturity. 
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Note 37. Financial risk management (continued) 
Analysis of sensitivity to change in interest rates by 1%. 

Assessing the impact of interest rate risk on interest income is based on the following assumptions: 

 consistency of time structure of assets/liabilities sensitive to interest rate changes; 

 consistency of structure of assets/liabilities sensitive to interest rate changes by types (corporate loans, retail loans, 

corporate deposits, etc.); 

 consistency of structure of assets/liabilities sensitive to interest rate changes in the context of banking products; 

 consistency of structure of assets/liabilities sensitive to interest rate changes by currencies. 

 

As at 12/31/2017, interest rate risk sensitivity analysis revealed that the amount of interest rate risk as the value of 

changes in interest income from change in interest rates by 1%, is UAH 3 640 thousand. 

 

Table 5. Monitoring of interest rates on financial instruments          
(%) 

Line Item 

2018 2017 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

  Assets                 

1 Cash and cash equivalents  - - - - - - - - 

2 
Mandatory reserve balances with 

the National Bank of Ukraine 
- - - - - - - - 

3 
Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss  
- - - - - - - - 

4 Loans and advances to banks 4,63 0,26 - - 5,00 0,93 - - 

5 Loans and advances to customers 20,13 7,22 7,97 - 18,54 6,68 6,95 - 

6 Investments in securities 15,62 8,82 - - 13,24 7,85 - - 

7 Other financial assets - - - - - - - - 

 Liabilities        - 

8 Due to banks 13,46 - - - 13,00 - - - 

9 Due to customers - - - - - - - - 

9.1 current accounts 4,46 0,24 0,00 - 4,77 0,08 0,00 - 

9.2 term accounts 15,15 3,65 2,64 - 14,88 3,86 2,37 - 

10 Debt securities issued by the Bank - - - - - - - - 

11 
Financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss 
- - - - - - - - 

12 Other borrowed funds 14,22 - 3,70 - - - 5,73 - 

13 Other financial liabilities - - - - - - - - 

14 Subordinated debt 13,26 5,00 - - 12,50 - - - 

15 Disposal group liabilities - - - - - - - - 
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Note 37. Financial risk management (continued) 
 

The following table demonstrates data on the average weighted interest rate. The interest rate is calculated as percentage 

year-to-year. 

 

5) Other price risk 

Other price risk arises when the Bank’s funds are invested in securities. The risk of securities is the risk of losses and 

shortfall in income associated with unfavorable changes in the value of securities on the stock market. 

The objective of market risk management is to identify risk of securities areas, determine its volume and take measures 

aimed at limiting the risk of securities. 

As at the end of 2017-2018, the Bank did not have securities subject to price risk. 

 

6) Geographical risk 

 Table 6. Analysis of geographical concentration of financial assets and liabilities for 2018     
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Ukraine OECD 
Other 

countries 
Total 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

  Assets         

1 Cash and cash equivalents 154 758 156 374 - 311 132 

2 Bank's mandatory reserve balances with the National 

Bank of Ukraine 
- - - - 

3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - - - 

4 Loans and advances to banks 18 159 - - 18 159 

5 Loans and advances to customers 1 393 762 - - 1 393 762 

6 Securities in the Bank portfolio available-for-sale 389 392 - - 389 392 

7 Securities in the Bank portfolio held-to-maturity - - - - 

8 Other financial assets 24 932 - - 24 932 

9 Total financial assets  1 981 003 156 374 - 2 137 377 

  Liabilities         

10 Due to banks - - - - 

11 Due to customers 1 633 645 48 681 17 279 1 688 677 

12 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - - - - 

13 Debt securities issued by the Bank - - - - 

14 Other borrowed funds 61 705 144 958 - 206 663 

15 Other financial liabilities 42 410 - - 42 410 

16 Subordinated debt 13 000 203 804 - 216 804 

17 Total financial liabilities 1 750 760 397 443 17 279 2 154 554 

18 Net balance sheet position on financial instruments 230 243 (241 069) (17 279) (17 177) 

19 Credit related commitments 131 796 - - 131 796 
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Note 37. Financial risk management (continued) 

 

Table 7. Analysis of geographical concentration of financial assets and liabilities for 2017     
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Ukraine OECD 
Other 

countries 
Total 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

  Assets         

1 Cash and cash equivalents 126 463 61 585 - 188 048 

2 Bank's mandatory reserve balances with the National 

Bank of Ukraine 
- - - - 

3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - - - 

4 Loans and advances to banks 17 179 - - 17 179 

5 Loans and advances to customers 990 869 - - 990 869 

6 Securities in the Bank portfolio available-for-sale - - - - 

7 Securities in the Bank portfolio held-to-maturity 311 565 - - 311 565 

8 Other financial assets 8 909 - - 8 909 

9 Total financial assets  1 454 985 61 585 - 1 516 570 

  Liabilities         

10 Due to banks 2 007 - - 2 007 

11 Due to customers 1 318 347 35 545 12 074 1 359 047 

12 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - - - - 

13 Debt securities issued by the Bank - - - - 

14 Other borrowed funds - 108 509 - 108 509 

15 Other financial liabilities 24 990 - - 24 990 

16 Subordinated debt - 13 027 60 637 73 664 

17 Total financial liabilities 1 345 344 157 081 72 711 1 568 217 

18 Net balance sheet position on financial instruments 109 641 (95 496) (72 711) (51 647) 

19 Credit related commitments 117 629 - - 117 629 

The concentration indicates the sensitivity of the Bank’s activities to developments affecting a particular industry or 

geographical region. Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities in 

the same geographic region or have similar economic characteristics. The Bank defines the geographical concentration 

according to the principles set by the NBU. 

The Bank has no significant concentration of risks in certain industries, economic sectors or geographical regions. 

7) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is defined as actual or potential risk to earnings and capital arising due to the inability of the Bank to meet 

its obligations in due time, without incurring unacceptable losses. Liquidity risk arises from the inability to manage the 

unplanned outflows of funds, changes in funding sources and/or fulfil off-balance sheet liabilities. 

Liquidity risk is managed in the following aspects: 

 in the current liquidity area - the ability to fulfil current liabilities by providing the appropriate amount of liquid 

assets, 

 in the structural liquidity area - the formation of term balance sheet structure, which would allow to obtain the 

maximum financial margin while ensuring liquidity safety. 

The main liquidity management instruments are: 

 transactions on the interbank market, 

 REPO transactions with the NBU and other banks, 

 transactions of purchase and sale of securities, 

 cash management, 

 FX swap transactions, 

 pricing policy. 
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Note 37. Financial risk management (continued) 
 

Table 8. Analysis of financial liabilities by maturity dates for 2018 

 

The table discloses maturities from the reporting date to the maturity date under the contract. These amounts represent 

the contractual undiscounted cash flows that differ from the amounts included in the balance sheet since the balance 

sheet amount are based on discounted cash flows. Derivative financial instruments settled by net basis are accounted 

for in the net amount. 

      
 (UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 

On 

demand 

and less 

than 1 

month 

From 1 to 

12 months 

From 12 

months to 

5 years 

Over 5 

years 
Total 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

1 Due to banks - - - - - 

2 Due to customers 802 904 744 962 41 368 99 509 1 688 743 

2.1 Private individuals 299 095 637 421 41 168 55 650 1 033 334 

2.2 Other 503 809 107 541 200 43 859 655 409 

3 Debt securities issued by the Bank - - - - - 

4 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss 
- - - - - 

5 Other borrowed funds 270 19 553 188 571 - 208 394 

6 Subordinated debt 887 - 117 750 98 293 216 930 

7 Other financial liabilities 41 474 878 48 10 42 410 

8 Deliverable forward contract, gross amount - - - - - 

9 Deliverable forward contract, net amount - - - - - 

10 Financial guarantees  6 028 8 234 38 1 042 15 342 

11 Other credit-related commitments 7 702 86 288 22 264 200 116 454 

12 Total potential future payments related to 

financial liabilities 
859 265 859 915 370 039 199 054 2 288 273 

      

Table 9. Analysis of financial liabilities by maturity dates for 2017      
 (UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 

On 

demand 

and less 

than 1 

month 

From 1 to 

12 months 

From 12 

months to 

5 years 

Over 5 

years 
Total 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

1 Due to banks 2 007 - - - 2 007 

2 Due to customers 658 878 516 731 820 182 684 1 359 113 

2.1 Private individuals 366 218 407 046 150 25 843 799 257 

2.2 Other 292 660 109 685 670 156 841 559 856 

3 Debt securities issued by the Bank - - - - - 

4 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss 
58 - - - 58 

5 Other borrowed funds - 100 486 7 704 755 108 945 

6 Subordinated debt 637 27 60 000 13 000 73 664 

7 Other financial liabilities 24 440 473 10 9 24 932 

8 Deliverable forward contract, gross amount - - - - - 

9 Deliverable forward contract, net amount - - - - - 

10 Financial guarantees  444 3 621 - 4 000 8 065 

11 Other credit-related commitments 10 083 25 143 41 754 32 584 109 564 

12 Total potential future payments related to 

financial liabilities 
696 547 646 481 110 288 233 032 1 686 348 

 

  



JSCB “LVIV” 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 

(UAH, thousand, unless otherwise provided)  

 

115 

Note 37. Financial risk management (continued) 

Analysis of liquidity risk by maturities is based on discounted cash flows presented in Table 10 "Analysis of financial 

assets and liabilities by maturity dates based on expected maturities for 2018". The financial assets and liabilities are 

presented at carrying amount. 

 

Table 10. Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by maturity dates based on expected maturities for 
2018      

 (UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 

On 

demand 

and less 

than 1 

month 

From 1 to 

12 months 

From 12 

months to 

5 years 

Over 5 

years 
Total 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

  Assets           

1 Cash and cash equivalents 311 132 - - - 311 132 

2 
Bank's mandatory reserve balances with 

the National Bank of Ukraine 
- - - - - 

3 
Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss 
- - - - - 

4 Loans and advances to banks 18 159 - - - 18 159 

5 Loans and advances to customers 47 171 652 945 643 704 49 942 1 393 762 

6 Investments in securities 389 392 - - - 389 392 

7 Other financial assets  12 836 75 17 3 639 16 567 

8 Total financial assets  778 690 653 020 643 721 53 581 2 129 012 

  Liabilities           

9 Due to banks - - - - - 

10 Due to customers 802 897 744 907 41 363 99 510 1 688 677 

11 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss 
- - - - - 

12 Debt securities issued by the Bank - - - - - 

13 Other borrowed funds 270 19 362 187 031 - 206 663 

14 Other financial liabilities  41 473 878 48 10 42 410 

15 Subordinated debt 887 - 117 750 98 167 216 804 

16 Total financial liabilities 845 527 765 147 346 192 197 687 2 154 554 

17 Net liquidity GAP as at 31 December  (66 837) (112 127) 297 529 (144 106) (25 542) 

18 Total liquidity GAP as at 31 December  (66 837) (178 965) 118 564 (25 542) - 
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Note 37. Financial risk management (continued) 

 

Table 11. Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by maturity dates based on expected maturities for 
2017      

 (UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 

On 

demand 

and less 

than 1 

month 

From 1 to 

12 months 

From 12 

months to 

5 years 

Over 5 

years 
Total 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

  Assets           

1 Cash and cash equivalents 188 048 - - - 188 048 

2 
Bank's mandatory reserve balances with 

the National Bank of Ukraine 
- - - - - 

3 
Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss 
- - - - - 

4 Loans and advances to banks 17 179 - - - 17 179 

5 Loans and advances to customers 11 086 690 546 244 969 44 268 990 869 

6 Investments in securities 311 565 - - - 311 565 

7 Other financial assets  8 254 424 - 231 8 909 

8 Total financial assets  536 132 690 970 244 969 44 499 1 516 570 

  Liabilities           

9 Due to banks 2 007 - - - 2 007 

10 Due to customers 658 880 516 676 806 182 685 1 359 047 

11 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss 
58 - - - 58 

12 Debt securities issued by the Bank - - - - - 

13 Other borrowed funds - 100 158 7 596 755 108 509 

14 Other financial liabilities  24 440 473 10 9 24 932 

15 Subordinated debt 637 27 60 000 13 000 73 664 

16 Total financial liabilities 686 022 617 334 68 412 196 449 1 568 217 

17 Net liquidity GAP as at 31 December  (149 890) 73 636 176 557 (151 950) (51 647) 

18 Total liquidity GAP as at 31 December  (149 890) (76 254) 100 303 (51 647) - 

Net GAP is calculated as a difference between financial assets and financial liabilities. 
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Note 38. Capital management 

The primary objectives of the Bank’s capital management are to ensure 

that the Bank complies with externally imposed capital requirements and 

that the Bank maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in 

order to support its business and to maximize shareholders’ value. 

 
(%) 

Date 
Н2, 

not <10% 

31.12.2017 15.42 

31.01.2018 15.15 

28.02.2018 15.40 

31.03.2018 15.01 

30.04.2018 14.58 

31.05.2018 13.97 

30.06.2018 13.04 

31.07.2018 12.97 

31.08.2018 12.23 

30.09.2018 21.51 

31.10.2018 20.85 

30.11.2018 20.31 

31.12.2018 20.61 
 

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the 

light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its 

activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Bank may 

adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to 

shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes yet have been made in 

the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. 

The Bank actively manages capital adequacy level for protection against 

the risks inherent in its business. The adequacy of the Bank's capital is 

monitored using standards set by the National Bank of Ukraine.  

Information on compliance with the capital adequacy norm (H2) during 

2018 is provided in table. 

During 2018 as of each monthly date the Bank complied with all external 

statutory capital ratio requirements. 

 

Table 1. Regulatory capital structure 
  

   
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

1 Core capital 180 511 114 950 

1.1 Actually paid authorized share capital 338 905 305 405 

1.2 Contributions to unregistered share capital 99 500 33 500 

1.3 Transactions with shareholders 22 184 22 184 

1.4 General reserves 9 936 9 936 

1.5 Issue profit/loss 1 661 1 661 

1.6 Reduction of core capital by amount of intangible assets (13 002) (10 766) 

1.7 Losses of previous years (262 265) (202 250) 

1.8 Estimated current year losses (16 409) (44 720) 
    

2.1 
Additional capital included into Regulatory capital (not more than Core 

capital) 
180 511 90 949 

2.2 Additional capital 246 992 90 949 

2.2.1 Fixed assets revaluation result 30 949 30 949 

2.2.2 Subordinated debt 216 043 60 000 
    

3 Other - - 
    

4 Total regulatory capital 361 022 205 899 
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Note 38. Capital management (continued) 

 

Table 2. Bank's capital structure based on the Basel Capital Accord   
 (UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 
    

1 Tier 1 capital     

1.1 Share capital 443 370 343 870 

1.2 Share premium 1 661 1 661 

1.3 Accumulated deficit (305 118) (238 055) 

  Total tier 1 capital 139 913 107 476 
    

2 Tier 2 capital     

2.1 Increase in value 72 400 72 400 

2.2 Subordinated debt 69 957 53 738 

  Total tier 2 capital 142 357 126 138 
    

3 Total regulatory capital 282 270 233 614 
    

4 Total risk weighted assets 1 522 021 1 176 854 
    
 

Capital ratios   

5 Total regulatory capital as a ratio of total risk weighted assets  18,5% 19,9% 

6 Total tier 1 capital as a ratio of total risk weighted assets 9,2% 9,1% 

 
Note 39. Trust accounts 

 
Table 1. Trust accounts 

   

   
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 Changes 

(+;−) 

1 2 3 4 5 

1 Cash from trust management operations - - - 

2 Current accounts of a bank - trustee 583 2 487 (1 904) 

3 Receivables from trust management operations 11 078 80 816 (69 738) 

4 Securities in trust - - - 

5 Precious metals in trust - - - 

6 Other assets in trust - - - 

7 Expenses for trust management operations - - - 

8 Accrued income from trust management objects 205 810 (605) 

9 Total trust management active accounts  11 866 84 113 (72 247) 

10 Bank management funds  11 661 83 303 (71 642) 

11 Trustors’ accounts  - - - 

12 Payables for trust management operations - - - 

13 Income from trust management operations 205 810 (605) 
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Note 40. Contingent liabilities of the Bank 

 
1) legal proceedings.  

  

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank was a defendant in 14 legal proceedings (as at 31 December 2017 – in 8 legal 

proceedings). All these proceedings are of a non-property nature. 

The Bank does not expect that these claims will have a negative impact on its financial position.     

2) contingent tax liabilities. 
  

On 26.11.2018 the Bank received the report of the State Fiscal Service of Ukraine on results of documentary tax audit 

that claims the Bank to pay fines in the amount of UAH 209,9 thousand. Currently this claim is appealed by the Bank. 

The Bank's management believes that the Bank conducts its activities in full compliance with effective legislation 

that regulate its activities and the Bank has accrued all relevant taxes in full and timely manner, consequently the 

financial statements do not contain provisions to cover tax losses.     

3) capital investment commitments. 
  

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank had the following contracted capital investment liabilities: 

 in respect of premises and equipment – absent (as at 31 December 2017 – UAH 242 thousand); 

 respect of intangible assets – UAH 828 thousand (as at 31 December 2017 – UAH 2 187 thousand).  

The Bank allocated the necessary resources to fulfil these liabilities. 

The Bank’s Management believes that future net income and funding will be sufficient to cover this and similar 

liabilities.     

4) operating lease liabilities. 
  

 
Table 1. Future minimum lease payments of the lessee bank under irrevocable operating lease 
agreement     

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

1 Up to 1 year 6 327 4 245 

2 From 1 to 5 years 7 210 2 111 

3 Over 5 years - - 

4 Total 13 537 6 356 

 

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases are calculated based on the terms of the lease. 

Total future minimum sublease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable subleases amount to 

UAH 359 thousand.     
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Note 40. Contingent liabilities of the Bank (continued) 
 
4) adherence to special requirements.  

Terms and conditions of agreements related to loan raising from international and other financial institutions provide mostly for the 

requirements to financial position and activity of the Bank by establishing the relevant covenants. 

As of 31.12.2018 the Bank ensured adherence to all covenants provided by agreements. 

Table 2. Adherence to special requirements 
Line Lender Special requirements content (covenant) Information on adherence to special 

requirements 

Actual value Adherence note 

1 2 3 4 5 

1.1 

Nordic 

Environment 

Finance 

Corporation 

(NEFCO) 

capital adequacy ratio calculated subject to IFRS should not 

be less than 12% 
18,5% Adhered 

1.2 
beginning from financial year 2019 the IFRS profit before 

tax should have a positive value 
х 

Not required for 

year 2018 

1.3 
beginning from financial year 2019 the expenses to income 

ratio should not exceed 90% 
х 

Not required for 

year 2018 

1.4 
The Bank should adhere to all normative and legal acts and 

financial indicators as provided by the NBU 

No violated economic 

norms 
Adhered 

2.1 

Triodos 

Custody B.V. / 

Triodos SICAV 

II – Triodos 

Microfinance 

Fund 

Capital adequacy ratio calculated subject to requirements of 

the NBU (not less than 13 %) 
20,6% Adhered 

2.2 
NPL to credit portfolio ratio (not more than 10% before 

31.12.2019 and not more than 9% in the next years) 
2,4% Adhered 

2.3 

The ratio of NPL and net restructured loans to regulated 

capital (not more than 25% before 31.12.2019 and not more 

than 20% in the next years) 

3,1% Adhered 

2.4 

The ratio of loans written off during last 12 months to the 

average credit portfolio (not more than 11% before 

31.07.2019, not more than 5% before 31.12.2019, not more 

than 3% in the next years) 

10,6% Adhered 

2.5 
The ratio of open currency position to regulatory capital 

(from (10)% to (+)10%) 
(2,0)% Adhered 

2.6 
The ratio of maximum credit risk volume per one 

counterparty to regulatory capital (not more than 25%) 
13,3% Adhered 

2.7 
The share of 20 major depositors in due to customers (not 

more than 40%) 
18,5% Adhered 

2.8 
The ratio of maximum credit risk volume per one related 

party to regulatory capital (not more than 25%) 
10,0% Adhered 

3.1 
German-

Ukrainian 

Foundation 

(GUF) 

Adhering to economic norms and requirements provided by 

the NBU for Borrowers 

No violated economic 

norms 
Adhered 

3.2 
Bad debts ratio in total credit portfolio of customers (not 

more than 10%) 
1,2% Adhered 

4.1 

responsAbility 

Participations 

AG 

Adhering of the capital adequacy norm at the level 

established by the National Bank of Ukraine 

Н2 = 20,6%, normative 

value – 10% 
Adhered 

4.2 

maintain the requirements to immediate and current 

liquidity as provided by the NBU Instruction 

Н4 (immediate liquidity 

norm) = 163,0% (norm – 

not less than 20%) 

Н5 (current liquidity 

norm) = 85,9% (norm – 

not less than 40%) 

Adhered 

4.3 
adhere to other norms and requirements of the NBU No violated economic 

norms 
Adhered 
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Note 40. Contingent liabilities of the Bank (continued) 
 

6) credit-related commitments.    

The Bank has no contingent credit-related commitments. 
   

 
Table 3. Structure of credit-related commitments 

   

   
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Notes 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 5 

1 Credit-related commitments given   109 50 813 

2 Undrawn credit facilities   116 345 58 751 

3 Export letters of credit    - - 

4 Import letters of credit    - - 

5 Guarantees issues   15 342 8 065 

6 Provision for credit-related commitments    - - 

7 Total credit-related commitments, net of provision    131 796 117 629      

Table 4. Credit-related commitments by currencies 
  

  
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

1 2 3 4 

1 UAH 108 873 96 214 

2 USD 17 636 13 084 

3 EUR 5 287 8 331 

4 Others - - 

5 Total 131 796 117 629 

 

The Bank has no associates, therefore the information regarding the share in the contingent liabilities of an associate 

for which the Bank bears joint responsibility with other investors and regarding contingent liabilities arising from 

separate investor responsibility for all or any part of liabilities of an associate are absent.      

7) assets pledged as collateral and assets with restrictions on title, use and disposal . 

 
Property rights under loan agreements executed by the Bank with each business entity and property rights under 

pledge/financial surety agreements securing the fulfillment of such business entities' loan obligations to the Bank have 

been provided by the Bank as a collateral under the loan received from the GUF. 

 

Note 41. Derivative financial instruments 

Table 1. Fair value of derivative financial instruments at the Bank's trade portfolio 
       (UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Note 

31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

positive fair 

value 

negative fair 

value 

positive fair 

value 

negative fair 

value 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

1 Forward contracts   - - - - 

2 Futures contracts   - - - - 

3 Swap contracts   - - - 58 

4 Options   - - - - 

5 Net fair value    - - - - 
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Note 42. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 

Table 1. Fair value and levels of input data used for various techniques of assets and liabilities valuation 
for 2018       

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Fair value based on different valuation techniques 

Total fair 

value 

Total 

carrying 

amount 

Market 

quotations 

Valuation 

technique based 

on observable 

market data 

Valuation 

technique based 

on indicators 

not evidenced 

by observable 

market data 

(Level 1)  (Level 2) (Level 3) 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

І ASSETS           

1 Cash and cash equivalents - 311 132 - 311 132 311 132 

2 Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss 
- - - - - 

3 Loans and advances to banks - 18 159 - 18 159 18 159 

4 Loans and advances to 

customers 
- - 1 393 762 1 393 762 1 393 762 

5 Investments in securities - 389 392 - 389 392 389 392 

6 Other financial assets - 16 567 - 16 567 16 567 

7 Total assets - 735 250 1 393 762 2 129 012 2 129 012 

ІІ LIABILITIES           

8 Due to banks - - - - - 

9 Due to customers - 1 688 677 - 1 688 677 1 688 677 

10 Financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit or loss 
- - - - - 

11 Debt securities issued by the 

Bank 
- - - - - 

12 Other borrowed funds - 206 663 - 206 663 206 663 

13 Other financial liabilities - 42 410 - 42 410 42 410 

14 Subordinated debt - 216 804 - 216 804 216 804 

15 Total liabilities - 2 154 554 - 2 154 554 2 154 554 
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Note 42. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 
 
Table 2. Fair value and levels of input data used for various techniques of assets and liabilities valuation 
for 2017       

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item Fair value based on different valuation techniques 

Total fair 

value 

Total 

carrying 

amount 

Market 

quotations 

Valuation 

technique based 

on observable 

market data 

Valuation 

technique based 

on indicators 

not evidenced 

by observable 

market data 

(Level 1)  (Level 2) (Level 3) 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

І ASSETS           

1 Cash and cash equivalents - 188 048 - 188 048 188 048 

2 Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss 
- - - - - 

3 Loans and advances to banks - 17 179 - 17 179 17 179 

4 Loans and advances to 

customers 
- - 990 869 990 869 990 869 

5 Investments in securities - 311 565 - 311 565 311 565 

6 Other financial assets - 8 909 - 8 909 8 909 

7 Total assets - 525 701 990 869 1 516 570 1 516 570 

ІІ LIABILITIES           

8 Due to banks - 2 007 - 2 007 2 007 

9 Due to customers - 1 210 577 - 1 210 577 1 359 047 

10 Financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit or loss 

- - - - - 

11 Debt securities issued by the 

Bank 

- - - - - 

12 Other borrowed funds - 108 509 - 108 509 108 509 

13 Other financial liabilities - 24 990 - 24 990 24 990 

14 Subordinated debt - 73 664 - 73 664 73 664 

15 Total liabilities - 1 419 747 - 1 419 747 1 568 217 
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Note 42. Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued) 

Table 3. Changes in fair value hierarchy levels for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a 
periodic basis. 

In 2017-2018, the Bank did not transfer financial assets between hierarchy levels. 

Assets fair value of which approximates their carrying amount. 

It is accepted that the carrying amount of liquid or current (up to three months) financial assets and financial liabilities 

approximates their fair value. This assumption is also applied to demand deposits, savings accounts without a specific 

maturity, financial instruments with variable interest rates and loans to individuals in foreign currencies (since the foreign 

currency lending to this group of customers is prohibited by the National Bank of Ukraine). 

Financial instruments with fixed interest rate. 

The fair value of instruments with fixed interest rates that do not have quoted market prices was measured based on the 

estimated future expected cash flows discounted at the current weighted average interest rates for new instruments with 

similar credit risk and similar maturity. 

Office and investment property.  

The fair value of real estate is determined using market comparable methodology based on market prices for contracts of 

purchase or sale of similar objects adjusted accordingly to the difference in characteristics, location and conditions. 

There were no changes in the assessment methods of fair value of financial instruments. 

The Bank had no Level 3 assets accounted for at fair value, therefore the information on coordination of the opening and 

closing amounts for such assets is not available. 

Table 4. Effect of reasonably possible alternative assumptions on assessment of the fair value of 
instruments using pricing models that take advantage of Level 3 data 

No information available. 

The bank had no Level 3 assets accounted for at fair value, therefore the information on the sensitivity of fair value 

measurement is not available. 

 
Note 43. Transfer of financial assets 

In 2017-2018, the Bank did not transfer financial assets. 

 
Note 44. Mutual offset of financial assets and financial liabilities 

The Bank did not have any financial assets and financial liabilities, regarding which the Bank would have a right of 

mutual offset. 
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Note 45. Presentation of financial instruments by valuation categories 

. 

Table 1. Financial assets by valuation categories for 2018        
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 

L
o
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n
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d
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A
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H
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v
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 Financial assets at fair value 

with revaluation presented as 

a profit (loss) 

Total 

T
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s 
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a
t 
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a
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e 
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u
g
h

 p
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t 

o
r 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

  ASSETS             

1 Cash and cash equivalents 311 132 - - - - 311 132 

2 
Bank's mandatory reserves balances with 

the National Bank of Ukraine 
- - - - - - 

3 
Other financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss 
- - - - - - 

4 Loans and advances to the Bank 18 159 - - - - 18 159 

4.1 bank deposits 18 159 - - - - 18 159 

4.2 repo contracts with other banks - - - - - - 

4.3 loans to other banks - - - - - - 

5 Loans and advances to customers 1 393 762 - - - - 1 393 762 

5.1 
loans to government authorities and 

municipalities 
- - - - - - 

5.2 loans to legal entities  1 032 467 - - - - 1 032 467 

5.3 loans related to repo agreements - - - - - - 

5.4 loans to individual entrepreneurs 261 601 - - - - 261 601 

5.5 mortgage loans to individuals 23 481 - - - - 23 481 

5.6 consumer loans to individuals 74 507 - - - - 74 507 

5.7 other loans to individuals 1 706 - - - - 1 706 

6 Investments in securities - - 389 392 - - 389 392 

7 Other financial assets 16 567 - - - - 16 567 

7.1 receivables under securities - - - - - - 

7.2 receivables under finance lease - - - - - - 

7.3 
receivables under payment cards 

transactions 
1 174 - - - - 1 174 

7.4 
receivables under foreign currency 

transactions 
- - - - - - 

7.5 restricted cash - - - - - - 

7.6 other financial assets 15 393 - - - - 15 393 

8 Total financial assets 1 739 620 - 389 392 - - 2 129 012 
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Note 45. Presentation of financial instruments by valuation categories 
(continued) 

. 

Table 1. Financial assets by valuation categories for 2017        
(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 

L
o
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 Financial assets at fair value 

with revaluation presented as 

a profit (loss) 

Total 

T
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 p
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

  ASSETS             

1 Cash and cash equivalents 188 048 - - - - 188 048 

2 
Bank's mandatory reserves balances with 

the National Bank of Ukraine 
- - - - - - 

3 
Other financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss 
- - - - - - 

4 Loans and advances to the Bank 17 179 - - - - 17 179 

4.1 bank deposits 17 179 - - - - 17 179 

4.2 repo contracts with other banks - - - - - - 

4.3 loans to other banks - - - - - - 

5 Loans and advances to customers 990 869 - - - - 990 869 

5.1 
loans to government authorities and 

municipalities 
- - - - - - 

5.2 loans to legal entities  785 179 - - - - 785 179 

5.3 loans related to repo agreements - - - - - - 

5.4 loans to individual entrepreneurs 119 687 - - - - 119 687 

5.5 mortgage loans to individuals 10 786 - - - - 10 786 

5.6 consumer loans to individuals 72 305 - - - - 72 305 

5.7 other loans to individuals 2 912 - - - - 2 912 

6 Investments in securities - - 311 565 - - 311 565 

7 Other financial assets 8 909 - - - - 8 909 

7.1 receivables under securities - - - - - - 

7.2 receivables under finance lease - - - - - - 

7.3 
receivables under payment cards 

transactions 
9 - - - - 9 

7.4 
receivables under foreign currency 

transactions 
- - - - - - 

7.5 restricted cash - - - - - - 

7.6 other financial assets 8 900 - - - - 8 900 

8 Total financial assets 1 205 005 - 311 565 - - 1 516 570 
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Note 46. Related party transactions 

Table 1. Balances of related party transactions as at the end of 31.12.2018 
       

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 

P
a
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co
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p
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n

y
 

M
a
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r 

p
a
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 p
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

1 Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss (contract interest rate __-

__%) 

- - - - - - - 

2 Loans and advances to banks (contract 

interest rate __-__%) 
- - - - - - - 

3 Loans and advances to customers 

(contract interest rate 10,68%) 
- - - - 168 - 35 685 

4 Loan loss provision - - - - (2) - (424) 

5 Securities in the Bank portfolio available-

for-sale (contract interest rate __-__%; 

_% share ownership interest) 

- - - - - - - 

6 Securities in the Bank portfolio held-to-

maturity (contract interest rate __-__%) 
- - - - - - - 

7 Investments in associates  - - - - - - - 

8 Other assets - 6 - - - - 3 

9 Non-current assets held for sale and 

disposal group assets (contract interest 

rate __-__% for debt securities; _% share 

ownership interest) 

- - - - - - - 

10 Due to other banks (contract interest rate 

__-__%) 
- - - - - - - 

11 Due to customers (contract interest rate 

6,53%) 
- 47 575 - - 9 621 - 12 789 

12 Debt securities issued by the Bank 

(contract interest rate __-__%) 
- - - - - - - 

13 Financial liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss 
- - - - - - - 

14 Other funds raised (contract interest rate 

__-__%) 
- - - - - - - 

15 Provisions for liabilities - - - - - - - 

16 Other liabilities - - - - - - - 

17 Subordinated debt (contract interest rate 

13,26%) 
- 104 750 - - - - 12 999 

18 Disposal group liabilities (contract 

interest rate __-__%) 
- - - - - - - 
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Note 46. Related party transactions (continued) 

Table 2. Income and expenses on related party transactions as of 31.12.2018 
       

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 

P
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M
a

jo
r 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 

(S
h

a
re

h
o

ld
er

s)
 o

f 
th

e 

b
a

n
k

 

C
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s 

u
n

d
er

 

jo
in

t 
co

n
tr

o
l 

S
u

b
si

d
ia

ri
es

 

T
o

p
 m

a
n

a
g

em
en

t 
 

A
ss

o
ci

a
te

s 

O
th

er
 r

e
la

te
d

 p
a

rt
ie

s 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

1 Interest income  - - - - 11 - 5 196 

2 Interest expenses  - (18 331) - - (310) - (4 845) 

3 Changes in loan loss and due from banks 

provision 
- - - - 6 - - 

4 Allocation to loan loss and due from banks 

provision - - - - - - (306) 

5 Dividends - - - - - - - 

6 Result from transactions with securities in 

the Bank trade portfolio  - - - - - - - 

7 Result from revaluation of other financial 

instruments at fair value through profit or 

loss 
- - - - - - - 

8 Gains on sale of securities in the bank 

portfolio available for sale 
- - - - - - - 

9 Gains on foreign currency transactions - - - - - - - 

10 Gains on revaluation of foreign currency 

transactions 
- - - - - - - 

11 Fee and commission income - 42 - - 23 - 882 

12 Fee and commission expenses - (23) - - (12) - (1) 

13 Profit/ (loss) from the initial recognition of 

financial assets considered at interest rate 

higher or lower than the market one - - - - - - (567) 

14 Profit/ (loss) from the initial recognition of 

financial liabilities considered at interest 

rate higher or lower than the market one 

- - - - - - - 

15 Allocations to provisions for impairment of 

receivables 
- - - - - - - 

16 Impairment of securities in the Bank 

portfolio available for sale 
- - - - - - - 

17 Impairment of investments in securities - - - - - - - 

18 Allocations to provisions for liabilities - - - - - - - 

19 Other operating income - 45 - - - - 80 

20 Income/(expenses) from early debt 

repayment 
- - - - - - - 

21 Administrative and other operating 

expenses  
- - - - (38) - (18 935) 

22 Profit/ (loss) share in associates - - - - - - - 
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Note 46. Related party transactions (continued) 

Table 3. Other rights and liabilities regarding related party transactions as at the end of 31.12.2018 
       

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

1 Guarantees provided  - - - - - - - 

2 Guarantees received  - - - - - - - 

3 Import letters of credit - - - - - - - 

4 Export letters of credit - - - - - - - 

5 Other liabilities  - - - - 78 - - 

6 Other contingent liabilities - - - - - - - 
         

Table 4. Total loans granted to related parties and repaid by related parties during 2018 
       

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 
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1 
Loans granted to related parties during 

the period  
- - - - 58 - 24 

2 
Loans repaid by related parties during 

the period  
- - - - 8 - 2 565 
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Note 46. Related party transactions (continued) 

Table 5. Balances of related party transactions as at the end of 31.12.2017 
       

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

1 Financial assets at fair value through profit 

or loss (contract interest rate __-__%) 
- - - - - - - 

2 Loans and advances to banks (contract 

interest rate __-__%) 
- - - - - - - 

3 Loans and advances to customers (contract 

interest rate 10,68%) 
- - - - 5 - 38 225 

4 
Loan loss provision - - - - - - (118) 

5 Securities in the Bank portfolio available-

for-sale (contract interest rate __-__%; _% 

share ownership interest) 

- - - - - - - 

6 Securities in the Bank portfolio held-to-

maturity (contract interest rate __-__%) 
- - - - - - - 

7 
Investments in associates  - - - - - - - 

8 
Other assets - 3 - - - - 1 

9 Non-current assets held for sale and 

disposal group assets (contract interest rate 

__-__% for debt securities; _% share 

ownership interest) 

- - - - - - - 

10 Due to other banks (contract interest rate 

__-__%) 
- - - - - - - 

11 Due to customers (contract interest rate 

7,44%) 
- 6 016 - - 2 172 - 35 853 

12 Debt securities issued by the Bank (contract 

interest rate __-__%) 
- - - - - - - 

13 Financial liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss 
- - - - - - - 

14 Other funds raised (contract interest rate 

__-__%) 
- - - - - - - 

15 
Provisions for liabilities - - - - - - - 

16 
Other liabilities - - - - - - - 

17 Subordinated debt (contract interest rate 

12,50%) 
- 73 664 - - - - - 

18 Disposal group liabilities (contract interest 

rate __-__%) 
- - - - - - - 
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Note 46. Related party transactions (continued) 

Table 6. Income and expenses on related party transactions as of 31.12.2017 
       

(UAH, ths.) 
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1 Interest income  - - - - - - 13 013 

2 Interest expenses  - (11 305) - - (119) - (2 414) 

3 Changes in loan loss and due from banks 

provision 
- - - - - - 4 606 

4 Allocation to loan loss and due from banks 

provision - - - - - - (118) 

5 Dividends - - - - - - - 

6 Result from transactions with securities in 

the Bank trade portfolio  - - - - - - - 

7 Result from revaluation of other financial 

instruments at fair value through profit or 

loss 
- - - - - - - 

8 Gains on sale of securities in the bank 

portfolio available for sale 
- - - - - - - 

9 Gains on foreign currency transactions - - - - - - - 

10 Gains on revaluation of foreign currency 

transactions 
- - - - - - - 

11 Fee and commission income - 42 - - 24 - 295 

12 Fee and commission expenses - (2) - - (9) - (1) 

13 Profit/ (loss) from the initial recognition of 

financial assets considered at interest rate 

higher or lower than the market one - - - - - - (5 056) 

14 Profit/ (loss) from the initial recognition of 

financial liabilities considered at interest 

rate higher or lower than the market one 

- - - - - - - 

15 Allocations to provisions for impairment of 

receivables 
- - - - - - - 

16 Impairment of securities in the Bank 

portfolio available for sale 
- - - - - - - 

17 Impairment of investments in securities - - - - - - - 

18 Allocations to provisions for liabilities - - - - - - - 

19 Other operating income - 20 - - - - 11 

20 Income/(expenses) from early debt 

repayment 
- - - - - - - 

21 Administrative and other operating 

expenses  
- - - - - - (1 204) 

22 Profit/ (loss) share in associates - - - - - - - 
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Note 46. Related party transactions (continued) 

Table 7. Other rights and liabilities regarding related party transactions as at the end of 31.12.2017 
       

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 
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1 Guarantees provided  - - - - - - - 

2 Guarantees received  - - - - - - - 

3 Import letters of credit - - - - - - - 

4 Export letters of credit - - - - - - - 

5 Other liabilities  - - - - 45 - - 

6 Other contingent liabilities - - - - - - - 
         

Table 8. Total loans granted to related parties and repaid by related parties during 2017 
 

       
(UAH, ths.) 
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1 Loans granted to related parties during the 

period  
- - - - 5 - - 

2 Loans repaid by related parties during the 

period  
- - - - - - 57 104 

 

As of 31.12.2018 the following entities own a direct material shareholding in the Bank: 

 responsAbility Participations AG (Switzerland) – 51 % of the share capital (decision No. 169 of the Banking 

Supervision and Regulation and Payment Systems Supervision (Oversight) Committee of the National Bank of 

Ukraine dated 23.06.2018); 

 Limited Liability Company "New Progress Holding" (Ukraine) – 38,940537% of the share capital. 

Margeir Petursson, a citizen of Iceland, is an ultimate key participant of Limited Liability Company "New Progress 

Holding" indirectly owing 48,930326% of the Bank’ share capital. The Banking Supervision and Regulation and Payment 

Systems Supervision (Oversight) Committee of the National Bank of Ukraine approved, under its decision No. 633, 

Margeir Petursson to acquire an indirect significant share in the Bank on 30 December 2015. 

As of 31.12.2017 Limited Liability Company "New Progress Holding" was a substantial share owner of the Bank 

(99.8997%).       
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Note 46. Related party transactions (continued) 
 
Table 9. Top management benefits6      

(UAH, ths.) 

Line Item 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 

expenses  accrued 

liabilities 

expenses  accrued 

liabilities 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

1 Current employee benefits  7 894 1 420 5 389 889 

2 Payments after completing the labor activity  - - - - 

3 Other long-term employee benefits  - - - - 

4 Layoff costs 80 - 180 - 

5 
Payments by the bank's share-based equity 

instruments 
- - - - 

 
Note 47. Subsidiaries, associates and joint companies 

There are no subsidiaries, associates and joint companies. 

There were no investments in associates and subsidiaries. 

 

Note 48. Business combinations 

There were no business combinations. 

 

Note 49. Subsequent events 

During the period from 31.12.2018 up to the date of these financial statements approval there have been no any significant 

subsequent events, which could have significant influence to these financial statements, namely: 

 business combinations; 

 termination of the business or making decision to terminate the business; 

 restructuring; 

 any judgements in favor of plaintiffs that could cause any significant financial liabilities to the Bank; 

 declaration of dividends. 

 

On 05.02.2019 the Supervisory Board has made a decision to approve the Bank's Strategy for 2019-2023. 

 

                                                           
6 Top management personnel are persons who have direct or indirect authorities and responsible for planning, management and control 

of the Bank's activity, including Chairman and Members of the Supervisory Board, Chairman and Members of the Management Board, 

Chief Accountant and Deputy Chief Accountant etc. 


